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MFEIHE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING PERFORMANCE DATA RERBHE
2024 2023 2022 2001 2020
“EomE I 2 ZE-CE ZE--F i 22

For the year ended 31 December RMB'000 RMB000  Change RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000

BETZA=+-RLEE ARETR AREFT % ARETT AREFTL ARETT

Revenue WA 23,029,033 2725317 13% 23,805,354 26521193 19,576,938

Gross profit EH 2,863,372 1462615 95.8% 2755622 5,851,971 2,707,118

Profit/(Loss) for the year FE E; gw/ 588,629 (299,382) Tumaround 201,186 2741616 530354

(E8) SEE

Profit/{Loss) attributable to BRER 553,536 (375,700) Tumaround 156,808 2,685,170 517,065

shareholders wil/ (BB ER

Eamings/(Losses) per share H%ﬁ@/

(&8 o . e .
— Basic — &K RMBARM0.607 RMBARM(4NT Tumér%nd RVBAR0177L  RMBARM293T  RMBARM057T
] o
— Diluted — %%  RMBARM0.607m RMBARM(4NT Tumér%nd RVBAR0177  RMBARM293T  RMBARM0567T
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FINANCIAL POSITION DATA B 3 AR R B 1B

2024 2023 202 2021 2020
—EomE —T-CF —Z-C e e

As at 31 December RMB'000 RMB'000 Cha‘n%% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

W+ZA=+-H ARETT ARETT # ARETT ARETFT ARETR

Total assets BEE 20,982,724 N8I -80% 26,151,299 24442884 20,157,279

Non-current assets FRHEE 10,711,981 11103716 =35% 12520445 11,394,265 10829540

Current assets MBEE 10,270,743 1N,70745  -123% 13,628,854 13,048,619 9,327,739

Total liabilities BAER 10,845,439 13055814 ~169% 16049823 13841932 11,684,541

Current liabilities mEaE 7,359,958 9117898 -193% 12,166,884 10,089,446 801,160

Non-current liabiities FRHEE 3,485,481 3937916 ~11.5% 3882939 3752486 3673381

Net current assets RYEEFE 2,910,785 2589558 124% 1461970 2959173 1316579

Net assets BEFE 10,137,285 9,755,358 3% 10101476 10600952 8472738

Equity attributable to shareholders & R JE/5 B % 9,635,237 9,149,079 53% 9,501,623 10,038,270 7,863,267

FINANCIAL INDICATORS MBIER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

BETZA=-T—HLEE —E-mE  —F-=F ZF-Z S ZECTF

Inventory turnover days FEABAE 87 109 126 95 95

Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 & S B F0R

turnover days (Note 1) FBXEK (Hit1) 29 29 28 25 30

Trade and bill payables ERESH RSB

turnover days (Note 2) BBXE (W22 57 72 78 63 61
Current ratio RELE 14 13 11 13 12

Net debt to equity ratio (Note 3) Foptil dada i
(Hi#3) 0.36 060 063 045 052

Return on equity (Note 4) & ERE (fifzt4) 6% 4% 2% 30% 7%

Note 7: Based on the average of the trade and bills receivables and financial B BEFONEEERE S REBREBUR
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income at the BEAFEFAEMZERENSREEZ
beginning and ending of the year over sales revenue for the FHBBR A FRHEERAFTU30KRE
respective year and multiplied by 360 days. Ji -

Note 2: Based on the average of the trade and bills payables and supply Kiat2: BBFVMERENESREBEREUL
chain financing at the beginning and ending of the year over cost HEERE 2 FHHBRUSFIHEERK
of sales for the respective year and multiplied by 360 days. FLAGOKRETEFH

Note 3: Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and W3 BESFEBEOEEBENRRAS LIRS
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders at LEY AR B ERRITIF KR AR R FE(L
each year end. EHFTEGH -

Note 4: Based on each year's profit attributable to shareholders over the Htata *EHTEXfFEﬁﬁx?ﬂgfﬁxﬁnﬂﬁlfl%ﬁﬁﬂlﬂz

average of the equity attributable to shareholders at the beginning

and ending of the financial year.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong International Group Limited (formerly known as Texhong
Textile Group Limited ) (the "Company’, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is one of the global
largest cotton textile manufacturers and is a leading textile
enterprise focusing on manufacturing high value-added core-spun
textile products. The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of quality yarns, grey fabrics and
garment fabrics. Since 1997, the Group has grown rapidly and has
over 5,000 customers in the People’s Republic of China (“China” or
“the PRC") and overseas, with its sales network spanning across
many countries and regions around the world, including the PRC,
Vietnam, North America, Europe, Brazil, Turkey, Bangladesh, Japan
and South Korea. With its sales headquarter established in Shanghai,
the Group has production bases in operation in the PRC, Vietnam,
Turkey, the Americas respectively, with major production facilities
comprising about 4.21 million spindles and about 1,650 weaving
and knitting machines and the related dyeing equipment as of
31 December 2024.

EBN
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FEHRSE
CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT

TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED KRITEFREBER AR

3

TEXHONG

On behalf of the Company’s board of
directors (the “Board”), | present the
annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 to the
shareholders of the Company.

AANEBERXREQATESS(ES
g2 AARFARREIFEHEE
—E_NME+-A=+—HLEFEN
BEFRE-

Hong Tianzhu £ X
Chairman /&



ERHESE (R
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

RESULTS

Looking back at 2024, the global economy has progressed in a
complex and volatile landscape. Although it has maintained a
certain degree of resilience, growth has remained sluggish by
historical standards. China, as the world’'s second largest economy,
has played a significant role in driving global trade volumes
together with other emerging Asian economies. Though inflationary
pressures have slowed down for certain developed economies,
escalating trade frictions and heightened policy uncertainties have
led to less expectation for US. dollar interest rate cut, thereby
exerting pressures on economic development. Against this macro
backdrop, global consumption trends underwent substantial shifts. In
North American market, for instance, an aging and diverse
demographic structure saw Generation Z and Millennials gradually
becoming the main consumer forces. Affected by inflationary
pressures and less expectation for U.S. dollar interest rate cut,
consumers remain price-sensitive, prioritizing value-for-money
purchases and cutting back on non-essential spending. At the same
time, brand loyalty has declined and consumer shopping behaviour
has shifted to a blended model of online and offline shopping,
moving from “stockpiling” to “seeking quality”. These consumption
characteristics are particularly evident in the fashion and apparel
categories, placing higher demands on textile and garment supply
chains to differentiate offerings and enhance rapid-response
capabilities. In addition, factors such as the pandemic, trade frictions,
and transportation bottlenecks have impacted supply chain stability
in recent years. Although supply chain pressures have eased in 2024,
lingering concerns over market uncertainties prompted many
businesses to maintain cautious inventory strategies while adopting
more flexible restocking mechanisms to address potential demand
fluctuations.

After suffering losses in the previous year, the Group actively
responded to the challenges of the still complex market
environment of 2024. In addition to making every effort to restore
production to full capacity, we have significantly adjusted and
optimized our product structure to enhance the production
efficiency of all plants, while also investing resources in the
development of high value-added products in line with market
trends. Furthermore, the Group also further refined raw material
procurement strategy and strengthened inventory management,
flexibly adjusting procurement plans in response to market price
fluctuations and production plans to effectively mitigate risks. In
terms of capital management, we maintained strict control over
capital expenditure from the previous year, and further optimized
assets and liabilities structures and reduced the overall debt level,
thereby strengthening our financial stability. Through these
relentless efforts in various aspects, the Group has substantially
improved its overall profitability, successfully overcoming the
negative impact of the macro-environment volatility experienced
over the past two years. In 2024, the Group’s operating revenue
reached approximately RMB23.0 billion, with net profit of
approximately RMB588.6 million, profit attributable to shareholders
of approximately RMB553.5 million and basic earnings per share of
RMBO0.60.
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ERHETER)
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to 2025, industry competition is expected to
intensify, with continued pressure from rising costs and evolving
international policies and environments leading to further
adjustments and consolidation within the industry. Nevertheless,
leveraging management expertise and brand influence accumulated
over years, the Group is well-positioned to navigate various market
challenges with confidence in the future. We will continue to pursue
our product differentiation strategy, enhance product quality, and
focus on innovation, so as to solidify our market position with
product excellence. Besides, we will also retain strict control over
capital expenditures, with prudent investments ensuring efficient
utilization of financial resources. The Group will continue to keep
pace with the times by advancing technological upgrades to
enhance production efficiency and product quality, actively driving
the development of modern intelligent manufacturing. Management
model innovation will constitute another key focus of the Group. By
optimizing management processes and enhancing organizational
effectiveness, we aim to further strengthen our core
competitiveness and strive for better performance in future market
competition.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their unwavering trust and
support, to our partners for joining hands and moving forward
together, and to all employees for their hard work and contribution.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

27 March 2025

06 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIMEEERAA

RE

RE_FT_RHF TERFHA@AR - ML
XA EFRREE D FRAE - BIBRBR KRB L TR
RIREITRIERE -~ FHERES - AW - K
SEHEEZFHEANEELRIMETE

BRENEHMSNSERE - WHRKIE ?@1*

Do BPIKRAEREREKRE > THIEHE
mmE - BIRIFNE  BEUNFBENERE

NZE TG - I - RPITFHEEBRIEE
AFEXWER BRRE BRAREZHFR
= RN P e AN SR B A AR AR B X O - BT Rl
BOEETTIRA  BALEERENEREE 1A
BESHRCERRENER - EEERAE
HRARENS - TIEEH  HAKELEEL

EIEMAE  RITHEMNEE  E—HIERB IR
DBFN  ARERKOTERFTREER

EE

K& AABRREZS  ROBHZBERE
—HEUERNEEERXS  BRHCIEBHENET

HiE TRAZBEINFHMNL |

HERB
FE

—E-RAF=A_-_++H



BEEBIWE S i
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is pleased to report its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2024 (the "Year”) to its shareholders. During the Year,
the Group’s revenue increased by 1.3% year-on-year to
approximately RMB23.0 billion. The Group’s net profit was
approximately RMB588.6 million, compared with a net loss of
approximately RMB299.4 million for the previous year. Profit
attributable to shareholders was approximately RMB553.5 million
versus a loss attributable to shareholders of approximately RMB375.7
million for the previous year. Basic earnings per share was RMB0.60,
compared with basic loss per share of RMB0.41 for the previous
year.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC" or “Mainland China"), in 2024,
large-scale textile enterprises achieved total sales of approximately
RMB2,398.8 billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 3.6%, with
a total net profit of approximately RMB86.9 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of 3.4%. The total sales of sizeable textile
garment and apparel enterprises amounted to approximately
RMB1,269.9 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.8%, with
a net profit of approximately RMB62.4 billion, up 1.5% year-on-year.
According to data from the General Administration of Customs of
the PRC, the PRC exported around US$142.0 billion worth of textile
products in 2024, up 5.7% year-on-year, while the value of exported
garments reached approximately USS$159.1 billion, a year-on-year
growth of 0.3%.

According to statistics from Vietnam Customs, the export volume of
yarns and staple fibers manufactured in Vietnam rose by 5.0% to
approximately 1.87 million tonnes in 2024, generating revenue of
approximately US$4.4 billion, an increase of 1.2% compared with
2023. Garment exports increased by 11.2% to approximately US$37.0
billion in 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Reflecting on the global economic landscape of 2024, the “super
election year” brought uncertainty to global economic development,
while high debt levels in many nations amplified fiscal risks.
Moreover, geopolitical risks intensified and global dynamics evolved
at an accelerated pace. There has been an escalation of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict and an increase in the risks associated with
the Israel-Palestine conflict. On the other hand, trade protectionism
and a “small courtyard, high walls” mindset are also rampant,
leading to significantly increased policy uncertainty and weakened
confidence in international trade and investment. However, inflation
in major developed economies was further contained, with these
economies entering interest rate-cutting cycles. This helped
counterbalance global economic downside risks and stimulated
consumer demand. The global economy is experiencing a difficult
and tortuous recovery amidst major changes and is showing
resilience exceeding expectations and maintaining overall stability.
Notably, the US. economy outperformed projections, while the
highlights of global economic growth continued to come from
emerging markets and developing economies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The complexity and uncertainty of the global economic
environment have posed multifaceted challenges to the textile
industry. The resurgence of international trade protectionism has led
to a deterioration in the international trade conditions, considerably
impacting cross-border export markets for textiles, while reinforcing
the trend towards nearshore supply chains. Domestically, slowing
economic growth and conservative expectations for household
income increases, coupled with subdued consumer sentiment,
especially offline consumption, have resulted in a weak recovery
momentum for textile market demand. At the same time, divergent
trends within the textile industry’s upstream and downstream
sectors have intensified. The upstream segment has seen purchase
order growth driven by inventory replenishment in overseas markets,
alongside improved capacity utilization rates and profitability. In
contrast, the downstream apparel manufacturing sector has
struggled with weaker profitability due to sluggish demand and
reduced offline customer foot traffic.

The Group has addressed proactively the complex economic
environment by continuously optimizing operating strategies,
concentrating on the sustainable development of its core
businesses, and strengthening cost control measures. As a result,
operating results have improved.

During the Year, revenue experienced a rebound compared with last
year, increasing by approximately 1.3% to approximately RMB23.0
billion. The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from the sale of
yarns, grey fabrics, and garment fabrics during the Year. Revenue
from yarn sales continued to be the Group’s major source of
income, and accounted for approximately 77.8% of total revenue for
the Year, amounting to approximately RMB17.9 billion, representing
a growth of approximately 2.1% as compared to last year, which was
mainly attributable to the recovery of market demand and the
advantages of the Group's overseas production capacity
deployment. Woven garment fabrics were primarily sold to overseas
markets, with garment fabric revenue increasing by approximately
5.7% compared to last year, reaching approximately RMB2.2 billion.

In the face of insufficient consumption growth and escalating trade
barriers in global textile market, the Group has capitalized on the
advantages of its overseas production capacity to further expand its
sales in overseas markets. Meanwhile, the Group has proactively
responded to market demand by leading the research and
development of products that meet market needs. Benefiting from
recovering market demand and consumers’ enthusiasm for outdoor
sports, which drove increased demand for functional sportwear, the
Group's strengths in differentiated market strategies and agile
product mix adjustments came to the fore. Sales volume of yarns
grew by approximately 4.0% to approximately 770,000 tonnes. Due
to fluctuations in raw material prices and changes in product mix,
revenue from yarns rose by approximately 2.1% to approximately
RMB17.9 billion for the Year.

08 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XRIIEIMEEERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the Year, the Group's capacity utilization, particularly at
overseas factories, showed significant improvement compared to last
year, while production efficiency also increased as a result of
equipment automation upgrades. Additionally, as the relatively
high-cost inventories were nearly depleted in 2023, the average
gross margin for yarns rose from approximately 5.7% last year to
approximately 11.7%.

In terms of grey fabrics, due to the Group's allocation of more
capacity to support its own production of woven fabrics, sales
volume for the Year declined by approximately 8.5% to
approximately 50.6 million metres compared to last year, with sales
revenue also decreasing to approximately RMB409.3 million.
However, through the adjustments in product mix, the gross margin
for grey fabrics increased from approximately 6.1% last year to
approximately 12.0%.

Woven garment fabrics were primarily sold in overseas markets.
Driven by a noticeable recovery in demand from the overseas
workwear market in the second half of the year and the “nearshore
supply” advantage of overseas production capacity, the sales volume
of woven garment fabrics for the Year increased by approximately
6.7% to approximately 95.7 million metres. Sales revenue also grew
by approximately 5.7% to approximately RMB2.2 billion. During the
Year, the Group actively improved capacity utilization and strictly
controlled various energy consumption costs, resulting in an
increase in the gross margin for woven garment fabrics from
approximately 12.7% last year to approximately 19.5%.

In terms of knitted garment fabrics, the Group’s production capacity
and business scale have markedly decreased due to the sale of the
loss-making factory in Vietnam to Texwinca Holdings in November
2023. The sales volume of knitted garment fabrics for the Year
decreased from approximately 15,400 tonnes last year to
approximately 10,900 tonnes. Sales revenue fell from approximately
RMB797.4 million to approximately RMB551.6 million. During the
Year, exports of domestic fabric capacity faced trade barriers, and
local market demand growth was insufficient, leading to intensified
competition in the domestic market. Nevertheless, the Group
managed to maintain its gross margin at basically the same level of
last year at approximately 8.1% by further optimizing its
management structure, focusing on niche markets, and actively
developing high value-added products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Trading operations mainly comprise the trading business of yarns,
garment fabrics and garments, with a primary focus on the U.S.
denim fabric and garment trading business. During the Year,
particularly in the second half of the year, consumer spending in the
U.S. showed signs of recovery due to easing inflation, leading to a
revenue increase of approximately 3.7% in the trading business
compared to last year, reaching approximately RMB1.5 billion.
Meanwhile, the Group improved its gross margin from
approximately 6.0% last year to approximately 10.9% through
flexible market strategies, adjusting the trade portfolio in a timely
manner and engaging in yarns and knitted garment fabrics trading
at opportune moments.

The market demand for non-woven fabrics related to pandemic
prevention products has further declined since the end of the
pandemic. As a non-essential product, the non-woven fabric
business continues to face challenges. The Group proactively
adjusted its product mix and market regions, gradually transitioning
from non-woven fabrics to downstream high value-added
semi-finished and finished products, while also vigorously expanding
into overseas markets and promoting strategic cooperation with
foreign international brands. As a result, the sales revenue from
non-woven fabrics increased from approximately RMB70.0 million
last year to approximately RMB94.3 million.

Based on the above analysis, during the Year, the Group focused on
enhancing existing production capacity, particularly improving
capacity utilization rates at overseas plants. By advancing
automation upgrades of equipment, the Group further increased
production efficiency and reduced production costs. The Group also
closely aligned itself with evolving market consumption trends to
capture opportunities from structural products. Through targeted
research and development initiatives, the Group strengthened its
profitability and achieved a turnaround during the Year, with the
overall gross margin rising from approximately 6.4% in 2023 to
approximately 12.4%. Profit attributable to shareholders for the Year
was approximately RMB553.5 million, compared with loss
attributable to shareholders of approximately RMB375.7 million for
last year. Basic earnings per share were RMB0.60, while the basic loss
per share for last year was RMB0.41.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PROSPECTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's major production facilities
were equipped with approximately 4.21 million spindles, of which
245 million spindles were located in the PRC and 1.76 million
spindles were located overseas (mainly in Vietnam), along with
approximately 1,650 weaving and knitting machines and
corresponding dyeing equipment. The production capacity for yarns
saw a slight increase due to the completion and commissioning of
several construction projects.

As previously mentioned, although the textile industry faced
numerous challenges in 2024, the gradual recovery of the global
economy and the sustained improvement in domestic consumption
markets are expected to drive a rebound for the textile industry in
2025, albeit amidst ongoing volatility.

On the domestic market front, the Chinese government has
announced the implementation of a moderately accommodative
monetary policy and a comprehensive package of fiscal measures
aimed at boosting domestic demand across the board. Rising
household incomes and recovering consumer confidence are
expected to drive an improvement in the domestic textile market.
Notably, steady growth in niche markets such as outdoor and
sportswear will present new development opportunities for the
textile industry. Moreover, as consumers increasingly focus on
environmental protection and sustainability, green textiles are set to
become a key trend for the future, creating new business
opportunities for textile enterprises.

Regarding the overseas market, inflation in developed economies
like the US. has been brought under control, and consumer
confidence is expected to recover gradually alongside the global
economic rebound. Coupled with increased replenishment orders
following the end of inventory adjustment cycles at the brand level,
demand for textiles is anticipated to be gradually released.
Furthermore, the implementation of “nearshore” and “friend-shoring”
in European countries and the US., along with the tariff policies
from the newly elected U.S. president, will accelerate the
restructuring of global supply chain landscape and drive a new
wave of capacity relocation. Against this backdrop, export-oriented
small and medium-sized enterprises will face greater risks, while
companies with an internationalized production capacity
deployment are well-positioned to seize emerging industry
opportunities. The Group has already established its production
capacity deployment in the PRC, Vietnam, Europe, and the Americas,
and will actively capture these market opportunities to further
expand its overseas market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PROSPECTS (Continued)

The new wave of "Al + Textiles” is set to transform the textile
industry. The Group plans to actively introduce digital technologies
in 2025, strengthening the application of generative Al in
production and supply chain management to improve production
efficiency and product quality while reducing costs. Additionally, the
Group will maintain a prudent investment strategy, continuously
restructuring or divesting inefficient or less-profitable assets or
businesses in order to concentrate on the sub-sectors of its core
business and strengthen its industry moat. Based on prevailing
market conditions, and excluding the sales from the trading
operation, the Group targets to sell approximately 800,000 tonnes of
yarns, 100 million metres of woven fabrics, and 10,000 tonnes of
knitted fabrics in 2025.

In terms of new investments, the Group will adopt a strategy that
combines proactive planning with steady implementation. The
production capacity in 2025 is expected to remain similar to that of
approximately 4.21 million spindles in 2024. As the global transition
to a low-carbon economy accelerates, the Group will continue to
increase investment in energy storage facilities and distributed
photovoltaic power stations to reduce carbon emissions and energy
costs. In 2024, the Group completed and put into operation 50
megawatt photovoltaic power stations in China, and plans to
continue to build distributed photovoltaic power stations at its
domestic and overseas plants in 2025, providing strong support for
environmental protection and sustainable development. In addition,
the Group will continue to promote equipment automation
upgrades and intelligent transformation to further enhance
production efficiency and reduce costs.

Leveraging the above-mentioned strategic adjustment and business
development plans, the Group is well-prepared to navigate market
changes and seize new opportunities while maximizing the
utilization of resources and production capacity, thereby delivering
long-term value for shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales

During the Year, the sales of the Group mainly comprised the sales
of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics. Yarns
continued to be the Group’s major product. Given the increase in

5ot %5 o R
HE

1 -
Eme BR

B EmEE
R RHEENE M

FR AEENEEZTBRAHEYR K
WmsEAREBNTE
—E_NFEY

sales volume of yarns, the revenue of yarns in 2024 increased by BMIHEER _ZT_=F FHK21% - THAR
approximately 2.1% as compared to that of 2023. Analysis of the EESBERMNHEEDN -
Group's sales by products is shown below.
RMB million
ARBEET
18,000
16,000
14,000
12,000
10,000
17,909.0 17,537.0
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0 . 003 e 5317 0.0 204 . 15354 - 14806 943 700
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—®-mE  —T-=F BRI --F  ZB-@E T —E-mE ST —E-mE ST
Yarns Fabrics Jeanswear Trading Non-woven fabrics
i FRER HFRRS 25 man
Yarns . Grey Woven garment Knitted garment Jeanswear Trading Non-woven
Wiz fabrics fabrics fabrics FPRRE 25 fabrics
byl AR SRR 2]
Revenue
2024 2023 change
—E-MEF T =F N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTTT
Yarns Wiz 17,908,950 17,537,022 2.1%
Grey fabrics b2 409,291 531,657 -23.0%
Woven garment fabrics % B 2,172,849 2,056,331 5.7%
Knitted garment fabrics AR AIE 551,559 797,448 -30.8%
Jeanswear T IRE — 20,413 -100.0%
Trading 25 1,535,359 1,480,616 3.7%
Non-woven fabrics mam 94,347 69,982 34.8%
Others Efh 356,678 231,848 53.8%
Total #5 23,029,033 22,725317 1.3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) Bf & B (&)
Sales (Continued) HE (&)

Sales Volume

$HE

Yarns, Grey fabrics, Woven garment fabrics, Knitted garment fabrics and Non-woven fabrics

W B REES - SHEENREST

Tonne/Million metres/Million metres/Tonne/Tonne

W, EEK S EEK W

14.0%

129.1%

2 2
i © N
<) o o
o
~ N 16.7% pS
© o 0
18.5% ~l ~ 8 126.4%
e g
o - ©
ofl & N
S © )

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—EoME T ZECIME T oF —EomE —TooF —EomE —To=F —EoNE T
B Yamns [ Grey fabrics I Woven garment B Knitted garment [ Non-woven
FIy ) b%%37) fabrics fabrics fabrics

TR R SRR ST
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) BB (&)
Sales (Continued) HE (2)
Sales Volume Selling price Gross profit margin
HE €8 EFE

2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F

2024 2023 2024 2023
“E_NE Tz CZB-NE —F-=F

Yarns (Tonne/RMB per tonne) 404 (/A RS 1) 770,388 740679
Grey fabrics xm(AER/

(Million metres/ ARBEX)

RMB per metre) 50.6 55.3
Woven garment fabrics BEEN (AEXR/

(Million metres/ ARBEX)

RMB per metre) 95.7 89.7
Knitted garment fabrics SEGEB (i,

(Tonne/RMB per tonne) ARBEE) 10,926 15412
Non-woven fabrics & (W

(Tonne/RMB per tonne) ARBEE) 3,736 2,956

23,247 23,677 11.7% 5.7%
8.1 9.6 12.0% 6.1%
22.7 229 19.5% 12.7%
50,481 51,742 8.1% 8.7%
25,253 23,675 -24.2% =50.9%

The Chinese textile market is the Group’'s major market, and
accounted for approximately 66.4% of our total sales of 2024. Due to
the recovery of textiles in overseas markets, the percentage for the
Group's domestic sales has decreased in 2024 compared with
approximately 68.9% in 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has more than 5,000
customers. As the Group produces differentiated products, the
Group does not rely on orders from a particular customer. The top
ten largest customers of the Group only accounted for
approximately 12.8% of the total sales of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

PESETISEAEENEEMS  HAEE
TR N FREEREMNL664% c — T ZPOF -
WHNTIZ BB ERENE  BERAEER
RS HIE =T — ZFHH689% 8 LK -

RAFHBH  AEBEHEHEPES5000%K © i
RARBNEEZRCEMRESN  BAKE
W TEKEE-FPWMGIE BHE-T_mF+
“A=ZT-HLEFEAREAN T AEFEER
SEEHERRAA128% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2024, gross profit of the Group
increased from approximately RMB1,462.6 million for 2023 to
approximately RMB2,863.4 million for 2024. The overall gross profit
margin increased by 6.0 percentage points to 12.4% as compared to
that of 2023. Due to the recovery of market demand for the textile
industry, product sales volume and utilization of production capacity
of the Group both recorded significant increase, resulting in the
significant surge in gross profit margin of the products during the
Year.

Cost structure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, cost of sales decreased by
5.2% to approximately RMB20.2 billion when compared with 2023.
Raw materials cost accounted for about 76.1% of the total cost of
sales of 2024. Cotton is our major raw material.

gh? breakdown of our cost of sales in 2024 and 2023 is shown
elow:

Bf & B (&)

ENRERN R

HE_Z-_NF+_A=+—HULEFE £&
@m%ﬂm T ZFHHARE 14626187
BEE-T_NFNHARE8634(ETT - B
FEFRE T - =F FA60EETDHE124% °
RN EITEMSERAMBE  KEBESR

HERERFEBYRPBERAT  SAFEER
FEFEKIE LR -

RAZE

HE-_ZT— E¢+ A=+—HILFE  #E
RAE —F — = F FBE520E 4 ARBE202E
JC ° ﬂ;g;mizﬁﬁﬂﬁ$mmﬁ%ﬁ$

#976.1% ° IBIERBEMEZRMEL o

TIHBAEER _F_NFR_-_FT - =ZFHNH
ERANBAT -

Others
Hit
0.8%

Consumables Others Consumables
SHFEm Hity JHFEM

2.6% 1.1% 2.3%

Utilities Utilities

)1 RIRE B RIKE
7.6% 7.0%
Depreciation Deéredation
e il
40%

Direct Labour
BEEITE

8.6% 84%

Raw Materials
R R
76.1%

Rt
77.3%

2024

—8=

— e

Selling and distribution costs

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's selling and
distribution costs amounted to approximately RMB650.1 million,
representing a decrease of 11.0% when compared to that of 2023. It
was mainly benefitted from the Group's active cost control policy, as
well as the decrease in warehouse storage fee under lower
inventory levels.

General and administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's general and
administrative expenses amounted to approximately RMBT,155.6
million, which represented a decrease of 2.0% when compared with
2023, and accounted for 5.0% of the Group's revenue, mainly
benefitting from the Group’s active cost control policy, which
resulted in the decrease in staff and administrative expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B [ R (#2)
Cash flows ReReE

2024 2023
ZEF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBFIT
Net cash generated from operating activities KETEBSR S FRE 4,480,352 1,985,629
Net cash generated from investing activities WEEBERSFE 535,306 29,529
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBER S FRE (4,320,426) (2,337,584)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes RN TR 23,256 15,800
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERNRE MRS SED 2,880,283 2,161,795
For the year ended 31 December 2024, net cash generated from BHE_ZT_NF+_A=+—RALFE *&

operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,480.4 million, which represents a significant increase
comparing with 2023 mainly because of the increase in operating
profit, which resulted from the increase in sales and utilization of
production capacity of the Group, as well as the decrease in the
occupation of working capital, which resulted from the
improvement of working capital efficiency in 2024. Net cash
generated from investing activities amounted to approximately
RMB535.3 million, which was mainly due to the recovery of all
remaining balance from the disposal of knitted factory in Vietnam
and the land and factory located in Shaoxing, the PRC in 2023.
During the Year, net cash used in financing activities amounted to
approximately RMB4,320.4 million, which was mainly due to the
enhancement of capital control by the Group during the Year and
the decrease in bank borrowings under the improved operating
conditions.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank and cash balances
(including pledged bank deposits) amounted to approximately
RMB2,904.2 million (as at 31 December 2023: RMB2,228.0 million). As
at 31 December 2024, inventories and trade and bills receivables
(including financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income) of the Group decreased by approximately RMB701.5 million
to approximately RMB4,543.1 million and decreased by
approximately RMB128.7 million to approximately RMB1,779.6 million
respectively (as at 31 December 2023: approximately RMB5,244.6
million and approximately RMB1,908.2 million respectively). Turnover
days for inventories and trade and bills receivables were 87 days
and 29 days respectively, compared to 109 days and 29 days in
2023 respectively. The inventory turnover days significantly
decreased from last year, mainly because the Group recorded an
increase in sales volume as well as its active working capital control
policy, which resulted in a relatively low inventory level in 2024. The
turnover days for trade and bills receivables were the same as
compared to that of the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

Trade and bills payables of the Group (including supply chain
financing) decreased by approximately RMB366.9 million to
approximately RMB2,997.8 million as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31
December 2023: RMB3,364.7 million), the payable turnover days
were 57 days, compared to 72 days in 2023. The decrease in the
payables and the payable turnover days was mainly attributable to
the advance settlement of substantial letter of credit by the Group
during the Year.

The total bank borrowings of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB1,327.7 million to approximately RMB6,395.5 million as at 31
December 2024. Current bank borrowings decreased by
approximately RMB946.5 million to approximately RMB3,199.1 million
while non-current bank borrowings decreased by approximately
RMB381.2 million to approximately RMB3,196.4 million. The decrease
in bank borrowings was mainly due to the significant improvement
in the Group's operating results, and the early repayment of bank
loans.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the key financial ratios of the

Bt & B R (&)

REBESRMBEER(E)
R-_Z-NF+-—A=+—H AEENEH
BOREBFE (BREHEHERE)BIOAR
¥3669fB T EN AR 20978 (K-S ==
F+ZA=+—8: AR¥336471870) » BN
RBEBRAEXBA/IAR M_E_=ZFH AN
KXo BNAREREFERSRLEERZERAR
FERNAEBRANEERSEHEG AT -

RZEBEZWNFE+=ZA=+—H  AEBE®ET
BEBBERLOARBKBVETEHDARKE
63.95518 7L o M BNIR 1T BB D #) A R #59.465
BILEHARK31.991ET - IERBIBRITEER

(H

=]

D ARBEIZNETLENARE31964E T -
RITEENRITERHANAEE L EXER
ZUWE  RAIBEERITEEMR -

RZE-_WMER-_E-_=ZF+=-"A=+—H"

Group were as follows: AEEZFEMBHLEERET :
2024 2023
—EZNF —EZ=
Current ratio VLIPS 1.40 1.28
Debt to equity ratio’ BEEELE 0.66 0.84
Net debt to equity ratio? BEFEERL X 0.36 0.60
Gearing ratio® BEAGEHLE 0.52 0.57

! Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to shareholders

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits over equity attributable to shareholders

3 Based on total liabilities over total assets

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB6,395.5 million, among which
approximately RMB4,091.5 million (64.0%) was denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”), approximately RMB287.5 million (4.5%) was
denominated in U.S. dollars ("US$" or "USD"), approximately
RMB1,811.2 million (28.3%) was denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS” or "HKD") and approximately RMB205.3 million (3.2%) was
denominated in Vietnamese dong (“VND"). These bank borrowings
have borne interest rates ranging from 1.23% to 5.79% per annum
(2023: 0.80% to 6.54%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had current bank borrowings of
approximately RMB3,199.1 million (as at 31 December 2023:
approximately RMB4,145.7 million). The decrease in current bank
borrowings was mainly because of the improvement in the Group's
operating results, which effectively reduced the level of working
capital, as well as the repayment of short-term borrowings for
working capital.

In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the Group has to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2024, bank borrowings of RMB200 million were
secured by export tax rebates entitled to be collected.

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of approximately
RMB53.7 million were secured by bank deposits with a net book
amount of approximately RMB54.0 million, and bank borrowings of
RMB200 million were secured by export tax rebates entitled to be
collected.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam. Most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, USS and HKS. Foreign exchange risk may arise from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is mainly attributable to its borrowings and raw
material procurement denominated in USS or HKS. The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular reviews
and closely monitoring its foreign exchange exposures.

To mitigate the depreciation risk of RMB, the Group has purchased
certain amount of currency option contracts and currency swap
contracts so that a significant part of its foreign currency exposure is
hedged.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the capital expenditure of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB834.3 million (2023:
approximately RMB899.0 million). It mainly related to the investment
in photovoltaic equipment in Mainland China and the equipment
upgrades and modification of the Group's yarn factories.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Human resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total workforce of 26,655
employees (as at 31 December 2023: 27,655), of whom 15,163
employees were based in the sales headquarters and manufacturing
plants in Mainland China. The remaining 11,492 employees were
stationed in regions outside Mainland China, including Vietnam,
Turkey, the Americas, Hong Kong of China and Macao of China. The
Group has a total of 12,511 female employees, accounting for 46.9%
of the total number of employees as at 31 December 2024. During
the Year, the Group incurred total staff costs of approximately
RMB2.3 billion (2023: approximately RMB2.4 billion).

The Group will continue to optimize its human resources structure
and offer a competitive remuneration package to its employees with
reference to factors including the prevailing market conditions and
the performance of the Group and the merits of the employees
regardless of their gender, race, age or religion. As the Group's
success is dependent on the contribution of a group of skillful and
motivated employees who form functional departments, the Group
is committed to creating a learning and sharing culture in the
organization, and placing strong emphasis on the training and
development of individual staff and team building.

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable dividend payout
ratio of about 30% of the Group’s net profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company, providing shareholders with an
equitable return. The Board has resolved to recommend distribution
of a final dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2024 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members on 13 June 2025 and it will be payable on
or about 4 July 2025, subject to the approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company on 23
May 2025. An interim dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share was
paid on 18 October 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Events after the reporting period

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 7
November 2022, 8 December 2022, 3 February 2023, 15 March
2024, 15 April 2024 and 24 March 2025 and circular dated 9
December 2022 in relation to, among others, the asset purchase
agreement (the "Asset Purchase Agreement”) entered into between
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ("HK Co") and Texhong
Industrial Park Vietnam Limited (KU T % B [& /@ AR A 7))
(“Texhong Industrial Park”) on 7 November 2022, pursuant to which
HK Co agreed to purchase, and Texhong Industrial Park agreed to
sell, certain plots of land and infrastructure and ancillary equipment
thereon. Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement (as
supplemented), Texhong Industrial Park had undertaken to HK Co
that, among others, it shall complete the registration of the transfer
of the legal title of the subject lands (the “Registration”) by 31
March 2025. However, the applications made to the relevant
authorities for changing the function of one of the land lots (“Land
Lot 1”) for purposes of the Registration have been rejected. In
addition, the other plot of land to be acquired by the Group (“Land
Lot 2") under the Asset Purchase Agreement had been subsequently
rezoned into two plots, of which Registration for one (which houses
the infrastructure and ancillary equipment situated on Land Lot 2)
had been successful. Progress of Registration for the remaining plot
(which is vacant) (“Land Lot 2B") however, remained slow. After due
consideration of the feasibility of the Registration of Land Lot 1 and
Land Lot 2B given the circumstances, on 24 March 2025, the parties
agreed to discontinue the attempts to complete the Registration of
Land Lot 1 and Land Lot 2B and unwind the acquisition of Land Lot
1, the infrastructure and ancillary equipment thereon and Land Lot
2B (the "Unwinding”) in accordance with the terms of the Asset
Purchase Agreement (as supplemented) with effect from 1 April
2025. To ensure sufficient supply of steam, water and liquefied
petroleum gas (the “Required Utilities”) by Texhong Industrial Park to
the Group after the Unwinding, on 24 March 2025, Texhong
Industrial Park and the Company entered into a utilities supply
framework agreement, pursuant to which Texhong Industrial Park
shall supply the Required Utilities to the Group for its use during the
period from 1 April 2025 to 31 December 2025. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 March
2025.

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

The following are the key risks that we consider to be of great
significance to the Group in its current status. These risks may have
adverse effect on the Group’s business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should it occur,
we have made a detail description and set down corresponding
control measures and mitigation plan to manage the risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group will change
over time. The size, complexity and coverage of our business and
the changing environment in which the Group operates also mean
that the list cannot be an exhaustive list of all material risks that

could affect the Group.

AEBNERRRE &)

HEARKEERSGE BORRN R E K EREE
%o ZPEBHORER
MEERBOTE 2L EBRE ISR T A6
BEMBERERAEENEARR -

CHEEREENEESE

Risks description

B g

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BRAFEEFELE(L

Business concentration

EBED

Product concentration: The Group has
established its market position as a manufacturer
of high value-added core-spun textile products
and core-spun yarn is the major earning source of
the Group. In the event of any change in fashion
trend, customers may prefer other textile
materials. Competition in such market may also
intensify suddenly. If the Group fails to respond
to the change in an efficient and effective
manner, the profitability of the Group may be
adversely affected.

Geographical concentration: The Group has
several production bases located in Mainland
China, which is the major market of the Group
and, thus, the Group is subject to the economic,
political and social condition and change in
domestic demand for the products of the Group
in China.

REF  AEBRETERVEEARNM
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Enhance customer communication with an outstanding
marketing team which thoroughly and promptly
understands the requirements of customers

Step up cooperation with raw material suppliers and
monitor the market trend of change in new textile
materials

Boost input for research and development team and
improve product functionality and develop new products
in response to market demands

Explore downstream industries and increase the
contribution of downstream products

Facilitate the development of import and export business
continuously to tap into overseas markets

Promote diversified development in the industry so as to
survive under adverse macro-environment, in view of the
fact that the textile industry is large in scale despite its
vulnerability to the economic and social environment

BARFNTHEHEN  NEEEPER TR
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MERRHERANGE  BIMEHHENHEY
B
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MEmM
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Causes of the trend:
The tariff policy of the United
States may impose adverse
impact on the export of
domestic textile products from
the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REENERRR @)
Changes of risk

Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2B i TEEERBRARYEE BEATREFR{
Risk of fluctuation of cotton prices
BEERREER
Cotton is the major production material of the Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton futures and >
Group and the fluctuation of cotton prices may supply and demand balance and correlation in the spot Unchanged
not align with fluctuation of end-product prices market and hedge risks mainly through measures like
at all times. In the event of intense fluctuation of maintaining stable procurement and inventory strategies
cotton prices, the gross profit margin of the Diversify the development of the synthetic fiber category
Group will be heavily affected. and reduce the Group's reliance on the cotton category
RERAEEIENEERK - RIEBRINK EOEIREREYAARRETHRORFTTERE >
HEETN-—TERRERNERRYTLA Bl IZUARRENRBLEERBERRERY  EEY
%o WERTEERBNKEY  BeHAEEE R
MEEREATE - BB ERmERE  REAEEHRY RENK

78
Foreign exchange and interest risk
HERFRER
Fluctuation of exchange rate may result in Foster communication with financial institutions and >
material losses on foreign currency and affect the market analysis institutions to interpret the dynamics of Unchanged
raw material procurement costs and financing financial market and make specific adjustments to
costs of the Group. In the event of intensified financing structure
fluctuation of the exchange rate of USD/RMB, the Increase loans in RMB to reduce the ratio of loans in USD
profitability of the Group may be subject to to directly mitigate risks
material uncertainties. Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign currencies,

including foreign liabilities arising from daily operation
In the event of increase in prevailing interest and financing, using foreign exchange financial products,
rates of banks, liabilities at floating rates may such as forward contracts and options
cause an increase in financing costs of the Closely monitor various important economic data
Group. published by the People’s Bank of China and the Federal

Reserve and keep abreast with its interest rate policy

Obtain quotations for interest rate swap from financial

institutions regularly and utilize financial instruments in a

timely manner to switch from floating to fixed interest

rate
EX KB EHEANMIRL FEAKHE MERSHEBRTEINTRENER  BERERT <>
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REENERRR @)

Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2B i TEERREREBRHR BRAFREFE(

Financing risk

HERR

The business scale of the Group is relatively large,
but it also seizes the opportunities to increase its
investment with higher financing needs. In" the
event that the financial institutions which provide
the existing facilities cease to offer such financing
to the Group or banking facilities on similar terms
and the Group fails to obtain alternatives, the
Group may not have sufficient funds for its
commitment of capital projects and may restrict or
hinder the business operation of the Group. In the
event that the operating environment deteriorates,
it may even affect the operation of the existing
business of the Group.

TEEXBREBA A0 lE—Lke
BIRE  ARROMERE - WARMRE
BENSREEFLAAEEREAERER
BUGRORITRE - MAKETRER R
MEE  AIARER EEGENNESAR
ERRERA - Wil A aeR 6 AR A&
EBEE - ERERRRL  REVRTED

AEERAXHHEE

Enhance the transparency of the Group's operation for
banks' understanding and maintain good working
relationship between the Group and financial institutions
Monitor various financing indicators in real-time and
provide timely alerts to ensure compliance in respect of
various indicators

Diversify the portfolio of financial institutions and
financing products

Devise a reasonable spread for financing with different
terms to strike a balance between financing costs and
risks

BEFTHNEEETHRRRNERAR - #EHA
SEERERENSFRIE
ERERRARERS NIRRT BREREST
EH

BIBERBNREERASNSENL
AERETRABBRNEE RERERARBERR

\4

Causes of the trend:

With continuous improvement
of the Group's operating
results, the operation risk has
been reduced

Measures are actively taken to
control working capital and to
reduce liability level

¥
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REENERRR @)

Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
2B i TEERERRERYER BEATREFR{
Customer credit management risk
RFEREERR
The Group focuses on producing a wide range of ~ «  Monitor and evaluate credit terms granted to customers >
products and does not rely on a particular reqularly Unchanged
individual customer. The Group works with more ~ +  Monitor the collectability of receivables in real-time and
than 5,000 customers from an enormous and provide alerts and warnings for amount overdue and
widespread portfolio. Increasing business volume customers with abnormal business operation
and business type lead to increasing total -« Closely monitor market dynamics and operation of
receivables. customers to devise plan for customer visit and collect

the latest information of customers

Enhance customer reconciliation system

Adopt collectability of receivables as a criterion of staff
performance assessment to promote staff members’
awareness of payment demand

Arrange export credit insurance for all overseas customers
with newly established relationship
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

AEBNERRRE &)

Risks description

B fi

Major control measures and risk mitigation

TEERERRERYR

Changes of risk
level from last year

BERATREFE{

Product liability risk
EmSEERR

The Group offers a wide range of products and
its portfolio is ever-expanding, creating a huge
risk of product liability for the Group. Although
the Group has not suffered any material losses
from product liability claim, there have been
individual claims from customers in respect of
product quality.

TEEERmELS  EXmERSEN Y
FEBERITFRTEANAR - #ALE
ERAREREESRANENEL ERE
EXPHRERZENRANREEMN -

Tax risk

R RR

The operation presence of the Group covers
various countries and regions, including Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam, Turkey and
the Americas. In the course of tax planning and
daily operation, we are subject to the following
tax risks:

Risk of tax incompliance caused by
misunderstanding of regional tax policies;

The interpretation of tax policies and the
legal conformity of tax preparation must
be confirmed by the tax administration
authority. In the course of such
confirmation, the enforcement of tax
administration may be different.

AEERNKERSAETEAY B R
P88 tEERENSSERRMLE -
ERBEARATERBRET  RMARAT
BREEE -
HEURBEHRERERMELN
RBERRR
RERRBEEEAREEINSEUT
REHBBIRAPINER - HE
iﬁﬁ¢'ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ

Increase efforts on quality control and devise
improvement solutions for quality fluctuation

Control production process using state-of-the-art
measurement equipment and online quality control
system

Improve production technology training for staff members
and cultivate responsibility awareness of plant
production staff and management members at each
level

Actively reach out to customers for product liability
incidents and coordinate for resolution and hold relevant
staff accountable internally

%Kgiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmgiﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂ
MRATENRAGSEREREEEHES HERE
EMBRETE

EMETAERMMNEN  REIMEEABRESR
BEABMELEH
RERECSHETFBEEER  BARE HAE
RRBAREE

Engage financial officers familiar with local tax policies and
regulations to conduct tax audit and handle tax
examination of the government

Engage professional local tax consultation institutions for
consultations on tax compliance advices, tax incentive
policies and tax preparation solutions

Liaise with local tax authority frequently to have thorough
understanding of change in tax policies and policy
interpretation, thereby reducing risks of tax incompliance
and enforcement of tax administration

ERATEMHBARERNOMBEARETRBER
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Causes of the trend:
Intensifying tax regulations in
different countries
Increasing international coverage
of operation presence, resulting in
mounting overseas tax risk
The requested implementation
of the minimum tax rate
jointly by the OECD countries
around the world will increase
our tax burdens and risks
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) REENERRR @)
Changes of risk

Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year

B i TEEERERERYER BBk PR EFE(

Legal and other regulatory risk

EERAMGEERR

As a listed company on the Stock Exchange of Engage qualified legal advisors or consultation institutions <>

Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”), the to review and provide advice on relevant documents to Unchanged

Group must comply with the "Securities and ensure legal compliance

Futures Ordinance” and the Rules Governing the The company secretary is responsible for offering advice

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange as to the board of directors and board committees in

well as the laws and regulations in places which respect of the latest legal, regulatory and governance

the Group operates in. As social and economic matters and ensuring their awareness of such matters

environment evolves, many countries and

relevant authorities continue to promulgate laws

and rules to update economic matters, such as

corporate governance, foreign investment,

commerce, tax and trade. The introduction or

amendments of these laws and regulations may

adversely affect the business and prospects of the

Group.

AEBER-MRABHARSMERD BFAERNARBHAHARBENENNELIR >
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Energy supply risk
B A P L B

Electricity consumption of the Group's
production process is huge and electricity
shortage may adversely affect the operation of
production facilities of the Group.

FEERRERRETRARENE N ENH
EERATEHARELERENEZEXTH

=22
rE

REANERENEFERESZRERSHINER
EER am$ﬁkh_ﬁ&ﬁ141 FrEEHE

Equip production factories subject to potential electricity
shortage with generators to minimize the duration of
electricity shortage

Conduct technological renovation on equipment to
reduce energy consumption

Liaise with the government to seek permit for
uninterrupted electricity supply

AUEERENERNEETHEE
BRE HHREE AR
HRBETRMTSE - BEERER
HEFER B EERBERES HNST

BEH - BA
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Causes of the trend:
With the increase in capital
investment of clean energy for
factories by the Group, the
Group's energy costs are
expected to be effectively
reduced
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FRBZHRA :
REEENIHEZ RN
BEeRA - BRrEAURE
SEAERKA

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-[(FEFR 27



EH R RS (|)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEBENEXRR @)
Changes of risk

Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
B ik TEEERERERYE BRAFRLFE{E
Human resources risk
AN ERER
The Group operates in a labour-intensive industry. Commence effective performance-based unit count in >
While our new plant, with more advanced recognition of the principle of ‘better reward comes with Unchanged
production facilities, has helped to reduce our greater contribution’
deployment of labour force to a certain extent, our Expand the scope of staff training to create a highly
need in manpower remains relatively high efficient and capable workforce
compared to some other industrial segments. If we Prepare and work further ahead on any decisions related
experience any labour shortage or technical to employees and that any issue which may arise will be
inadequacy of its labour force, the efficiency in promptly dealt with
utilization of our production facilities will be Address issue concerning the conditions of our canteen
impaired, and our profitability will be affected as a and staff quarters, enhance the quality of our employees'
result. livelihood, and improve our backup supporting service

Train up and enhance the management capability of our
The Group has been expanding its operation management staff, roll out skill and capability
abroad. The cultural difference between our reinforcement programme, strengthen the sense of
foreign and Chinese employees may bring risk to belonging and honour of our staff
the regular and normal operation of our Company. Improve staff retention through maintaining and

expanding our presence in the locality
FEEMRITRASIERNTE  HAHT BARRANGH  BRIZ55G]I0RA >
BEGTEALENEERE £ FREL BABTHIEE C£ESEATHARERYIE RED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP (Continued) AEENEXRR @)
Changes of risk
Risks description Major control measures and risk mitigation level from last year
B it TEERERRERHRE BRAFRLFE{E
Environmental protection compliance risk
BRE/ER
The Group’s production process is subject to a Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into purchase <>
wide range of the environmental protection laws agreements with suppliers which guarantee the raw Unchanged
and regulations in various countries and territories. materials supplied are in compliance with environmental
The Group has not been subject to any fines or protection standard (in particular dyestuff and chemicals)
penalties concerning environmental pollution in Establish a factory internal check system and procedure
the past. However, there can be no assurance that in compliance with product-wise reqular core
governments of any countries and territories will environmental protection standard, set up a highly
not introduce new laws and regulations to impose regulated control system and strictly implement it
stricter control on environmental pollution in the Pay attention to news about development in
future. Additionally, the risk faced by the Group environmental regulations, cause new factories to
may also increase as a result of investments in operate in strict compliance with any new regulations
downstream sectors. and existing factories to transform and upgrade their
facilities in order to meet environmental protection
Changes in existing environmental protection laws standard
and regulations may require the Group to incur
substantial expenditure to upgrade its existing
environmental protection facilities and the
profitability of the Group may be adversely
affected.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is essential to the success of the Group and
the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (THE “CG CODE")

The Company is committed to maintaining high levels of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner.
The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part 2
of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2024 (the “Year”), the Company had complied with the
then applicable code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises six Directors and its composition is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Ye Lixin (appointed on 27 May 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
Professor Tao Xiaoming
Professor Cheng Longdi

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 58 to 61.
There was no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

To ensure that the Board has access to independent views and
input, various mechanisms are adopted: the Company has three
INEDs representing more than one-third of the Board; at least one of
the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules; the chairman of the Board meets with the INEDs
regularly without the presence of the other Directors to discuss
matters relating to the Group; and Directors may seek advice from
external independent professional advisors at the Company's
expense to perform their duties. The Board has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence and considers that
all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms for the Year
and concluded that such are adequate and effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to
review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During
the Year, eight Board meetings and one general meeting were held
and attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the
general meeting is set out as follows:

=3 4F )
EZerHARER  ImAREZ ERRAE
AR e ERMBRR YR RERAEE

EFERTHEGE - NEFR 2RT/\REES
GREN ARG REFHFEEFS SR
MECRAGZIERENMT

Number of
Board Number of
meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
HES HES
BOEEY BITRR
RPN RERE
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Hong Tianzhu (Chairman) AR (E ) 7/8 I
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and KKK (BILEFITHAEE) 8/8 1/1
Chief Executive Officer)
Ye Lixin (appointed on 27 May 2024) B 3/3 N/A
(RZE-_MFERA=-++HZME) (Note) (Note)
(Kt72) (B17)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BV FEHTESE :
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence SFER 8/8 1/1
Cheng Longdi TR & 1% 7/8 1/1
Tao Xiaoming b i8R 6/8 1/1

The Board is responsible for considering and decision making for
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, investment
plans, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or reappointment, material contracts and transactions
as well as other significant policies and financial matters. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board.

Notes:

Mr. Ye Lixin was appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2024, his
attendance was stated by reference to the number of Board meetings and
general meetings held since his appointment. In compliance with Rule 3.09D
of the revised Listing Rules which took effect on 31 December 2023, Mr. Ye
Lixin obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules
on 9 May 2024, and he has confirmed that he has understood his
obligations as a director of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days' notice
of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
company secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as
practicable for other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before the
same will be tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the company
secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

Ms. Ng Sau Mei, an external service provider, is the company
secretary of the Company. Her primary contact person at the
Company is Mr. Hong Tianzhu (an executive Director and chairman
of the Board). In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Ng had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant and in compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG
Code, the Company would arrange and fund suitable continuous
professional development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, the Company had provided all the Directors with
regular updates regarding the Company’s performance as well as
updates on latest amendments and developments to the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the Securities
Code") regarding securities transactions by Directors and officers on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code (“Model Code") for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each Director of the
Company first on his/her appointment and thereafter twice
annually, 30 days and 60 days before the date of the Board
meetings to approve the Company’s interim results and annual
results respectively, with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives of the Company until after such results
have been published, and that all his dealings must be conducted in
accordance with the Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, the Directors are required to notify
Mr. Hong Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a Director (other than
himself/herself) designated by the Board for the specific purpose
(each a “Designated Director”) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement from such Designated Director before dealing in
the securities and derivatives of the Company.

The Company, having made specific enquiry on all the Directors,
confirms that all the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Code and the Model Code during
the Year.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang is the vice chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Cheng Longdi,
Professor Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for an initial term of one year commencing
from their respective date of appointment as an INED renewable
automatically for successive term of one year each commencing
from the next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the independent non-executive
Director or the Company expiring at the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter. The Company has paid an annual director’s fee
of HKD220,000 to Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, HKD150,000 to
Professor Cheng Longdi and HKD180,000 to Professor Tao Xiaoming
for the year ended 31 December 2024. Save for the above directors’
fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors has received
any other remuneration for holding their office as an independent
non-executive Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (the “"Nomination
Committee”) and an environmental, social and governance
committee (the “ESG Committee”), each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of the committees, which are kept by the company
secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees
are required to report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures and
arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned on page 30 in the
section “The Board” above, have been adopted for the committee
meetings so far as practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee since
November 2004, which currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. The
Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of reference which are
in line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice in
accordance with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all directors’” and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(©) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, this should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

(e)  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

) to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h)  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and

(i) to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. Two
committee meetings were held during the Year to review and
discuss the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of both the executive Directors and senior
management and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

EEZEg @)

yMEES (&

" RARLEARTEERSMEEAR
FhHE FRAR SR IE AL 3 E E 2R XA Y
B MERZERERA OGN B
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HE KRR — B HREEEAHIRR—
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B EIMEE -

YR EesFRAELAR—REE - FAE
RITMAZESEH  UERLTWESZHA
THMBRERE  THATEERSRER
BewMrBRnESeRftrs mMEKEZ
HEBRESFINT

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee members ZEERE HE BTEESERZRE
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence EPER 2/2
Tao Xiaoming b8 & A 2/2
Cheng Longdi TERERR 2/2

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their
respective contractual terms under their employment or service
contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and key
employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in April 2014 and which had expired in April 2024. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on
pages 66 to 68 and note 27 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 2004,
the current members of the Audit Committee are all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The chairman
of the Audit Committee is Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
has adopted terms of reference, which are in line with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy
if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(@)  to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any issues related
to the resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b)  to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(c)  to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(d)  to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company's annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company's annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports before submission to the Board;

(e)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to

discuss;

() to review the Company's financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;
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ERELIRE (B)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(@)

to discuss with the management the risk management and
internal control systems and ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

to consider any findings of major investigations of risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Three EZZESBFEELBRAMAEE - FRAE

committee meetings were held during the Year and the attendance BOI=ZREEGEH MENEZLEBRH
of each member is set out as follows: AT

Number of committee

meeting attended/held

Committee members ZEEHE HE /" BITZEEEBEZRE

Shu Wa Tung, Laurence ATER 3/3

Tao Xiaoming F8 & A 3/3

Cheng Longdi TRER 3/3

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had FRNRT2 G BREEGDRITZIER
performed the work as summarised below: oanT

U]

(in

(iff)

(iv)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “2023 Final Audit”);

reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings in relation to
the 2023 Final Audit;

reviewed the financial statements and reports for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and for the six months ended
30 June 2024; and

assisted the Board in its review of the effectiveness of internal
control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management functions of the
Group.

(i)

(iif)

(iv)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the establishment of
the Nomination Committee which became effective on 1 April 2012.
The current members of Nomination Committee comprises an
executive Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong
Tianzhu and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor
Cheng Longdi. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice in accordance with the Company’'s policy if considered
necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’'s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c)  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on:

(i) the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills, knowledge
and experience required from members of the Board;

(i) the policy on the terms of employment of non-executive
Directors;

(i) the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and other board committees of the

Company;

(iv)  proposed changes to the structure, size and composition
of the Board,;

(v)  candidates suitably qualified to become members of the
Board;
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EXREoHE (1)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

the re-election by shareholders of the Company of any
Directors who are to retire by rotation having regard to
their performance and ability to continue to contribute
to the Board;

the continuation (or not) in service of any independent
non-executive Director serving more than nine years
and to provide recommendation to the shareholders of
the Company as to how to vote in the resolution
approving the re-election of such independent
non-executive Director;

the appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive; and

the policy concerning diversity of Board members;

(e)  to give full consideration to the following in the discharge of
its duties as mentioned above or elsewhere in these terms of
reference:

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

succession planning of Directors;

leadership needs of the Group with a view of
maintaining or fostering the competitive edge of the
Group over others;

changes in market environment and commercial needs
of the market in which the Group operates;

the skills and expertise required from members of the
Board;

the Board’s policy concerning diversity of Board
members adopted from time to time; and

the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of a listed issuer;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

) in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered into
by any members of the Group with its director or proposed
director, which require the prior approval of the shareholders
of the Company at general meeting under Rule 13.68 of the
Listing Rules, to review and provide recommendations to the
shareholders of the Company (other than shareholders who
are directors with a material interest in the relevant service
contracts and their respective associates) as to whether the
terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable and
whether such service contracts are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole, and to advise
shareholders on how to vote;

(g)  to ensure upon the appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out
what is expected of them in terms of time commitment,
committee service and involvement outside meetings of the
Board;

(h)  to conduct interviews with any Director upon their resignation
in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure; and

(i) to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held during the Year to review the
structure and composition of the Board and the re-election of the
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retiring Directors and the attendance of each member is set out as MEHIAT
follows:
Number of committee
meeting attended/held
Committee members ZEEHE HE BITZEE8B2RE
Hong Tianzhu R /1
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence ATER /1
Tao Xiaoming ba B BA /1
Cheng Longdi TRER /1
In addition to the committee meetings, the Nomination Committee REEEgRI) REZESTREBAENE

also dealt with matters relating to the nomination of Mr. Ye Lixin for

appointment as an executive Director by way of written resolution
during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

The Company has established the ESG Committee since 23 August
2021, which currently comprises an executive Director of the
Company, namely Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and three independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, namely
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor
Cheng Longdi. The chairman of the ESG Committee is
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. The ESG Committee has adopted written terms
of reference. The ESG Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company's policy if
considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the ESG Committee are:

(i) to formulate and review the Company’s concepts, strategies,
frameworks, principles and policies in respect of
environmental protection, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility, make relevant
recommendations to the Board and implement the
environmental protection, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility policies formulated by the
Board;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility policies and practices to ensure compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(i) to take measures to promote the Company’s environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility, and formulate corporate objectives, goals, key
performance indicators and measures to ensure performance
in response to the areas of environmental protection,
corporate governance and corporate social responsibility (as
appropriate);

(iv)  to monitor expenditures arising from Company's environmental
protection, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibility work; and

(v)  to review the annual “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” and make recommendations to the Board for
approval.
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ERECOHSE(R)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EExZEE®)
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (Continued) RE -HERERZER (F)
The ESG Committee shall meet at least once a year. One committee ESG?i’é\h BRVBIT—REHE - FABEE
meeting was held during the Year and the attendance of each T—REEEEE  MEKEZHEBRET
member is set out as follows: ZZD—IT :
Number of committee

meeting attended/held
Committee members ZEERE HE BITZESSBEZRHY
Zhu Yongxiang RIKFE /1
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence ATER /1
Tao Xiaoming fa B BA /1
Cheng Longdi TRER /1
DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EEREEE

The director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination Policy”) of RAREFREBR ([EFREBER] 8EH
the Company aims to set out the criteria and process in the WARTIREBREZFZESHEIREF  BR
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company; ensure ESHEBYATRRIEBITHRE &5
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of REZTEE  RERESENFEUERERH
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure the Board BEAG o

continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors %%%% REEEE
The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as BERREANZRERAT -
follows:

bringing an independent view and judgment and make . PR  BE - XH BB BR FZE

constructive recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, LERBTENFEEIEE L BB ER R
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and e R IR At R M

standards of conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise; . REEBENZEREGIERSER
serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee . fREREZZES FTHNEZEGRIERZE
and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for B (MAFNITESHEEA) UL EM
Non-Executive Director) and other relevant Board Committees, MHAEELE e (WEHS

if invited;

devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s) . HEFER UIRBHNENZEEERA

on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit FEEE AMAREER2EESEM
from his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and LEZGRANZESXERNERRE &
qualifications and diversity through attendance and R BEERREBARZTES

participation in the Board;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors
(Continued)

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance;

ensuring the Nomination Committee on which he or she serves
to perform the powers and functions conferred on them by
the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to
consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an INED with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Nomination process
(@) Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable).

(i) The Nomination Committee should then, assess based
on the relevant information available to it, recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.
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ERECOHSE(R)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

44

Appointment of New Director (Continued)

(iv)

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and the
Board should make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

()

(i)

(ifi)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring Director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring Director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or
re-elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting,
the relevant information of the candidate will be
disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing
Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to re-elect an
individual as an INED at the general meeting, it should set out
in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

()

the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected and
the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;
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EXREoHE (1)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(c)

Re-election of INED at General Meeting (Continued)

(i) if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
Director Nomination Policy and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs, to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations from time to
time and maintain good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account diversity including gender
diversity. The Nomination Committee will regularly review the
measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness to achieve diversity
on the Board. The following measurable objectives have been set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy:

inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors and there shall be at least one female member on
the Board;

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge
and skills in different aspects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved. All 6 members of the Board have overseas working
experience and 2 out of 6 members of the Board have accounting
or other professional qualifications. The Board is also a mixed-gender
Board with female representation brought by Professor Tao
Xiaoming, an independent non-executive Director. The Board
recognises the importance and benefits of gender diversity at Board
level and shall continue to take initiatives to identify suitable female
candidates for board succession planning and enhancement of
gender diversity in the Board. To increase gender diversity on the
Board, the Board has actively sought out candidates who are
qualified and suitable. At present, the Nomination Committee
considers that an appropriate balance of gender and skills diversity
of the Board is maintained. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the Group's business needs and consider further appointment of
female directors as appropriate. In order to build a pipeline of
potential successors for the Board to increase gender diversity in the
Board in the upcoming years, the Group will also proactively provide
trainings to our senior managements to create an inclusive
workplace and may also work with human resources firms to
identify potential successors for the Board.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed candidate
to the Board for approval of an appointment.

Set forth below are the gender ratio in the Group’s workforce as at
31 December 2024:
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Male (%) Female (%)
S (%) L (%)
Directors = 833 16.7
Workforce (including senior management) TEEK(RRERRAEERE) 53.1 46.9

Based on the existing composition of the workforce, the
management has deemed that the workforce has more or less
achieved gender parity and no targets have been set. The targets
will be revisited periodically based on a range of criteria, including
current and expected size of each department in the future,
changes in the number of female staff members in each
department, and the needs of each department with reference to
the Group's business development plans.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a Director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior
management will subsequently conduct such briefing as is
necessary to give the new Directors more detailed information on
the Group's businesses and activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND ESG
COMMITTEE

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the effectiveness of the
corporate governance and system of internal non-financial controls
of the Group. The Board shall introduce and propose relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to
ensure a high standard of corporate governance practices in the
Group.

During the Year, the Board regularly reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors,
and the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements. The Board has also reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosures in the
previous financial year's Corporate Governance Report. In August
2021, the Company established the ESG Committee to oversee and
report to the Board on matters relating to environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") practices of the Group and to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements on ESG including
corporate governance principles applicable to the Company. For
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Board Committees”
above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from finance department, the financial statements of the
Group. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the Companies
Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in the Auditor's Report
on pages 84 to 92.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will assist the
Group to fully achieve its strategic objective by identifying and
assessing all the risk exposure of the Group and setting down
corresponding control measures, with a view to attain the long-term
vision of the Group. We believe that effective risk management and
internal controls system will enhance shareholders’ value in the long
term. The risk faced by the Group directly relates to its control
measures and mitigation plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BER&B &)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) EEEER AT ELE(E)
Framework (Continued) ER(E)

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls framework Bt NEBSREREERASEFERAT
of the Group is as follows:

The Board Audit Committee
E=g ) EREEE

*  To set strategic objectives » To assist the Board in

*  To assume overall responsibility for the Group’s risk monitoring risk exposure,
management and internal controls system design and operating

* To assess and determine the nature of the risks and our effectiveness of the

level of tolerance for each of them underlying risk

»  To review the effectiveness of our risk management and management and internal
internal controls system controls system

»  To provide direction on the importance of risk *  To monitor and review

the effectiveness of the
internal audit department

management and risk management culture

- HTUEEEERE

- 2ESEAEENEREERNDEERS - BPEFeEmERMO -
- THERETRROMEEARETRE TARAER B2 & A EDES R
- A AEEERREERNBEERAN BRI B AEAERIR

+ REREENERMEREREEREMAES C %ﬁ%@%ﬁm%%%%ﬁﬁ

N Risk Management and

Internal Controls Team
RE= AR EEA M

To assist the Audit
Committee in
reviewing the
effectiveness of our
risk management and
internal controls
system

To perform analysis
and independent
assessment on the
adequacy and
effectiveness of our
risk management and
internal control system

WBhEZZ B s
REEERERE R
AP EEHZE AT B AR
HEMEREE R
WEEIE R B EB
FE R A7 A
BT

To design, implement,
and monitor risk
management and
internal controls
system

To assess the risk
profile of the Group
and each of our
operating units and the
risk control measures
To give confirmation to
the Board on the
effectiveness of the
risk management and
internal controls
functions
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group’s risk management and internal
control framework conforms to the internal controls framework of
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) in the following five aspects:

. Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization structure and
delegated powers necessary to perform different business
functions to management at different levels but it is subject
to the limit set by the Board. The Board meets regularly to
discuss and approve the business strategies and working
plans set by each operating units. The Group will report our
financial performance to the Board on a monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very transparent
to employees. We hope to build up risk awareness and
internal controls responsibility in our corporate culture by
creating an internal organizational environment driven by the
management operating philosophy, risk awareness, integrity
and ethical values.

. Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the risks that are
most relevant to the success of the Group based on the
possibility of occurrence and the impact on the financial
result of the risk. Risk management and internal controls team
is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessment, as well as taking care of the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Meanwhile, it requires department heads from each of the
operating units to identify operating risks from the bottom in
order to determine the major risks and the risk levels of the
Group.

. Control Activities

The Group has policy and procedure in place for all business
functions, including authorization, approval and audit,
recommendation, performance review, asset protection and
division of duty, to ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

. Information and Communication

The risk management and internal controls team performs risk
assessment and prepare the “Annual Report of Risk
Management” at least once a year, which sets out the
identified risks and related control procedures. The report will
be submitted to the Board and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

. Monitoring

The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by internal
review and circulating major control procedures to its
employees to maintain continuous monitoring of the internal
control procedures. Rectification will be made according to
findings of the control procedures in order to improve
internal monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been set up by
the Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (executive
Director, vice chairman of the Board and chief executive officer), and
members including general manager and department head from
each of our operating units, and general managers and department
head of finance and human resources department of our
subsidiaries. Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director and chairman
of the Board, acts as the advisor of the working team.

Major Tasks

Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk management
and internal controls team:

The team shall formulate proposal and plan for building and
promotion of corporate culture in risk awareness and lead in
providing risk management training.

The team shall prepare and conduct annual and interim reviews
on risk profile and formulate mitigating measures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Major Tasks (Continued)

52

The team shall summarize and analyze the findings of the
review exercise, advise any modification to the risk
management strategy, lead and assist relevant departments in
formulating counter measures in addressing any material risks.

[t shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its own risk
management function, lead and mobilize the establishment
and modification of risk management and internal controls
system, give guidance to subsidiaries on initiation of setting up
of risk management system.

It shall prepare the "Annual Report on Risk Management” and
submit the same to our Audit Committee for review and
approval.

It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the relevant risk
management and internal controls system and to oversee its
implementation, to give guidance and assist the subsidiaries
on setting up and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.

[t shall be responsible for the organization, compiling of
minutes and oversight of implementation of relevant
resolutions concerning the risk management function in the
meetings of the Audit Committee and Board meetings.

It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by implementing
the measures stipulated therein and to monitor the work rate
and efficiency of such implementation on an ongoing basis,
and advise on remedy in a timely manner.

It shall monitor the status and development of any risk events
and formulate and devise contingency plan in a timely
manner, to forthwith report or inform the Audit Committee
on such matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls Team (Continued)

Work Accomplished During the Year

Our risk management and internal controls team held a meeting
during the Year, and reported once to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the annual risk assessment and findings of internal
controls review. The team accomplished the following work during
the Year:

1. issued relevant documents on risk assessment and internal
controls within the Group to enhance its risk management
culture;

2. performed a general review on the major risk exposure of the
Group, especially in areas relating to raw material purchase,
foreign exchange and exchange rate, credit management and
taxation;

3. discussed the possible risk and impact on operating result with
department heads from each of our operating units;

4. reviewed and improved corresponding internal controls
measure; and

5. prepared and submitted the annual report on risk assessment
and internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 22 to 29.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. For the Year, our
Board had conducted its annual review of the representations made
by the management in respect of the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls, and considered that the Group's
risk management and internal controls system and processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance were effective and
adequate. No significant areas of weaknesses and deficiency that
might have affected the financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Group were identified. The
Board is of the view that the resources, training programmes,
qualification and experience of staff and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company's ESG performance and reporting
and their training and budget are adequate.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)

The risk management and internal controls system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our
business objectives. Like all other systems, it could not entirely
eliminate the impact of all unforeseeable risks and events beyond
our control that might emerge and occur during the course of our
operation. Consequently, the Board may only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that there was no significant
misstatement or loss.

Disclosure of Inside Information

Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced in a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to
the public through channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4. has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorized use of confidential and inside information; and

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the
implementation of the Continuous Disclosures Policy and
relevant trainings are also provided.

External Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the Year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set
out as follows:
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Fees paid/payable

Services rendered to the Group m K R R e ELER

RMB’000

ARBF T

Annual audit service FEEZRG 3,500
Non-audit services (including consulting service FEBIZ RIS (BIEXZREH L - EE
for shared service center, transfer pricing and EEMBIERE AR R EE

tax and preliminary announcement of results) — RAMEIHRERZF) 3,884

Total: A& 7,384
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars that are posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Company's annual general meeting (the "AGM”) is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The chairman actively responded to shareholders’ enquiries at the
AGM held during the Year. A separate resolution had been
proposed by the chairman in respect of each issue to be considered
at the AGM. An AGM circular and AGM notice had been distributed
to all shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) and the
Listing Rules, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The chairman explained
the procedures for conducting a poll at the beginning of the AGM,
and answered any questions from shareholders regarding voting by
way of poll.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the “Shareholders”, each
a “Shareholder”) of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM") of the Company are prepared in
accordance with Article 64 of the Articles:

1. One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than 8% of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
“Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by the Directors
for the transaction of any business specified therein.

2. Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

3. The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such Requisition.

4. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within
21 days of the deposit of such Requisition, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall
be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for raising enquiries

1.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, details of which are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of this annual report.
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2. Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of 2. M EAUERABEXRTHEAR
the Company via email at the email address of the Company b 4 main@texhong.com#e ) £ T—Jﬁ Fé% $
at main@texhong.com. NAIME -

3. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together 3. WARERIRHMRER - B TSR

with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.

Procedures and contact details for putting forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings

AR BB DA A BB R R (B FE

RERAEREEZNEFRFMABEESN

1. To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, 1. ARARAREAZELRZE u%z Vel
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its PAEERR %L%UL%J) A & 48
proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact Bt E R} B EXRZEARNQ A EIH

information via email at the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

iJJ:main@texhong.com °

2. The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be 2. $ AgMARR B BRHBPEL
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong PEBRZERRE MO REENR - RESERKRD
Kong and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar BEEZN &Eﬁﬁwu\ﬂxi{’ﬁﬂjﬂ’jﬁﬂiﬁ%
that the request is proper and in order and made by a ENEER EECETEAEAEB
Shareholder, the Board determines whether to include the WA RZEMARR RS HEEAN -
Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting to be set out
in the notice of meeting.

3. The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for 3. B EMBEREERBERASEEZEZ

56

consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(i) Notice of not less than 21 clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting;

(i) Notice of not less than 14 clear days in writing if the

Proposal requires approval in meeting other than an
annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. Through the
communication with Shareholders via various channels as outlined
above, the Board was able to receive invaluable feedback and
opinion from Shareholders. The Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the above shareholders’ communication policy
during the Year and, based on the Shareholder engagement
through the communication channels available, concluded that it
was effective. We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and development. Any views and suggestions
from our Shareholders are also welcome to enhance our
transparency.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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EFRGRERRE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 57, is an executive Director and chairman
of the Group. He is the founder of the Group and was appointed as
executive Director on 27 July 2004. He is responsible for the
strategic development and strategic deployment, project investment
and decision-making for major issues, leadership and policy
decision-making for establishment of corporate culture of the Group.
He has over 20 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to
establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was a vice general manager of &
TIBLREHEEBR QA (injang Yifeng Garment Weaving
Company Limited). Mr. Hong's interest in the shares of HK$0.10 each
in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) is disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 58, is an executive Director, vice
chairman and chief executive officer of the Group. He was
appointed as executive Director on 27 July 2004. He is responsible
for the strategy implementation, operational planning and
decision-making, decision-making for major issues and
organizational implementation of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated
from the FI##%54E T EBT (Nantong Textile Industry College) in
1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr. Zhu was an assistant to
the general manager of B2 — &4 4B (Nantong No. 2 Cotton
Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu's interest in the Shares of the Company is
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation” in this annual report.

Mr. Ye Lixin, aged 44, is an executive Director, who joined the
Group in 2020 and has been appointed as the financial controller of
the Group since the beginning of 2023, and is responsible for
corporate finance and financial management of the Group. He was
appointed as an executive Director with effect from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May
2024, and is also the director of various subsidiaries of the Group. He
has over 20 years of working experience in corporate finance and
financial management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ye served as
the group chief financial officer of a German-funded construction
machinery manufacturer from July 2018 to July 2020. From
September 2007 to June 2018, Mr. Ye worked for a well-known
large construction machinery manufacturer and successively served
as director of finance and controlling department in China and
director of finance and controlling department in Asia-Pacific. Mr. Ye
graduated from East China University of Science and Technology
(FERIE T K E) with a master’s degree in Business Administration.
He is also a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2023. Mr. Shu has over 30 years of experience in audit, corporate
finance, investment banking and financial management. He joined
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) in 1994 and later became a
manager of the Reorganisation Services Group of Deloitte and
joined Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited (a corporate
finance service company of Deloitte) as a manager from 2001 to
2002. From 2002 to 2005, Mr. Shu was an associate director of
Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited. From May 2005 to July 2008, he
served as the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company, overseeing the group’s financial management functions.
From July 2008 to June 2010, Mr. Shu served as the chief financial
officer of Rongsheng Heavy Industries Holdings Limited (JA%E& T
TR&FMR/AF]) and oversaw the group’s financial management
functions and corporate finance activities as well as the daily
management of the group’s finance department. From July 2010 to
July 2018, he served as the chief financial officer of Petro-king
QOilfield Services Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2178) and was responsible for the group’s
financial, accounting and legal functions. From August 2018 to
November 2019, Mr. Shu served as the chief financial officer of
Brainhole Technology Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2203) and was responsible for its overall
financial strategies and daily financial function. Mr. Shu is an
independent non-executive director of Chengdu Expressway Co., Ltd.
(@ company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:
1785) from November 2016 to September 2022, Riverine China
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1417) since November 2017, Twintek
Investment Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, stock code: 6182) since December 2017,
Goldstream Investment Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1328) since December 2019 and
Zero Fintech Group Limited (formerly known as “Termbray Industries
International (Holdings) Limited”) (@ company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 0093) since April 2022. Mr. Shu
has been the chief financial officer of ContiOcean Environment Tech
Group Co,, Ltd. (“ContiOcean”, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2613) since September 2020, he was
appointed as a director of ContiOcean in December 2022 and
re-designated as an executive director of ContiOcean in July 2024.
Mr. Shu graduated from Deakin University, Australia in 1994 with a
bachelor degree in Business majoring in Accounting. He received his
CPA accreditation from the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs in 1997
and is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of CPAs. He
also completed his CFO Programme at BB FR T & 220t (China
Europe International Business School) in 2009. He has been a
member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Directors
Association since May 2019. He also received an executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Washington University in St.
Louis in the United States in May 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 March 2014. Professor Tao
is an elected fellow of The Textile Institute, the American Society of
Mechanical Engineers, the Royal Academy of Arts and Design and
Commerce of the United Kingdom, and has been the chair professor
in Textile Technology at the Institute of Textiles and Clothing of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University since April 2002. She was elected
as the world president of The Textile Institute for a tenure of three
years from May 2007. Professor Tao received a bachelor's degree in
textile engineering from China Textile University (/7 B4 4% K )
(currently known as Donghua University (3% K £2) of the PRC in
January 1982 and a doctorate degree in textile physics from
University of New South Wales in August 1987. From September
1987 to September 1988 and from October 1990 to September
1994, she had been a scientist of the Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From October 1988 to
January 1990, she had been a lecturer of Donghua University.
Professor Tao was a recipient of prestigious individual awards of the
field: the honorary fellowship of the Textile Institute in 2010, the
founder award of the Fiber Society of the United States in 2013, and
Guanghua Engineering Scientific and Technological Award of
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2020. With seven academic
monographs, over 800 research papers published and over 41
patents granted, she has been internationally recognised in
particular for her pioneering work on smart textiles and clothing and
textile engineering such as low-twist yarns, solospun yarns and
fabric sensing technology which have been widely applied in the
textile industry.

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 November 2004.
Professor Cheng obtained his doctorate degree in textile
engineering from Donghua University in 2002 and has obtained the
membership of the China Textile Engineering Society. He is currently
a professor (2nd grade) in College of Textiles and a deputy director
of the Key Laboratory of Textile Science and Technology of
Donghua University. Professor Cheng is a member of the expert
committee of each of the following institutions: the China Cotton
Textile Association of New Technology (as a deputy director), the
China Knitting Industrial Association, the China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the China Textile Machinery Association.
Professor Cheng was an engineer of the China Textile Academy
(formerly known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 59, is a vice president of the Group and director
of our grey fabric production and management center. Mr. Sha
obtained his bachelor's degree in textile from %5 T ¥ 257
(Wuxi Light Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 30 years of
experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1998,
he was a factory manager of one of the factories of F B2 — 184
£ (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 61, is a vice president of the Group and
general manager of Taizhou business segment. Mr. Hu graduated
from #8583 K22 (Wuxi Professional University) in textile in 1984
Mr. Hu has over 30 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was a vice general manager of &5 EER R AR (Wuxi Xieda
Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group and
director of the yarn production and management center of the
Group. He is responsible for the yarn production of the Group.
Mr. Cao graduated from 3B %54 T 2F% (Nantong Textile Industry
College) with a bachelor's degree in textile engineering in 1994.
Mr. Cao has over 26 years of experience in the textile industry. He
joined the Group in 2000, and served as the director of yarn
technology of the Group.
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Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
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Ms. Ng Sau Mei
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
submit their report together with the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 41 to the accompanying financial statements.

Business segments

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics. Business analysis of
revenue, segment results, total assets and capital expenditure are set
out in note 5 to the accompanying financial statements.

Geographical segments

The Group mainly operates its business in China, Southeast Asia and
the Americas. Geographical analysis of revenue, segment results,
total assets and capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the
accompanying financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance, position and likely future development of the
Company’s business as well as important events since the end of
the year and principal risks facing the Company, please refer to the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance of such rules and
regulations on the business. During the year ended 31 December
2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
maintaining the highest environmental and social standards to
ensure sustainable development of its business. The Group
understands that a better future depends on everyone's
participation and contribution. All employees are encouraged to
participate in environmental and social activities which benefit the
community as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group advocates cleaner production and pursues both
environmental and economic benefits through means such as
reducing pollutant emissions, improving energy efficiency and
reducing material consumption. The Group also advocates
conservation of resources in office and encourages employees to
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

Details of the Group's environmental policies and performance can
be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Group dated 27 March 2025.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are its valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration packages of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the Directors or senior management have maintained
good communication, exchanged feedback and shared business
updates with them when appropriate. During the year ended 31
December 2024, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 93 of this
annual report.

The Board recommends a payment of final dividend of HKDO.1 per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2024.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 28 to the
accompanying financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note
14 to the accompanying financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 26 to the accompanying financial statements.

The Company did not hold any treasury shares (as defined in the
Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s distributable reserves as at 31 December 2024 are
set out in note 39 to the accompanying financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed
securities (including sale of treasury shares) by the Company or its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2024.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on
7 April 2014 (the "Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
Group. All directors, employees and other eligible participants under
Chapter 17 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) are eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme.
The Share Option Scheme was in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, and expired on 6 April 2024.
Since then, no further options can be granted under the Share
Option Scheme, and no shares are available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue of HK$0.10
each in the share capital of the Company (“Shares”) on the Adoption
Date (the “General Scheme Limit"). The Company may renew the
General Scheme Limit with Shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of the Shareholders’ approval.

No options remained outstanding as at 1 January 2024 and 31
December 2024, and no options have been granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

As at 1 January 2024, the number of options available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme was 85468,117. As the Share
Option Scheme had expired on 6 April 2024, there would not be
any further grant of options thereunder.

Unless approved by Shareholders of the Company, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit").

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal consideration
of HKS1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option, subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof. Vesting period of any
options granted under the Share Option Scheme was from the date
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period required
under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option before
it can be exercised.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme as to the fair value of
the share options granted are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements. The fair values of share options calculated using the
binomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due
to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the
model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself. The fair
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Ye Lixin (appointed on 27 May 2024)
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence*

Professor Cheng Longdi*

Professor Tao Xiaoming*

* Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
Mr. Hong Tianzhu and Professor Tao Xiaoming will retire as Directors
by rotation and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, each being
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of one year, and will continue thereafter
for successive terms of one year until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Ye Lixin, an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years, and will
continue thereafter for successive terms of one year until terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other expiring at the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.
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ESTHREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Each of Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi, all being independent non-executive
Directors, has been appointed for an initial term of one year
commencing from their respective dates of appointment as an INED
renewable automatically for a successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of the then current
term, unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service contracts entered into by the Company with each of the
Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during the
year ended 31 December 2024, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the limitations
specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for the benefit of the
executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify and hold harmless any Directors on demand from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and expenses,
including without limitation, any proceedings brought against such
Directors, arising from the performance of his duties pursuant to his
appointment under the service contracts, so far as permitted by law,
except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the default, neglect,
omission or fraud of the executive Directors. The Company has also
taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, no claims were made against the
Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE HIGHEST
PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis during
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 40 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in note 8 to the accompanying
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration of the
senior management by band is set out as follows:

BEL - AUBESHZ2ESE EERER
EEECHME

HE-_T-_NF+-_A=+—HILFERNRE
?a%%+2§$@ﬁﬂﬁa¢l B BEMT Z B S Rk
MIFE40 o

BE_FT_NF+_A=T—HLEFEARAZA
fIfx = # AL Z BRI BN 2 B 75 R M aF
8o

MTRBE-_F_NF+_A=+—HLFE
BREREZHINGE DT -

Number of
Remuneration bands senior management
Mg E SREEEAY
Below RMB1,000,000 AR 1,000, oooﬁL‘A N 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,001 782 A R 2,000,0007C 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR #2000,001 72 A R 3,000,0007C 1
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR #3000,001 782 A R #4,000,0007C 0
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR #4000,001 72 A R ¥ 5,000,0007C 0
Above RMB5,000,000 A R #5,000,0007C A + 0
REMUNERATION POLICY 3B BUR

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to the legal framework, market condition and performance
of the Group and individual staff including the Directors. The
remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee, which are contained in the paragraph
headed “Remuneration Committee” under the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 8 to the accompanying financial statements.

All of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are defined
contribution schemes. All contributions are vested immediately
when contributed and no contribution may be forfeited to reduce
the existing levels of contributions by the Group.
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EFTHEM)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above, there was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company, or which subsisted, during or at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2024.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 58 to 61 of
this annual report.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Below is the changes in information relating to the Directors during
the Year required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules:

—  Mr. Ye Lixin has been elected as an executive Director by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
with effect from the conclusion thereof held on 27 May 2024.
Since then, he has also been appointed as director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. For further information regarding
Mr. Ye Lixin and his appointment, please refer to the circular
and the announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2024
and 27 May 2024, respectively.

—  The terms of remuneration of Mr. Hong Tianzhu and Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang had been amended to allow them a special bonus
for a particular financial year to be determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion with reference to their performance
with effect from 18 April 2024.

—  The annual director’s fee paid to each of the independent
executive Directors for the Year were adjusted as follows:
HKD220,000 to Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, HKD150,000 to
Professor Cheng Longdi and HKD180,000 to Professor Tao
Xiaoming.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE

ESRFETHRAEREQFREM

MBOEE 2R G - HEROREEE

COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFQ"), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

ZREBRKRRE

R-ZE-MWME+-—A=+—H ARRIZES
FEETHRABRARRREMBEEZE (E&
RBEBEDE SN EEZFREBEED ([F 5 & E
BAEHI]) EXVED) 2 B fh  BERG & EEE
RIEERIEES R BAE GG FE 352105 - LENA
REIATHEZECLMAZEZ AR © iR
B ETRBIATE A IZEST AR E AU E M
BMARNB MR 2 EE KRBT

Name of Number of
Group member/ ordinary shares
Name of directors associated corporation (Note 1) Approximate
of the Company TEEREAT Nature of interest ZEREE percentage
ARmESHR HEEE A8 EEMEE (Hiat1) BHBEI T
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
AR AE YiN/NEE]! corporation(s) (Note 2)
PRYEHDE AR (H152)
the Company Beneficial owner 5,400,000 (L) 0.59%
PAN/NE] BEnEAA
550,142,400 (L) 59.93%
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of controlled 219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
ROKFESLAE PiN/N) corporation(s) (Note 3)
PESDE AR (H1t3)
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence the Company Beneficial owner 80,000 0.01%

EFERSLL

ENNET

EmlEAA
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EFTHEM)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by New Green
Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu; and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New
Green Group Limited. Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong Tianzhu is a director of
Texhong Group Holdings Limited, New Green Group Limited and
Trade Partner Investments Limited.

3. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang; and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a director of
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2024, the
interests or short position of the persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BEERFETHRAERAQATREM
BB LzEz2RM HEROREESE
ZREBERRE (E)

Bz
1. LIRKZALRED 25 -

2. % 55 544,742,400 A% % 17 52 392,842,400 % SANew
Green Group Limited (E & 8 2 8 /TR A EE
Texhong Group Holdings Limited Bz # A + it
AREE B HAERE 1000 ) L& RIER
Bz5EA AR 1 151,900,0000% A Trade Partner
Investments Limited (kK40 %5 4 35 #8 New Green
Group LimitedBEm A H2HMEHETRMH
5744%%Em) RERIFREREBAEL IR
BEF RBEGRD] - R E EWR B New
Green Group Limited &2 Trade Partner Investments
Limited ¥ 8 Z I A IR L Bz o R K&
#Texhong Group Holdings Limited * New Green
Group Limited }2Trade Partner Investments

Limited 2 & ©

3. % 55219,900,000 0% % 7 4 68,000,000 A% A
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited (E 2 3F & %
TRABRKELEERHEE) RERIERE
WA AR 151,900,0008% LATrade Partner
Investments Limited (4& 7k #£ & 4 i #@Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited B s A H 2 308 3
TR RI4256% ) AR RIEREREGA
BEED o ARIKEE S A A Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited K& Trade Partner Investments Limited Z &
$ °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

FTERREXRQARMD - HERG K
EERzZERRAE @)

Ordinary Shares of the Company: PAN/NE] o i1 g
Number of
ordinary shares
Name of the Nature of (Note 1) Approximate
substantial shareholders interest ZEREE percentage
TERRHEE LB EEME (Krat1) BHABEDS T
New Green Group Limited Beneficial owner 392,842,400 (L) 42.79%
ERBEAA (Note 2)
(B 7t2)
Interest of controlled corporation(s) 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
B 2 A (Note 3)
(Bt7E3)
544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
Trade Partner Investments Limited Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
E=EAA (Note 3)
(Bt7E3)
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited Beneficial owner 68,000,000 (L) 741%
BEREAA (Note 4)
(Btita)
Interest of controlled corporation(s) 151,900,000 (L) 16.55%
(ETIEIN §~ (Note 3)
(Bt7E3)
219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
Texhong Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation(s) 544,742,400 (L) 59.34%
FTEhl A NHEa  (Notes 2 and 3)
(HteE253)
Ms. Ke Luping Interest of spouse 550,142,400 (L) 59.93%
ML + o {6 s (Note 5)
(Bt7E5)
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang Interest of spouse 219,900,000 (L) 23.95%
HEBLL B B = (Note 6)
(Btite)
Mr. Hui Ching Lau Interest of controlled corporation(s) 64,200,000 (L) 6.99%
B M A PRYESDE AR (Note 7)
(Btat7)
Event Star Limited Beneficial owner 64,200,000 (L) 6.99%
BERBERA (Note 7)
(Bt7t7)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

2. These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued share capital
of which is beneficially owned by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under
the SFO, each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Hong
Tianzhu is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by New

Green Group Limited.

3. These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong
Tianzhu through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang through Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Under the
SFO, each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Texhong Group Holdings Limited,
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, New Green Group Limited and Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held

by Trade Partner Investments Limited.

4, These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under
the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed to be interested in all the

Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

5. Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO, Ms. Ke
Luping is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in

which Mr. Hong Tianzhu is interested.

6. Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang; and as to 151,900,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Trade
Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned as to 42.56% by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited. Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is the spouse
of Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under the SFO, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Zhu

Yongxiang is interested.

7. These 64,200,000 Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Event Star Limited, a company which is 100% controlled by
Mr. Hui Ching Lau. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau is deemed to be

interested in all the Shares held by Event Star Limited.
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EFEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above, at no time during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2024 was the Company, its holding company or either
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enabled the
Directors (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age),
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in or
debenture of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note
38 of the financial statements and in the section headed
“Connected transactions” in this annual report, no Director nor an
entity connected with such director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set out in note
38 of the financial statements and in the section headed
"Connected transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance has been entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and no
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was entered into between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
were not contracts of service with any Director or any person
engaged in full time employment of the Company were entered
into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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ESTHREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the percentages of
purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 5.0%
— five largest suppliers combined 16.2%
Sales
— the largest customer 2.7%
— five largest customers combined 8.4%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital (excluding treasury shares)) had an interest
in the major suppliers or customers of the Group noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had
conducted the following connected transactions which were
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules:

Connected transaction — Photovoltaic installation and
construction and photovoltaic supply chain management
consulting

On 26 April 2024, Shanghai Hongguang Yinyu New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd* (EBMIIXBRFHERBEFR Q)
(“Shanghai Hongguang”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) (for itself and on behalf of other members of the Group)
entered into an agreement (the “Installation and Construction
Agreement”) with Shanghai Hongyun Engineering Construction Co,,
Ltd* (/B E T2 EFZ AR A R]) (“Shanghai Hongyun”) (which is
ultimately owned as to 78% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of
the Board and an executive Director, and 22% by Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang, the chief executive officer of the Group and an executive
Director) for the provision of photovoltaic installation and
construction services to the Group at a maximum consideration of
RMB93.0 million. The consideration of each individual photovoltaic
project constructed was to be paid in instalments with reference to
its construction progress. It was intended that by setting up
photovoltaic projects at the Group's production facilities, utilities
cost of the Group can be reduced in the long run and a stable
supply of energy can be ensured.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Connected transaction — Photovoltaic installation and
construction and photovoltaic supply chain management
consulting (Continued)

On 26 July 2024, the Installation and Construction Agreement was
terminated in order to, among others, allow the parties to adopt a
more flexible service and pricing model for services in relation to
photovoltaic projects and a greater total installed capacity for the
photovoltaic projects, and Shanghai Hongguang (for and on behalf
of other members of the Group) and Shanghai Hongyun (for and on
behalf of certain other companies outside the Group which are
ultimately owned as to 78% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu and as to 22% by
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, each a “Service Provider Entity”) entered into an
agreement (the “Supply Chain Management Consulting Service
Agreement”) for the provision of customised supply chain
management consulting and agency services regarding photovoltaic
projects to the Group at a maximum consideration of RMB170.0
million. The payment terms and schedule in respect of each
photovoltaic power plant constructed under the Supply Chain
Management Consulting Service Agreement shall be more
specifically determined in the corresponding order confirmation to
be signed by the subsidiary and the Service Provider Entity.

For further details of the aforementioned agreements, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 26 April 2024 and
26 July 2024.

Listing Rules implications

Shanghai Hongyun is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Installation and Construction Agreement
and the Supply Chain Management Consulting Service Agreement
constitute connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transaction — Acquisition in Vietham

On 15 March 2024, HK Co and Texhong Industrial Park (which is
ultimately owned as to 78% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of
the Board and an executive Director, and 22% by Mr. Zhu
Yongxiang, the chief executive officer of the Group and an executive
Director) entered into a supplemental agreement to the Asset
Purchase Agreement to allow Texhong Industrial Park a further 12
months, i.e. up until 31 March 2025, to complete the Registration as
more time was needed to, among others, liaise with the local
authorities to understand the proper procedures.

Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated

7 November 2022, 8 December 2022, 3 February 2023, 15 March
2024, 15 April 2024 and 24 March 2025 for further details.
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EFTHEM)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Listing Rules implications

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of its being an associate of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of
the Board and an executive Director. Therefore, the transaction
contemplated under the supplemental agreement to the Asset
Purchase Agreement dated 15 March 2024 constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transaction — 2025 Utilities Supply
Framework Agreement

Further to the abovementioned supplemental agreement and as
mentioned in the section headed “Events after the reporting period”,
on 24 March 2025, HK Co and Texhong Industrial Park agreed to
proceed with the Unwinding in accordance the terms of the Asset
Purchase Agreement (as supplemented). For further information to
the Unwinding, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 24 March 2025.

To ensure sufficient supply of the Required Utilities to the Group's
production facilities in the Hai Ha Industrial Park after the
Unwinding, on 24 March 2025, Texhong Industrial Park and the
Company entered into a utilities supply framework agreement,
pursuant to which Texhong Industrial Park shall supply the Required
Utilities to the Group for its use during the period from 1 April 2025
to 31 December 2025.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 March
2025 for further details.

For the connected relationship between Texhong Industrial Park and
the Company, please refer to section headed “Connected
transaction — Acquisition in Vietnam” above.

Continuing connected transaction — Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement

On 17 January 2023, Texhong Industrial Park and the Company
entered into a framework agreement (the “Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement”) pursuant to
which Texhong Industrial Park shall provide wastewater treatment
services and administrative services (the “Services”) to the Group
with effect from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

BERXRZ (#)

EHRAZEE
AMTEEARAEETTEIFERUTERTARN
FEZBEAN WBARTAZHEEAL -
bt BMR T _ME=A+HBZEERE
g 2 AR T RETRSBR LR
FUABETARAZHEERS -

FERERS — —Z-AFHRHEERGS

B b T R [ 4S R E  | — B A
29 R-F_RE=A—+MA  FEAA
SR 4L T3 B L% 4R 16 2 LU (A
) ZNRFEITHREER - BAMKRZE—FER
FLHMARRBHATS-_AF=A=+WA
/N i

AR AEENEST TEE Y AER MR RE
BESTEMERRAKLEE R-TE-_R1F
—AZ+WmA - RO TXEEEMAKRQFR LB
IRFAKHEER G - Bt - RILTERRE S
R-E_RAFNA—HBE_ZT_RA&+_A=
+— B EA R A 1A S & B 4 R BT AR AR R AR K DA 4R
HHMA -

BRAE— S FLHARABHAE-_T =
AF=ZAZFTMHBEZAMH -

BRRUTIXEREARB 2HBEEBE  F
2R EXTREX S —BEREERE] -

RERERS — KERERTHRRBEERGZ

R-E-_=F—F++tH ROIEERHEARN
RNEFI AR (V5 KERE MITERSIES
Wkl B R TERRBEE-_ZT_=

—B—HEE-_E-_AF+_A=+—HRAK
SERESRKERRE RITERRES ([BRIE]) °

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-[(FEF3H 79



EFEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transaction — Wastewater Treatment
and Administrative Services Framework Agreement
(Continued)

Consideration for the Services was determined with reference to
operating costs attributable to supply of the Services incurred by
Texhong Industrial Park, and/or additional factors where applicable,
such as the grade of the production wastewater which depends on
its components such as colour, acidity and solids content (in the
case of production wastewater treatment services), and prevailing
market prices for comparable services (in the case of domestic
wastewater treatment services).

The annual caps for the Wastewater Treatment and Administrative
Services Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2025 were set at RMB29 million, RMB33 million and
RMB36 million, respectively. The annual caps were determined by
the Directors with reference to the Group's estimated demand for
wastewater treatment services and administrative services for the
three years ending 31 December 2025, which have been assessed
with reference to the estimated output from the available
production capacity of the Group's production facilities at the
Industrial Park and the business development needs of the Group,
respectively. The actual transaction amount under the Utilities
Wastewater Treatment and Administrative Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB15.0 million. The Group has followed the pricing
terms and policies above when determining the price of the
transactions conducted under the Wastewater Treatment and
Administrative Services Framework Agreement during the vyear
ended 31 December 2024.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17
January 2023 for further details of the Wastewater Treatment and
Administrative Services Framework Agreement.

For the connected relationship between Texhong Industrial Park and
the Company, please refer to section headed “Connected
transaction — Acquisition in Vietnam” above.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose of
Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and confirmed that the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Group during the Year were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) either on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditors of the Company,
has issued a letter to the Company to confirm the matters stated in
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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EFTHEM)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related-party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There were no significant investments held during the year ended
31 December 2024, and the Company does not have any future plan
for material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under
the Listing Rules at any time during the financial year ended
31 December 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November 2004. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The rights and duties of the Audit
Committee comply with the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
Group's financial reporting process and internal control system and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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EFEREWR)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 19 March 2012. The
Nomination Committee comprises an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor
Cheng Longdi and Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination
Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with
the code provisions of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 November
2004. The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi.
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has rights and duties
consistent with those set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee is principally responsible for
formulating the Group's policy and structure for all remunerations of
the Directors and senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.
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EFTHEM)
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the ESG Committee on 23 August
2021. The ESG Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (chairman), Prof. Tao Xiaoming, Prof.
Cheng Longdi and Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence. The ESG Committee
is mainly responsible for overseeing and reporting to the Board on
matters relating to ESG of the Group and ensuring compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements on ESG including corporate
governance principles applicable to the Company.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made
charitable contributions amounted to approximately RMB203,000.

LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any
litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance was known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries that would have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition or results of operation of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwc

To the Shareholders of Texhong International Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong International
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 93 to 224, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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i Pricewaterhouse Cooper, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Impairment provision for inventories

B Fopk Kk 1
B FEB %R A R B X E AR A T
BARR : TR HE
7 A

Key Audit Matter
BEEXER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMEFLTEEERELSEENS X

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

AR BmEE

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

e a=Np & )

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised RMB22,672,355,000 of revenue from sales of
goods.

REBEE-_ZT-_NFE+_-_A=+—HItFE E£EBEE
TSR P 88 S WA R A R #22,672,355,0007T °

Revenue is recognised when control of the underlying
products has been transferred to the customers.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the terms stated in sales contract.

WARHEHEERNZEHELERTEPR®R - BE
mMEEETHE RERBRIKEBERCEBRER
F - BREFPEREBHESOMINGETEMER - Bl
BHERA o

86

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
controls in respect of the Group's process of recognition of
sales transactions, including contract approval, recording of
sales based on contract terms, and reconciliations with
customers’ goods receipt notes and cash receipts.

B ERERRIHERH2IRT - BREAAOME - L8k
BE KGR 2 SHE AR P i a BUE RIR & WOk R
BEE FMERZEERERE BB -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and
different locations on a sample basis by examination of the
relevant supporting documents, including sales orders,
invoices, goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt notes
to revenue recorded.

FRREHEE  BERDCHRRAZZEERETFK
BEEFEBRAXMT  RAMEAHE TREP R TR
BELNEA -

We confirmed selected trade receivables balances as at the
balance sheet date. The items tested were selected on a
sample basis by considering the amount, nature and
characteristics of the customers.

BMABCHENNEEABERANEWE ZFIBEH -
AFHIBEE KERREFPEEE MEREHEREER o
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Key Audit Matter
BRELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEERTEERRELBENG E

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of sales
transactions generated in various locations and from
decentralised customers, and thus significant audit time
and resources were devoted in this area, in particular
relating to the occurrence, accuracy and timely
recording of such transactions.

HRETRBEESBNTFEEABHERS &
BN RERAREESZHREER - LHZHE
EAXSMEE EREREFCHEMBEHENETR -

Impairment provision for inventories

FERERE

Refer to Note 4.1 and Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

R A RN 4.1 R M a20 °

Hﬁ/

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's balance of gross
inventories was RMB4,828,694,000, against which a
provision of RMB285,587,000 was made.

RZE-_NFE+=—RA=+—H EEENEGFER
B AR ¥4,8286040007T + 3 ShULIEL A R A
285,587,000 7T K B 4 °

3

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

17 & LARK AN B AT B 3058 B 8K & 51 Bk - AT B3R R (B
REEEBBREPMGEE (HBRMEFEAAR
NEHE TR M hETARA) °

We tested sales transactions that took place shortly before
and after the balance sheet date to assess whether revenue
was recognised in the correct reporting periods.

BHPAAEEABERBARERTARENHERS - AFHE
WA R EHEH S HAER -

We tested post balance sheet date sales return, on a sample
basis, by tracing to the relevant supporting documents of
the original sales and the sales return.

BMEBEHRRBHE NHERE H’J*Hﬁﬁ SR ik
AAEEEERBHARNEHERSE -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
revenue recognition in relation to sales of goods was
supported by the relevant evidences that we have
gathered.

%F%V&F B3R & = B R 7 an 3 B BV WA RERR

S 2 B AP Uk SR AR R B R S -

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s key
controls and assessment process of impairment provision
for inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

BB B B AT ERRE R HE A E A Rk E =/
K- FIanE R - T8 BT REERER RS
HFFSURE - AR AR BEERESFERE
BB BREE I R AT AR - AT R EAE RO E A R

& o
AA

We discussed with management and evaluated the
appropriateness of the method and assumptions used in
impairment provision for inventories.

BB EE i%)ﬁi&ﬁﬁuma W EF AT BORE B s P E A Y
FERBREBERBEE M

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process.

BT EATHENEHNER  NEEEEENGTER
B B o
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Key Audit Matter
BRELEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEERTEERRELSENG £

The estimation of impairment provision for inventories
involves significant management judgements based on
the consideration of key factors such as aging profile,
prior experiences, estimated future selling prices and
sellmg expenses.

FERERBENHE if&%ﬂ%*ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁl%%gf’ﬁ
HEYEAFIE - PIIRAREAR - BERER  JBFHR
KEEBRFEERX

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances,
the significance of the provision to the consolidated
financial statements and the judgement exercised by
management in determining the net realisable value of
the inventories.

BTN LER DERNZFERNRE  REUB
BREBNEEUNEREAETFENTERE
1B R VB L B 1

88

We tested the aging profile of inventories items on a sample
basis by checking to relevant documents including goods
receipt notes.

BFRBZEARNMT (BREEE)  KREERHTR
BB B ERERARETAIR -

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
the provision for inventories.

B REFEREEERE D BRI -

We compared the selling price used in the determination of
net realisable value to actual selling price subsequent to
year end. We assessed the reasonableness and the accuracy
of the estimated selling expenses, estimated costs to
completion and other costs necessary to make the sale by
comparing with the historical selling expenses, costs to
completion, and other costs necessary to make the sale for
the similar inventories.

HALERBUNET AT 2R FENEBRFRARNERE
1B o AR EFTHE R X - TRl AT AR K 4F 3
ERMREAEMK AN SR RERY - FRALBEEL
g‘iﬁ@@i%%&%i CFTERR A REHHE AR A E A

We observed the physical condition of inventories during
stocktake to identify if any inventories were damaged and
inquired management if appropriate inventories provision

has been made.
RIERSERIMBRERORENR BTG

BHEREBE  TARNERERACEHEENTFE

Based on our audit procedures, we found the assumptions
adopted and judgement applied by management in the
determination of impairment provision for inventories were
supported by the relevant evidences that we have
gathered.

BRERMNBTIEF  HARR  EREEEEFERE
BB PTER A0 0 1R 5% % B PR ) #1598 AP ER PR S B9 4B
RARE R ATIK o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

HibE ¥
ERAEFAHEMERARET HHEHR
BRIENFHENOMEEN (EMRREFRE MK
BRI EPINZBERE) -

BAYGEAMBERRIFLNER L ERER M
AR MAEMETSHEBERERTAER

H A RE A5 ©

IRMBZEEUBEREAMS - RMANEER
FIEEMER  KMEEEMENESRER
MBRRXBPIEEZERTEENEN TR
BEAN  KUFEFEERBRBRAM

fHE R PIERNERIETOTIER B ARM
ERHBREERBRERE  RMERSABF
BBt RABAFELRS ©
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

90 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XULEIFR&EEA R A
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

REBFBBAENETEHBIET - HE
RBXRAE  RIEBEFREEREE - BT
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RYTEIEF AR ZERR - ARE
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EEER  ERRAsZEAMEENE
S B R BEE IR R ARFE M G B B AR
AR BRI B LB 1= R BE B3R R SRR T
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Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2024 2023
—S-E —E-=%F
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Kt AR¥TFT AREFT
Revenue WA 5 23,029,033 22,725,317
Cost of sales SHE B 7 (20,165,661) (21,262,702)
Gross profit EX 2,863,372 1,462,615
Selling and distribution costs HERDHAXZ 7 (650,054) (730,358)
General and administrative expenses —M RITEAX 7 (1,155,553) (1,178,578)
Net accrual of impairment losses on TR REE
financial assets VERIEY SR L] (48,384) (68,218)
Other income E A 6 186,725 114,493
Other (losses)/gains — net Hi (BB s
— #H 6 (10,420) 789,864
Operating profit mEER 1,185,686 389,818
Finance income WA 9 86,193 98,358
Finance costs 7% 8 9 (474,186) (615,950)
Finance costs — net MBER — F58 9 (387,993) (517,592)
Share of losses of investments accounted DI ERAEREARZ
for using the equity method wEER 18 (23,368) (2,414)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRET BB AIER
(E8]) 774,325 (130,188)
Income tax expense PS5 2 71 (185,696) (169,194)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERM(FA) 588,629 (299,382)
Attributable to: BBAT % 75 B4
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ RN 553,536 (375,700)
Non-controlling interests FE 122 Il 14 A 2 35,093 76,318
588,629 (299,382)
Earnings/(losses) per share for profit/ AAREE AEA
(loss) attributable to owners of AL (BE) 28R
the Company BR,(BE)
— Basic earnings/(losses) per share — BREX
B, (EE) 12 RMB0.60 RMB(0.41)
— Diluted earnings/(losses) per share — REE
BaF(E8) 12 RMB0.60 RMB(0.41)
The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these RENNE24BZMERBEFFETBHRE
consolidated financial statements. — &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-OF —E_=F
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥FT ARETFT
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBFA(BE) 588,629 (299,382)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mH K&
Item that may be reclassified HE gt e E D EE
subsequently to profit or loss HEwm 2 HH
Currency translation differences B E =g 28 20,486 27,119
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FE2HEWE (EE)
the year HEE 609,115 (272,263)
Attributable to: AUT&FEN:
Owners of the Company RAREER A 569,659 (352,544)
Non-controlling interests FE 128 Il 14 A 2 39,456 80,281
609,115 (272,263)

The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2024
RZF-WFE+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥TF T ARMFr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Freehold land K AERE L 13 104,718 109,393
Property, plant and equipment LER N 14 8,282,247 8,493,748
Investment properties wEYE 15 377,491 382,700
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 16 1,197,311 1,264,074
Intangible assets BVEE 17 58,095 61,756
Investments accounted for using the equity AMEZEARE 2 K&
method 18 361,629 379,038
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSHAE 32 312,433 397,104
Financial assets at fair value through profit or R A F(EF ABZEH
loss TREE 23 18,057 15,903
10,711,981 11,103,716
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 4,543,107 5,244,583
Properties under development ERPYE 20 261,510 415,549
Trade and bills receivables U E 5 Kk EEFRIA 21 1,403,935 1,571,477
Financial assets at fair value through other — IRAFEF AEMZE
comprehensive income WK SR EE 22 375,631 336,761
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JBff K IE ~ 24 &
HAth fE U BR 3K 24 681,717 1,826,291
Derivative financial instruments PTAESmIT A 37 100,652 84,792
Pledged bank deposits BERITFNK 25 23,908 66,208
Cash and cash equivalents HekReSEY 25 2,880,283 2,161,795
10,270,743 11,707,456
Total assets EEHAE 20,982,724 22,811,172
EQUITY Rz
Equity attributable to owners of the AAFEEAEGER
Company
Share capital: nominal value A mE 26 96,958 96,958
Share premium D mE 26 462,059 462,059
Other reserves Hh{# 28 1,098,714 1,054,138
Retained earnings Pl 28 7,977,506 7,535,924
9,635,237 9,149,079
Non-controlling interests Ik 15 | R 2 502,048 606,279
Total equity R 10,137,285 9,755,358
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2024
RZF-NFE+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-ME TE-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR¥TF T AR TFT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BE 30 3,196,353 3,577,553
Lease liabilities HESE 6 131,111 162,270
Employee benefit obligations EERAEME 2,572 —
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMGHAE 32 155,445 198,003
3,485,481 3,937,916
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables ERE 5 R EBRRIE 33 886,393 868,848
Supply chain financing e & 29 2,111,445 2,495,882
Contract liabilities ABHAE 232,090 481,177
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A K fE 1
8RR 34 811,473 849,954
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFTS R & & 28,501 222293
Borrowings BE 30 3,199,142 4,145,651
Derivative financial instruments PTESRITA 37 42,025 7,055
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 48,889 47,038
7,359,958 9,117,398
Total liabilities BEHAE 10,845,439 13,055,814
Total equity and liabilities HESZNEAE 20,982,724 22,811,172

The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 224 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang
Director Director
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HAEHEREDR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEAER
Non-
Share Share Other Retained  controlling
capital premium reserves earnings interests  Total equity
Fem M
BAR BHEE HuFEE RBE RBm  BnAE
Note RMB000 RMB 00O RMB 00O RMB000 RMB 00O RMB 00O
Wit AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-Z-=5-F-HH
e 96,958 462,059 999,848 7,942,758 599,853 10,101,476
Comprehensive loss 2EER
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (BR),/&H = = — (375,700) 76318 (299,382)
Other comprehensive loss: Hitt2EES
Currency translation differences ERBEEE 28 = = 23,156 — 3,963 27,119
Total comprehensive loss for FEXEERAE
the year — — 23,156 (375,700) 80,281 (272,263)
Transactions with owners BRERAEAZRS
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ HIBARIFEREE T E
shareholders of subsidiaries — — — — 1,500 1,500
Dividend paid to non-controlling EEZyid Sy pd
interests R & — = = = (75355) (75355)
Transfer to statutory reserves BREETRE 28 = = 39,836 (39,836) = =
Transfer from revaluation reserve to REfEEERERY
retained eamings pid il
— Gross — a5 — — (7.229) 7229 = =
— Deferred income tax — BEFER = — 837 (837) — —
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QA = = (2310) 2310 — —
Total transactions with owners HRESEAZRZEE = = 31,134 (31,134) (73,855) (73,855)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+ZA
=+ -Hi&EH 96,958 462,059 1,054,138 7,535,924 606,279 9,755,358
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ReERBBR (R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_ZT-_WFE+_-_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEEAERL
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserves earnings interests Total equity
FE 2
BAE  ROEE HtREE REEHN Bz HER4E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Vi ST ARETFT ARETT ARETT AEEFT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-ZZE-ME-F—AMN
o303 96,958 462,059 1,054,138 7,535,924 606,279 9,755,358
Comprehensive income ZEKE
Profit for the year FERF - — — 553,536 35003 588,629
Other comprehensive income: Hitt 2 e
Currency translation differences EEREZES 28 — — 16,123 — 4,363 20,486
Total comprehensive income for FEXHEUEEE
the year — - 16,123 553,536 39,456 609,115
Transactions with owners BREREAZRS
Transaction with non-controlling BT EER RS
interests — - (27) — (988) (1,015)
Dividend paid to non-controlling EEZyiL Spd
interests ) - — - —  (142,699)  (142,699)
Dividend relating to 2024 —ToNFEZRE 35 - — - (83,474) - (83,474)
Transfer to statutory reserves BEREETERE 28 - - 49,523 (49,523) - —
Transfer from revaluation reserve to REfREERERE
retained eamings pisk il
— Gross — % - — (7,229) 7,229 — —
— Deferred income tax — REFMBH - - 794 (794) - -
Wind up of subsidiaries LG - — (14,608) 14,608 — -
Total transactions with owners HREREAZRSEHE — — 28,453  (111,954)  (143,687)  (227,188)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+=A
=t-HBHEH 96,958 462,059 1,098,714 7,977,506 502,048 10,137,285
The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these REI0NEN4B 2 WE R F4RE M BHRE 2
consolidated financial statements. — &5 o
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FERKRER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2024 2023
=Sl 1 - 3 —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥FiT ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RELETENES
RE
Cash generated from operations KERMEE R G 36(a) 4,660,419 2,112,943
Interest received 2 UF S 86,193 98,358
Income tax paid AR ST (266,260) (225,672)
Net cash generated from operating activities A& & EENFT1SIR S F5E 4,480,352 1,985,629
Cash flows from investing activities RERETENES
RE
Net proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries & W B AR ATS RIE
R 24 676,085 170,013
Purchase of financial instruments BESmMITA — (12,449)
Investment in an associate REE AT ZIRE (22,000) —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE Y% - 5 K i&iE (852,191) (770,989)
Purchases of land use rights BB T {5 R — (97,188)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and ~ HE®E « BE &
equipment and land use rights R N M AP
S3E 36(a) 560,546 509,851
Proceeds from sales of pollution discharge & HE5HEFT 15 308
rights 14,559 20,000
Proceeds from sale of freehold land SR A ERE T H TS
A 5,043 —
Repayments of loans to related parties BT 2 BERCEE
HIA 38(a) — 72,617
Net proceeds from settlement of financial & @ T AA&EFTBRIA
instruments R 153,264 136,973
Decrease in pledge of bank deposits B RIT T 5O D 25 — 701
Net cash generated from investing KERBAEER S FE
activities 535,306 29,529
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ReanER ()
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2024 2023
—B-NEF —EBE=F
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt AR¥ T ARBTFT
Cash flows from financing activities REMETENES
RE
Proceeds from borrowings BEMENIEA 36(c) 7,094,605 12,610,261
Repayments of borrowings EHEEE 36(c) (8,451,648) (13,508,537)
Repayments of supply chain financing BEEEERE 36(c) (2,495,882) (889,677)
Proceeds from supply chain financing # Fiﬁkﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ 36(c) 200,000 170,000
Principal elements of lease payments HENFH 2z AL I 36(c) (41,308) (78,037)
Dividends paid AR E (83,474) —
Capital injection from non-controlling B B A B FE 2R A% B R
shareholders of subsidiaries EE — 1,500
Transaction with non-controlling interests ~ ERFEIRH| MR 2 X 5 (1,015) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests [ 3EFEH IEAE RS IR S 2
BB (142,699) (75,355)
Interest paid EEREAEES (444,659) (522,416)
Loan from a minority shareholder RE—RDERRZ
B 3,000 2,624
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank B RITFHK
deposits B, (385 50) 25 42,654 (47,947)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEPTFEIR & R 5B (4,320,426) (2,337,584)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BE&RBELZEEY
equivalents i, (A F 45 695,232 (322,426)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzBHekReSE
of the year (=R 25 2,161,795 2,468,421
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREE) 2 & 23,256 15,800
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZECRRSE
the year =7 25 2,880,283 2,161,795
The notes on pages 101 to 224 are an integral part of these MBI E24B 2T R EHEEMBHRET 2
AN

consolidated financial statements. —Z5 o
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SeMBERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Texhong International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of yarns, grey fabrics, non-woven
fabrics and garment fabrics.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
12 July 2004 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 9 December
2004.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi (“‘RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on 27 March 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative literature:

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"), which are carried at fair value.
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EHERBERSHESARNEFMA LR
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@) New standard and amendments to HKFRSs
adopted by the Group in 2024

A number of new standard and amendments to
existing standards became applicable for the
current reporting period. These amendments to
existing standards did not give rise to any
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements and did not require retrospective
adjustment. These amendments are set out
below:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Non-current liabilities with

covenants — Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
— Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback —

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments

to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

The following new standard and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2024 and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the above new standards,
amendments and interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements upon adoption, except HKFRS 18,
which mainly impacts the presentation of the
Group's consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the Group is still in
the process of assessing the impact.

Amendments to HKAS 21 ‘Lack of
Exchangeability’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
‘Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments’, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2026.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
‘Contracts-referencing nature-dependent
electricity’, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2026.

Annual improvements project ‘Annual
improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards-volumes 11', effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

HKFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

without Public
effective for annual
1 January 2027.

HKFRS 19 ‘Subsidiaries
Accountability: Disclosures’,
periods beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 28 ‘Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint venture’, effective for to be
determined.

2.

REEERETBERE (&)

2.2

EEESERKE

(b)

(#&)

UNTEBMOBESTERSE
AR FT R 2 Bl R AE ET 1B 14
AR _MNFE—F—Hi
Zﬁﬁﬂzif‘ixﬁz BARER
&= BRI

AAREETHEHEA Lt s
ER I hRES T2

RMENEOMBRREE
EARE HBTEMHBRS
ERIF18 RN ZERIE
BYEAKEGAEE RS
RE  MAKBIERERF
REFE -

’5\5%@§+2%E'J%21?)%2f
[RZAHBE] - B -F =
AFE—A— EﬁZfﬁﬁ_ﬁF
HARI AR »

FEM RS LR E N ME
7B S ERIF 7R 2 ERT
[ERMT AN BERFEZE
Al BT -R"F—HA—H
K REFREHARAER -

BB EHREEREIRRE
%Eﬂ%i&%ﬁ%ﬁ'J%hﬁZfﬂT
S RKBEAEREES
NeE#H] B= ;E_/\i H
— B2 B RRFEBRER °

FEUGERRE [ FEMBRE
HERzFEHE — F+—
%l BT ~F—HA—H
K REFEHRRAER -

FREMBREERF 185 [ B
B2 REE] B
T_tLtF-A—HIZKE
FEHMEER -

FREMBHREERF 195 3F
’“ﬁi‘u%afﬂﬁ)%’ IR
Bl -B-T-_tF5—A—H
iZ?&iETE@F?E&&o

TR HREERE105 &
FRMBREERF 282
IERT [ 85 & B3 H B i X Rl ok

Q%E%ZFEJE@%F‘&%‘E
TE|CEERBAHERFE
EO

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=—\E£#H 103



fn & MR EE (|)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain of its risk
exposures on changes in interest rates.

(@) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in China,
Southeast Asia and Americas. Most of the
Group's transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, VND, HKD or
United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk primarily through
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets at FVPL, trade and bills
payables, supply chain financing and
borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity. It
manages its foreign exchange risks by
performing regular review and monitoring
of its foreign exchange exposures and
purchase of forward foreign exchange
contracts and cross currency swap
contracts (Note 31). In 2024, the Group has
entered into the forward foreign exchange
contracts and cross currency swap
contracts to manage the expected
fluctuation of RMB against USD or HKD and
USD against VND.
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 1.5% (2023:
1.7%) against USD with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB20,887,000 (2023:
RMB11,132,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of USD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets at FVPL, trade and bills
payables, supply chain financing and
borrowings.

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 2.2% (2023:
1.4%) against HKD with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB35,033,000 (2023:
RMB32,577,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of the net foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of HKD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 2.8% (2023:
0.9%) against VND with all other variable
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB7,935,000 higher/
lower (2023: RMB4,519,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of the net foreign
exchange gains/losses (2023: losses/gains)
on translation of VND-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables and borrowings.
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price
risk because of the volatility of the price of
main raw material, cotton. The
management of the Group analyze the
trend of raw material price on weekly basis.
To manage its price risk, the Group has
entered into the cotton future contracts
and cotton option contracts (Note 31) and
decides to enter long term contracts to
mitigate the impact from raw material
price changes, and diversify the suppliers if
they expect significant fluctuation in the
future.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits and cash
at bank (Note 25), the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact resulted
from changes in interest rates on interest
bearing assets.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at
variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. As at 31 December
2024, approximately 56% (2023: 52%) of
the Group's borrowings were at fixed rates
and the remaining 44% (2023: 48%) were
at floating rates before entering into cross
currency swap contracts. After entering
into cross currency swap contracts, the
percentage of the Group’s borrowings at
fixed rates as at 31 December 2024
increased to approximately 61% (2023:
60%).
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if interest rate had
increased/decreased by 100 basis points
(2023: 100 basis points) with all other
variable held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been RMB27,878,000
(2023: RMB26,930,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of the interest expenses on
floating rates borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk because the Group has more than
5,000 customers. The carrying amounts of
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets at FVOCI and other receivables represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally grants credit terms of less
than 90 days to its customers in Mainland China
and 120 days to its customers in other countries.
The Group’s management performs periodic
credit evaluations/reviews of its customers and
ensures that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group places
deposits with major banks in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Vietnam, to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution.

Trade and bills receivables, financial assets at
FVOCI and other receivables are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

To lower the Group's exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request 5% deposits from certain of
their customers before delivery of goods. In
addition, 100% (2023: 100%) of the bills
receivable of the Group are endorsed by banks as
at 31 December 2024.

3.

BERRERE)
31 BERBREZ(E)
(@) WHERR(E)

(b)

(i) BEHER N FEFZE
BB (&)
RZZEZNFE+=—A=
+—8 - fHFI=RE
ﬁmOMEﬁﬂ_?_

=F 100{EEZ)

%Eﬁ%“%%%$
& RF NBREE R T
R DA R
27,878,000 (ZF = =
F . AR #26,930,000
L) EEZHRREHF
EEEMF S M
@( o

EE R
RS B A HiB5000%8 %
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

3.

3.1

(b)

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MEREEBEE®)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBREERE)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKEE)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables (i) BREZREEHER
and financial assets at FVOC! BAFEIGARMEE
Waz 9% EE 1B
The Group has trade and bills receivables NEBBRETEAY
and financial assets at FVOCI from sales of 7% 4R 5 45 I 35 955 78 B
products that are subject to HKFRS 9's EEEEEREANREE
expected credit loss model. The Group mIHERNEKEZ RE
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to BRIARZAFERA
measure expected credit losses which uses HE2EKENSRE
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all E - - AEEHEBEEY
trade receivables from initial recognition. B EERFEoH
To measure the expected credit losses, HAEBRBEEE
trade receivables have been grouped B RYLTHERE B
based on shared credit risk characteristics FrB e E 5 IR B
and the ageing days. The expected loss S HITEHEIEIE - RETE
rates are based on the payment profiles of BHEEEE EKE
sales over a period of 36 month before SHRBEEREBRBEEE
31 December 2024 and the corresponding B2 5 2 % AR e 0 48 o
historical credit losses experienced within TEHBIEERERN T
this period. The historical loss rates are ME+=—HA=+—H5"
adjusted to reflect current and 3616 A AR fE 85 6 YA 5K
forward-looking information on 1550 & 7N BRI A (3R A
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability HEATEEEE - B
of the customers to settle the receivables, FEEERTHE R
including Gross Domestic Product, HERPEERIERR
industrial added value and consumer price EERALE OB S <SS o)
index. On that basis, the loss allowance as AT RATEEE R (8
at 31 December 2024 was determined as FENEESE EX
follows: EERHEEERE
) oI EE R
ToWFE+__A=+—
HEEER T T
T
Trade receivables EWE S RIE
Within 181 days to 1 year to Over
180 days 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
18084 K 181AZ1%F 15225 Bi@2F @5t
RMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFIL
At 31 December 2024 R-B-mE
+=p=+-8
Gross carrying amount FEAE 1,083,852 9,619 34,440 61,045 1,188,956
Expected loss rate FEHEBER 1.08% 10.62% 40.95% 100.00% 7.39%
Loss allowance BREEE 11,750 1,022 14,102 61,045 87,919
At 31 December 2023 R-B==f
+=p=t-8
Gross carrying amount AR 1,025,709 49,489 63,101 1,224 1,139,523
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.20% 7.55% 3461% 100.00% 253%
Loss allowance BEEE 2,006 3,734 21,840 1224 28,804
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBRREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBREER(E)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKE)
(i)  Impairment of trade and bills receivables (i) FEWREZREZEFBER
and financial assets at FVOC| (Continued) HRFEFTAEMEZEH
W zm B9 & & Bl 1B
(#&)
Bills receivables and financial assets at FE U B R SR IE R AR A
FVOC| Bt AE M2 K5
TREE
The loss allowance of bills receivables and RZEZNFER=_T=
financial assets at FVOCI as at =#+-_A=+—H"
31 December 2024 and 2023 was JE U BB 4R SR IE R AR A
immaterial. Bt AE M2 mE U ED
CRIEEMEIBRET
TEK -
Impairment losses on trade and bills W E 5 & EIBKIER
receivables are presented as net BEBEREE TR
impairment losses within operating profit. 25 AR EREFE -
Subsequent recoveries of amounts E 1z U [0 %% BT 2 s A9
previously written off are credited against SRERIFFAR—IER °
the same line item.
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT AREFT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 28,804 15,423
Accrual of provision for TEREWE S K&
impairment of trade and ZIEFIERERE
bills receivables 68,044 20,704
Written off i 84 (8,929) (7,323)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 87,919 28,804

The loss allowance of trade and bills
receivables of RMB87,919,000 was recorded
as at 31 December 2024 mainly due to a
long-aging trade receivable from a grey
fabric customer, against whom the Group
has initiated formal litigation and secured
asset preservation measures.

RZTE-_mF+=A=
+—H - EBRESREE
BRIABBEBEHESRSEA
R #87,919,0007C © =
ZHARE —ZXEME
FRRERRERE S
HATE  ASEEBHZ
EPBEMEFR - WHIF
BEREENE -
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other receivables

Other receivables comprised receivables
from disposal of subsidiaries, receivables
from disposal of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment,
value-added tax recoverable, prepaid
income tax, prepayments for purchase of
raw materials, due from related parties,
deposits, prepaid expenses, rental income
receivables from investment properties,
receivables from sales of pollution
discharge rights and other receivables

(Note 24).

The Directors of the Company consider the
probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis during the year ended
31 December 2024. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares risk of a default
occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial
economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
change to the third party’s ability to

meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant
changes in the operating results of

the third party;

significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
third party, including changes in the
payment status of the third party.
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(i)

3. BXEBRERE)

31 B#EBREER(Z)
Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERKE)
Impairment of other receivables (i)  BMEWRHEE (&)
(Continued)
Impairment on other receivables are o FE YR SR B 1212
measured as either 12-month expected BAEHEEEENE
credit losses or lifetime expected credit HEAEEEIET = -
loss, depending on whether there has been ERTEERREVS
a significant increase in credit risk since RARE B A IEIE N
initial recognition. To assess whether there MiE o BEEERR
is a significant increase in credit risk the RN - AAEE
company compares the risk of a default BRHmEQBAEESR
occurring on the asset as at the reporting A B3R AR B B A 46
date with the risk of default as at the date R HERE LR
of initial recognition. It considers available HeZEaBeERKA
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking BEATEMEER - W7E
information. If a significant increase in credit BREREBIE 1218 A 1B
risk of a receivable under the circumstance of TREWERNEERR
aging over 12 months has occurred since B )25 T 2R LA SR OK @ 35
initial recognition, then impairment is hn - BIEE IR 2 HATE HR
measured as lifetime expected credit losses. EEEIETE - B E
On that basis, the loss allowance as at B RZTEZWF+Z
31 December 2024 was determined as follows BR=+—HzEiaEE
for other receivables: Th h EL Ath B U BR SR EE 5E
LU
Stage 1
12-month Stage 2 Stage 3
ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
BB BoER BZER
1218 A 2HITES 2HITEH
AHEEER EEER EEER st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETFT
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-@mF
+=A=+-AH
Gross carrying amount AR A 182,591 73,353 255,944
Expected loss rate TBEAE B X 3.47% 100.00% 31.14%
Loss allowance EEEA 6,339 73,353 79,692
At 31 December 2023 R=ZE==
+t=A=t-~H
Gross carrying amount BEREE 1,349,375 92,647 1,442,022
Expected loss rate BHIEEE 0.50% 100.00% 6.89%
Loss allowance EERE 6,705 92,647 99,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other receivables
(Continued)

The loss allowances for other receivables as

MBERBREER @
31 HBEREEGE)
(b) FERMREE)

(ii)

AR RE (&)

R+ZA=+—B®H

at 31 December reconcile to the opening  FE IR BR SRR S 1R s
loss allowances as follows: LR B R R BRI E AR
LN
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Opening loss allowance R—HA—B&HY]
at 1 January iR 99,352 51,838
(Decrease)/increase in loss FRERERERK
allowance recognised in EERE R D),/
profit or loss 0
during the year (19,660) 47,514
Closing loss allowance R+—A=+—H&
at 31 December HREERE 79,692 99,352
(iii)  Net impairment losses on financial assets (i) REmEREMEE
recognised in profit or loss H B 1B 5 75 AR
During the year ended 31 December 2024 REBEEZEZT_NFEFR_
and 2023, the following losses were T =F+—RA=+—

recognised in profit or loss in relation to
impaired financial assets:

BIEEE  ERBES
BEEN BT RN
TEE

2024 2023
—E-MF —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥FT ARBTFT

Impairment losses REEE
— Trade receivables — EWE 5 FIE 68,044 20,704
— Other receivables — Hth fE I BR 5K (19,660) 47,514
48,384 68,218
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e MBwRME (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the
Group are disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in Note 29, the Group has entered
into supplier finance arrangements. This has
improved the Group’'s working capital. The
finance providers are in good financial condition
and the Group has no significant concentration
of liquidity risk with these finance providers.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3. BXEBRERE)
3.1 BIBEBEZE)

(c)

REBE SRR
BEENRBECRAREER
REBRMNCAEEER
BURFENRE MAIFHA
MET AEEFEEBHE
HARANEAREERE -
WRHEEcBEBEE - A
MAKBENARBBEERE
FRNERE M B RERME30
R

AN 20T BE - AEH
BRI HERRE T - It
BRETAEEZEESR
T BMEREE Z2HBANR
Rif AKHEEZZmMER
HEZRDESRRIL ES
B&RF -

TR AEEN SR EE
2T I Ty 4% 48 BE 2 B 48 5l
Y REBEEHES O
B E) R R IR E T AT - R
AEENSESAAERR
BHHRERE -

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and  More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
DPME  1FZ2F 2 E5F 58N E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT AREFT ARMFT AREFT AREFT
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-MF
t=R=t-H
Borrowings (Note 30) &8 (f1i30) 3,199,142 2,399,656 796,697 — 6,395,495
Supply chain financing HrEERE (f7529)
(Note 29) 2,111,445 - - - 2,111,445
Interest payable on borrowings & & Rk /EERE
and supply chain financing FERTFIE 220,699 64,480 15,568 — 300,747
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4£ & BT A
(Note 31) (Hzt31) 42,025 - — - 42,025
Trade and bills payables BNESREERIE
(Note 33) (Hi#t33) 886,393 - - - 886,393
Accruals and other payables HEiRRE R REMER
(excluding non-financial R (T BEE
liabilities) SRAE) 448,425 - - - 448,425
Lease liabilities (Note 16) HEBBEW16) 50,256 33,473 75,003 45,425 204,157
6,958,385 2,497,609 887,268 45,425 10,388,687
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBRREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMERBREER(E)
() Liquidity risk (Continued) () HBELEAR (Z)
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
PIME FERF 2FESF SELAE @5t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZZF
+=A=+-8
Borrowings (Note 30) &8 (#it30) 4,145,651 2,184,860 1387,693 5,000 7,723,204
Supply chain financing HIESERA (f1i229)
(Note 29) 2,495,882 — — — 2,495,882
Interest payable on borrowings & E R fE#E R &
and supply chain financing e RS 268,695 129,721 18,829 91 417336
Derivative financial instruments ~ $TA S @ T A
(Note 31) (Hzt31) 7,055 = = = 7,055
Trade and bills payables ENE S RERHE
(Note 33) (H7t33) 868,848 = = = 868,848
Accruals and other payables HRE R REMER
(excluding non-financial R (T Bk
liabilities) G =AY 470,560 = = = 470,560
Lease liabilities (Note 76) HEEEHitie) 48,782 38,641 80,692 54352 222,467
8,305,473 2,353,222 1,487,214 59,443 12,205,352
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 E2RKRER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
‘current and non-current borrowings' as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet), supply chain financing and
lease liabilities less pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘total
equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less
non-controlling interests plus net debt.
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e MBwRME (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.2

Capital risk management (Continued)

The net gearing ratios at 31 December 2024 and 2023

are as follows:

BEERER &)
3.2 BEcEKBERE(E)

R-B_WER-_FT_=F1+_AH
=St—RBZFEEABLEMT

2024 2023

—EEF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥Fir AR Fr

Total borrowings (Note 30) BB B (Mi30) 6,395,495 7,723,204

Supply chain financing (Note 29) HIESE RV E (A72E29) 2,111,445 2,495,882

Lease liabilities (Note 16) HEBEHZE16) 180,000 209,308
Less: pledged bank deposits and B BRI RITFERUAR

cash and cash equivalents HehE®

(Note 25) LG (f1a25) (2,904,191) (2,228,003)

Net debt BEFHE 5,782,749 8,200,391
Total equity excluding M ABEE - bR IEIE S

non-controlling interests = 9,635,237 9,149,079

Total capital ENCE 15,417,986 17,349,470

Net gearing ratio FEEAMBHE 38% 47%
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation
Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group held
forward foreign exchange contracts, cross currency
swap contracts, cotton future contracts, cotton option
contracts, bills receivables held both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these assets and
equity investments that are held for trading. These
forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair
valued using forward exchange rates that are quoted in
an active market. Cross currency swaps are fair valued
using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an
active market and interest rates extracted from
observable yield curves. Cotton future contracts and
cotton option contracts are fair valued using forward
cotton price that are quoted in an active market. Bills
receivables held both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling of these assets are fair valued using
interest rates that are quoted in an active market.
Equity investments that are held for trading are fair
valued using seed transaction price that are not based
on observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHLEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HMEBERRBRERE#)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 QFEMGF(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ATFEER(A)
The following table presents the Group's assets and TRINTAEENEEREE  H
liabilities that are measured at fair value at B_E_NMFERN—T-_=F1+_A
31 December 2024 and 2023: =t+t—HHNAFEFE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-8 - FE=H @ct

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT

At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-MF
+=A=+-8
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOC| RATEGFAEMEZR
WamemEE — 375,631 — 375,631
Financial assets at FVPL BATFEFABZERN
SREE — — 18,057 18,057
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMIA — 100,652 — 100,652
— 476,283 18,057 494,340
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A — 42,025 — 42,025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R FE_H F=H et
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
At 31 December 2023 RZE=-=
+=A=+-8
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI RATEFAEMER
W emEE = 336,761 — 336,761
Financial assets at FVPL BATEFAERED
EREE = — 15,903 15,903
Derivative financial instruments TESMT A — 84,792 — 84,792
— 421,553 15,903 437456
Liabilities =l
Derivative financial instruments MESMTA — 7,055 — 7,055
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1

4.2

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and
financial assets at FVOCI

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and financial
assets at FVOCI based on the expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade and bills receivables. The loss allowances for
financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. Management uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Management reassesses the provision
at each balance sheet date.
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

4.
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HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Committee of Executive Directors of the
Company. Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The Committee
of Executive Directors reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Committee of Executive Directors considers the
business from both a product and geographical
perspective. From a product perspective, management
assesses the performance from sales of yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as well
as garments.

China now includes Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macao. Southeast Asia now includes Vietnam. Americas
now includes United States, Mexico, Nicaragua and
Honduras.

The revenues from external ending customers in Asia
and Americas accounted for 91.7% and 7.7% (2023:
92.9% and 6.8%) of the Group's total revenue
respectively.

The Committee of Executive Directors assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
revenue and operating profit.
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& M HRRME (])

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_ZT-_WFE+_A=+—HLEE
5.

(Continued)

(b)

Segment profit or loss

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information for the year ended
31 December 2024 is as follows:

China
L

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Southeast

Asia

REE

Americas

£l

Others
-0

5.

WAR D RBE R (&)

(b)

2 EIR

BHE-_Z-_NF+_-_A=+—8I

FEZD

Year ended 31 December 2024
BECBCQMET-AST-BLEE

Garment fabrics and Garments

China

EHRE%
Southeast
Asia

REE

Americas

M

Grey fabrics

Southeast
Asia

REE

China
i

Non-woven fabrics

EBERT

Southeast
China China
#

RMB'000

Asia

REE

Others

Southeast

Asia

REE
RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTFT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARRTL ARRTR ARRTT ARBTT ARRTL ARETR ARBTT ARBTFT AREFR

Total revenue ELION 21,814,080 7,572,361 500976 390,185 2,771,338 992,791 1,052,533 445559 560,542 73427 126224 251,065 186,192 36,737,273
Inter-segment revenue AHERA (6,290,868) (5,166,451)  (271,617) (4,229)  (72,444) (805,282) (314,656)  (37,318) (559,492) = (105,304) (2,185)  (78,394) (13,708,240)
Revenue (from external WA (RENBEF)

customers) 15,523,212 2,405910 229,359 385956 2,698,894 187,509 737,877 408,241 1,050 73,427 20920 248,880 107,798 23,029,033
Timing of revenue WARRER

recognition

— At a point in time — REAREE 15523212 2,405910 229,359 385956 2,698,894 187,509 737,877 408,241 1,050 73,421 20920 248,880 107,798 23,029,033
Segment results ARER 698,797 329,841 (70,544)  (11,148) 124,316 51,562 am (10,000) 4,692 (13,313)  (20,776) 51,521 4722 1,186,781
Unallocated losses KPEBR (1,095)
Operating profit fy 1,185,686
Finance income BERA 86,193
Finance costs BHER (474,186)
Share of losses of investments A& EREARZ

accounted for using the RENEE

equity method (23,368)
Income tax expense FEREY (185,696)
Profit for the period BRER 588,629

—

Depreciation and REREH

amortisation (426,654) (291,363)  (67,553)  (20,197)  (67,549)  (45303)  (34712) (7,170) (19,000 = (31,381) (490)  (11,873) (1,023,245)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued)

The segment information for the year ended

31 December 2023 is as follows:

5. WARSHER &)

(b) DEERE(E)
BHE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—8It
FEZDEERMT

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE-R-ZET-ASt-ALER

Yarns Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Others Total
bR AHRRE iyl &G Af 28
Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast
China Asia Asia  Americas China Asia China Asia China Asia

TE REE
RMBOD  AMB00D

R i TR OREE TR REE TE REE
RMBOD  AMB00)  AVBOOD  AMBUMO  AMBUGO  RMBODD  AMBUOD  AUBUWD  AMBUIO

ANEBETE ARETTE ARRTE ARETE NEXTL ARKT ARETT ARET ARETI ARETL AEXTT ARET ABETT ARETE

Total revenue EL/ON 21879282 6526924 1,155679 925,581 596,299 418721 53985 79462 190072 109180 35364419
Inter-segment revenue AEHERA (5525,556)  (4.985,364) (964853)  (260567) (65122)  (418241) - (63465) - (67404) (12639,102)
Revenue (from external WA (RBHBEF)

customers) 16353726 1541560 190826 665014 531177 480 53985 15997 190,072 4,776 2275317
Timing of revenue WA BERERE

recognition

— At a point in time —REENEE 1635376 1541560 190826 665014 31,177 480 53985 15997 10072 41776 22725317
Segment results AHEK 487410 (591497) (19,049) 25590 (7871) 1057 (10013) (39,568) 8,154 12698 232,709
Unallocated profit ROBEF 157,109
Operating profit fyvi] 389818
Finance income BBHA 98358
Finance costs B%EA (615.950)
Share of losses of investments ~ AEMEREAK

accounted for using the REMGR

equity method 2414
Income tax expense FERRAY (169,194)
Loss for the period BAER (299382)

—

Depreciation and amortisation  17% J# 8 (453412 (328801) (61889) (40934  (10178)  (22478) = (068 67 (10155 (1153619
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R MG RERME (]
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BT mME+-_A=+—BILtFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHER (&)
(Continued)
(c) Segment assets and liabilities () 2BEERERE

R=Z-mE+=B=+-H25
BAERBEDT

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2024 are as follows:

As at 31 December 2024
R-Z-mETZA=1-8

Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics
ERRES

Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast

China Asia  Americas Others China Asia  Americas China Asia Asia China Asia

G REE Bl L4 i REE By P REE REE i REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARKTL ARETRA ARETR ARETT ARKTT ARRTT ARRTT ARKTL ARKTA ARETR ARKTR ARKFT ARKTZ
Total segment assets FBEEE 8,673,560 5,011,472 983,785 685,114 1,880,921 704121 648,809 224383 449,211 5347 467,835 445,215 350,760 20,530,493
Unallocated assets FAREE 452,231
Total assets of the Group rEEARE 20,982,724
—
Total segment liabilities FHBEE (3,487,992) (2,420939)  (807,359)  (355658)  (251,918)  (467,470)  (386,742) (95,908)  (354,110) (742)  (492,871)  (242,594)  (332,572) (9,696,875)
Unallocated liabilities FARARE (1,148,564)
Total liabilities of the Group ~ ZEEARE (10,845,439)
—
Addition to non-current assets  FEFHBEE 27562 340083 23746 53702 12115 32597 27,234 3,182 3,035 - 4547 106,584 - 834347
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December RZZEZ=F+_A=+—H2ZHHE

= .
2023 are as follows: ERBEHAT :
As at 31 December 2023
RZF-Z£+-A=1+-H

Yams Garment fabrics and Gaments (Grey fabrics Non-woven fabrics Others Total
98 AHERR by 5T At 4

Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast Southeast

China Asia Americas Others China Asia Americas China Asia China Asia China Asia

TE RES = £t TE RED M T REE 8 RED TE o RES
AMBO00 AMB000 AMB000 ANB000 RMB000 RMB000 AMBO00 AMB000 AMB000 ANB000 RMB000 RMB000 AMBO00 AMB000
NEETE ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARKTL ARMTL ARETT ARETT ARKFT AREFT
Total segment assets SHEEE 8270885 5317237 1,239803 5134 3196269 858,792 568,174 344806 448,149 4563 490483 495,389 365005 22050879
Unallocated assets FHREE 760093
Total assets of the Group AEELEE 2811112
—
Total segment liabilities APEEE (4794700 (2730622) (968097) (289.962) (617,767) (635,743) (332.710) 202918) (365,251) (373) (498,084) (414,740) (353493)  (12,204462)
Unallocated liabilties FARAE (851352)
Total liabilities of the Group ~ AEBARE (13055814)
—
Addition to non-current assets  FEFHBEE 218,189 125636 51,060 1,144 83459 65,146 16,640 3028 11,445 - 2195 - 321059 899,001

2024 ANNUAL REPORT

—EomEER 123



e MBWRMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Sales disclosures

Analysis of the Group's sales by products is shown
below:

5. WARSHER &)

d) SHERE
AEBRERIDHNEES IR
LI

2024 2023
—E-F —F-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARMFT
Sales of goods 2 on 86 5
— Yarns — W 17,908,950 17,537,022
— Woven garment fabrics — B 2,172,849 2,056,331
— Trading —EZ5 1,535,359 1,480,616
— Knitted garment fabrics — TR 551,559 797,448
— Grey fabrics — ® 409,291 531,657
— Non-woven fabrics — 4 94,347 69,982
— Jeanswear — H{fARE — 20,413
22,672,355 22,493,469
Others B
— Properties o 248,880 190,072
— Utilities — B RRE 107,798 41,776
23,029,033 22,725317

(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(i)

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells yarns, grey
fabrics, non-woven fabrics and garment fabrics as
well as garments in the market. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the
specific location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and
the customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the terms in sales contract. For
domestic sales, revenue is recognised when the
products are shipped to the agreed delivery
locations in accordance with the contracts, and
customers confirm the acceptance. For oversea
sales, revenue is recognised when the products
pass the ship’s rail in the port of shipment. The
Group enters into sales contracts with customers
for each transaction. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the
contract. The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one vyear.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition

(Continued)

(i

Sales of goods (Continued)

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. No significant financing component is
deemed present as the sales are made with a
credit term of less than 90 days to its customers
in Mainland China and 120 days to its customers
in other countries, which is consistent with
market practice.

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue
recognised as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

A contract liability is the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. The Group's contract liabilities mainly
comprise advanced payment and 5% deposits
from certain of their customers before delivery of
goods.

Arrangements that involve shipment of goods to
a customer might include promises related to the
shipping service that give rise to a performance
obligation. Management should assess the
explicit shipping terms to determine when
control of the goods transfers to the customer
and whether the shipping services are a separate
performance obligation.

Shipping and handling services should be
considered a separate performance obligation if
control of the goods transfers to the customer
before shipment, but the entity has promised to
ship the goods (or arrange for the goods to be
shipped) for overseas sales. Shipping is not a
promised service to the customer as control of a
good does not transfer to the customer before
shipment for domestic sales. This is because
shipping is a fulfilment activity as the costs are
incurred as part of transferring the goods to the
customer.

Management assess the Group is the principal for
the shipping service and it is a separate
performance obligation for overseas sales. The
gross amount of revenue allocated to the
shipping service is recorded.

5.

WARDEBE R (2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-ZT-_NWF+-A=1+—HLEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSHESR @)
(Continued)
(e) Accounting policies of revenue recognition (e) WABRBZETHEX (&)
(Continued)
(ii)  Sales of properties (i) WEHE
Revenues are recognised when or as the control WAREBEEEHEBERER
of the asset is transferred to the customer. For PRER HNTE K
property development and sales contracts for Y EESI YR
which the control of the property is transferred at MIHEEH  WARZTF B
a point in time, revenue is recognised when the RERIMENEYFRER#
customer obtains the physical possession or the ETEFMBEBEAREBER
legal title of the completed property and the I BRF SR RE N AR AT A U B AR
Group has the present right to payment and the BERFHER o
collection of the consideration is probable.
6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS 6. HthWARHA4h (FE) Wi

— NET — FE
2023
S 111 -3 —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Other income — net g A — F58
Subsidy income (a) AL A (a) 166,230 100,049
Rental income (Note 15) HEWA (F7E15) 49,257 42,212
Depreciation of investment properties WEYENE (HiF15)

(Note 15) (28,762) (27,768)
Total other income — net AR — F58 186,725 114,493
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib (E518) MW — F8E
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZER

equipment and land use rights T R U s

(Note 36 (a)) (K 5#36(a) 11,136 182,841
Derivative financial instruments at fair BEAFEFABSENITE

value through profit or loss: SRMITAE:

— Realised gains — B#R R 150,662 130,977

— Unrealised (losses)/gains — K& (F58E) M (19,110) 120,438
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFFABERN

through profit or loss BREE

— Realised gains — BE#R = 2,602 5,996

— Unrealised gains — REER W= 2,154 3,454
Foreign exchange losses — net 5 e — FE (A 10)

(Note 10) (159,467) (100,927)
Fees generated from the certain returned & TEREZAEELERN

assets (c) ZH (0 (29,828) —
Compensation for order cancellation BUHE] B (E 14,348 16,222
Gains on sales of pollution discharge & HEV5 7 A (b)

rights (b) — 325,055
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 24)  H & i B A Bl Uk 2§

(Btst24) — 92,089
Others Hitb 17,083 13,719
Total other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518) MW= 48 %8
— RE (10,420) 789,864
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HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS
— NET (Continued)

(a

The subsidy income was mainly related to incentives for
development in Mainland China provided by municipal
governments based on special subsidies and the
amounts of value added tax and income tax paid. The
Group has received all the subsidy income and there
was no future obligation related to these subsidy
income.

Deferral and presentation of government grants

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and they are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

Pursuant to agreements entered into between an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the seller, and a third party company, as the
purchaser, in the year of 2020 for the sale and purchase
of the pollution discharge rights owed by the subsidiary
of the Company at the total consideration of
RMB344,559,000, subject to the completion of the
required approval. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the relevant approval and change in name of the
pollution discharge rights to the purchaser were
completed, and the Group recognised RMB325,055,000
of gains on sales of pollution discharge rights.

Pursuant to the Revised Asset Purchase Agreement, in
case the Registration cannot be completed by
31 March 2025, Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co,
Limited shall return to the Group the consideration
received together with all the interest accrued in
respect of the parcel of land together with the
buildings and all assets attached after deducting the
fees generated from the provisions of utilities received
and the operation cost. During the year ended
31 December 2024, the Group accrued RMB29,828,000
fees generated from the returned assets net of the
operating costs and the relevant interest (Note 34).

H AR HE M (FE), K
— FE#)

(a)

R A Z B RK AR B At 3%
F& P15 e h BT AR 38455 7 488 B DA
REMEEREAEHSBERTEZ
BE - AEED WER2 MU
A AR EEEZFEBBAZ
ARREE-

FiEHA 2 2 X BUT #8 BY

B R AN A ) BT B B R FE AR
Wiz FEA E R AN A E P 2
ERmPER -

HEBEEYE  BFEREREARANIK
FEF BN E RIEE AT AFERE &
& YREREENTBRFHRR
BHAORRT AR °

BEAAGBEIIEZEN B QA
(EABR)EE=7TR I EAE
FIRZE_FTFTLNHE - N
KB A R #344,559,0007T B & A
ANEIM B AR ERNEESE - 1
BEMEEMTRESTEE - B
HE_ZT_=F+_A=+—H1L1
FE - BEMEHEKREESENEE
ERRET  AEBERAHEHES
8 U2k A R #5325,055,0007T ©

RIBLIETEEBE DS - WAL
R-ZE-_RAF=A=+—HA%/K
B BN IEXEREEEARA R
ARAEEREE RN EBERLZ
R R MRt 3R _E 2 Y R AT
BEEZBREFE (BIHREAT
BRIt RERFTEEC BAREE
BAR) s REE-_ZT_NF+_-_HA=
+—HIFE AEBBEZZER
BEEELARFERARE
29,828,0007T (H1 B & 1 Ak 748 & 4R 23
FE)(HFEE34) ©
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HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. BAX(RUEESE)
2023
—ESE-EF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR FT
Raw materials and consumables used FE A RM B KO8 # i 16,018,473 16,229,059
Changes in inventories of finished goods — 2 M ER 7 & &
and work in progress (Note 20) (Krat20) 183,532 1,169,481
Employment benefit expenses (Note 8) EERNAX (#is) 2,329,459 2,366,827
Utilities B 7 RR R 1,623,713 1,559,087
Depreciation and amortisation e RN
(Note 14, Note 16, and Note 17) (Ktsti14 - Btati165%
Hiati7) 994,483 1,125,851
Transportation costs EHAAR 372,076 353,858
Office expenses NG 98,335 123,001
Impairment charges on property, plant and #1% « &&= & & @ RE X
equipment (Note 14) (Krat14) 21,498 3,978
Auditor's remuneration ZE R B &
— Annual audit services — FEHEZR® 3,500 3,500
— Non-audit services — FEZRRG 3,884 1,400
Rental expenses for buildings, machinery 25 - #E R HHMFHE S
and others (Note 16) Bz (Bfatie) 2,896 6,525
Net reversal of provision for decline in F B R E R
value of inventories (Note 20) HER (M7t20) (56,708) (262,591)
Other expenses HMFHx 376,127 491,662
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ SHERKA « $4E K& 7 5
costs and general and administrative AR —R RITE X 4258
expenses 21,971,268 23,171,638
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HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

8. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES

BEEAFX

2024 2023

—E_ME =

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥ETFTT ARMFT

Wages, salaries and bonuses T& - &M RIEsT 1,983,418 2,030,766
Pension costs — defined benefit pension BRREHA — RERF
plans, defined contribution plans RKeETHE - REMHRK

and retirement benefits (Note (a)) =T8I BRI R (B et (@) 191,736 178,576

Other welfare benefits (Note (b)) Hib@ M (Aatn) 154,305 157,485

2,329,459 2,366,827

(a)

Pension costs — defined benefit pension plans,
defined contribution plans and retirement benefits

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group is obligated to make lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of
service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plan that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not
set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
The long service payments are paid out from the
Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
group contributed approximately RMB1,017,000 (2023:
nil) to long service payments scheme.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group has participated in state-sponsored
defined contribution retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group and the eligible
employees are required to contribute 13% to 22% and
7% to 8%, respectively, of the employees’ basic salary
(subject to a cap) at rates as stipulated by the relevant
municipal governments. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees. The employees of the Group
in Hong Kong join MPF Scheme, a defined contribution
plan. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group contributed approximately RMB116,734,000
(2023: RMB115,905,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored
retirement plans.

(a)

BAEHRAS — REBABME
B RERRGTERBRAEF

BRETBEBIEN) AEBEEE
ERE T BRI EEB R
EAAREERGESAFNETIE
B —REFIE - B EIUR
REENSEHFSEREEE - I
Mk A A S B ERmARIE A S
BR NG EIEET 2 s o NE B
EREIMEENBRETMRGE
o RERBENFTEIMFHRA
EENFEASI N -REBEE=Z
“MNE+-_A=+—HLFERN -
AEERRBRE S S EHRAOA
R¥1,017000c(ZE==F 1 £) o

1R BB B i 938 Bl MR R AR TE
AEBHEABEFPRANIBES R ER
XA AEEFTRARETE - AE
EREEREBEDIREEER
T 3% 22% M 7% 2 8% 1E H i
K (FTE L) Lk ERABBEHERLT
RE - BRULTEFEHEFIN  AEH
HEMRERRARS X HRKE
BF BB A BEEREE - BINE
BENFARKET HBABRRER
RIRETEIASE - AEERBENE
B2HRREeE (—HAEHRRK
8 REBEZZT-NF+=—A=
+—HLEFE AEERLEEAER
EHMERTEERNDARE
1167340007 (ZE == : AR¥
115,905,0007T) ©
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HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

8.

EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension costs — defined benefit pension plans,
defined contribution plans and retirement benefits
(Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the
Group contributes to stated-sponsored employees’
social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam.
The Group contributes to the scheme at a rate of 20%
of the employee’s salary. The stated-sponsored social
insurance scheme is responsible for the entire
obligations payable to retired employees. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group contributed
approximately RMB47,789,000 (2023: RMB49,202,000) to
the aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in other countries
and regions, during the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group contributed approximately RMB26,196,000
(2023: RMB13,469,000) to the social insurance scheme of
other countries and regions.

Other welfare benefits

All of the Group’s employees in Mainland China
participate in employee social security plans, including
medical, housing and other welfare benefits, organised
and administered by governmental authorities. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
contributed approximately RMB154,305,000 (2023:
RMB157,485,000) to these plans and the Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of these
plans.
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8.

BEEAFEX @)

(a)

(b)

BRARSHEAK — %E?E%U?@ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ
8 REHRGEREBRIKER (EF)

BRESENRNEERBRTE A%
EAHEBmEEMEREHNES
HERBETEELER - AEEIE
BEFEH20%M&TEER R
KEENAEZHBHEAREN
HEeRBAEFAE - REE_ZT=
WE+—A=+—HILtFEE K&
EH i EREHNESREETE
MR AR 47,789,000 (ZE =
=4 ARM49202,0007T) °

1B IR H A B R Rt [ /9 38 Al Rk 48
BE AEBRBE T _WFE+
— A=+ HLEFEREMABRR K
& 2 it g @A R RO AR
26196000 (ZE—=F : ARK
13,469,0007T) ©
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HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

8.

EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 8. EEG®MNBEX#E)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals () HENuBESHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the RAFE  NEBRMREEHMA
highest in the Group for the year include one (2023: THEHA N (ZEBE_=ZF : W) A
two) director whose emolument is reflected in the E2E EMESRNHE4000 AR
analysis shown in Note 40. The emoluments payable to Mme-BE_T_NF+_A=1+—
the remaining four (2023: three) individuals for the year BIEFEREMFHTHEM(ZEZ
ended 31 December 2024 are as follows: =F =) ATZBEWT :
2024 2023
=Sl 1 -2 3 —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFTT ANRBFor
Basic salaries and allowances HEAF & K2R 12,153 6,369
Bonuses 14T 8,523 5,455
Benefit scheme contributions BRI B H 3k 261 147
Other benefits H 48 A 221 42
21,158 12,013
(d) The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (d BREFEMEE XK T8 E)
except for the directors, whose emoluments have been G A mE A T Z2BE N T
disclosed in Note 40, fell within the following bands: AT EE
Number of individuals
AE
2024 2023
—E-ME —_F-=
Emolument bands B <& &5 [E
HKD3,000,001-HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7 JT & 3,500,000 JT 2 1
HKD4,000,001-HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 78 7T 2= 4,500,000/ 7T — 1
HKD4,500,001-HKD5,000,000 4,500,001 JT £ 5,000,0005 7T 1 —
HKD5,500,001-HKD6,000,000 5,500,001 7 JT. & 6,000,000 JT 1 1
4 3
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BE_ZT-_MOF+-_A=+—BItFE

9. FINANCE COSTS — NET 9. B RE
2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
) RMB'000
AR F T AR FT

Interest expenses MEFAXZ

— Borrowings — BB 442,838 533,080
— Lease liabilities (Note 16) — HEaE W) 6,324 11,343
449,162 544,423

Net exchange losses on financing activities &l & )& ) = A A [E X
(Note 10) B8 %5 (i 10) 29,334 78,108
Less: finance costs capitalised in building & : EA&{ERAWE - BE

and machinery in property, plant KRBT R s
and equipment (Note 14) WETISE R (A1iF14) (4,310) (6,581)
Finance costs MBE R 474,186 615,950
Interest income FEWA
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITFERFEWA (86,193) (98,358)
Net finance costs M58 RFHE 387,993 517,592

10. FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES — NET 10. EAREE — FE

The exchange differences included in the consolidated RIFERERFTAZELEZEBEAT
income statement are as follows: HE

2024 2023

—E-MEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥ETF T AR TFT

Other losses — net (Note 6) HihEE — F58 (hite) 159,467 100,927
Net finance losses (Note 9) Br 7S Es 18 BE (A7 2E9) 29,334 78,108
Foreign exchange losses — net N EE — JF 58 188,801 179,035
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

1. 5

BB XX

KRB Wt RIONBR 2 RIS & 1S

2024 2023
—F-NF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AREFT
Current tax on profits for the year FEm Az BNEAT IR 143,673 298,901
Deferred income tax (Note 32) EIEFTISHE (K7 a232) 42,023 (129,707)
185,696 169,194
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (@) BBANEH

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2023:16.5%).

Mainland China enterprise income tax

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries
established in Mainland China are required to pay
income tax at a rate of 25% in accordance with the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC.

As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Mainland
China, sixteen subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC
obtained High and New Technology Enterprises
("HNTE") status and are entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15% during the year (2023: seventeen subsidiaries).
The status is subject to a requirement that these
subsidiaries reapply for HNTE status every three years.

Vietnam income tax

As approved by the relevant tax bureau in Vietnam,
subsidiaries established in Vietnam are entitled to four
years' exemption for income taxes followed by nine
years of a 50% tax reduction based on the income tax
rate of 20% (2023: 20%), commencing from the first
profitable year after offsetting the losses carried forward
from the previous years, and are entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 10% for 15 years,
commencing from the first year generating income
from the operation.

The applicable tax rates for all subsidiaries in Vietnam
range from nil to 20% during the year (2023: nil to
20%).

(b)

(c)

REBFEMKL ZH B R RAE
165% (=T =% : 165%) < T X
BAFER -

B At FTE B
“EENF-A—HE RPEH
MR Z B AR - ARRHE

15 3 19 B H225% 2 B & B B
B8 -

KR EANABE B E - A
Gl ok AN NG =
FEmtE(SHEMEE]D &
% WRFERNEREZE 5% ER
MECE_=ZF: +tHHBA
7)) - ZERABTZENBLARE
= FEHHEBR RN EEEIRD
HIE °

MR B

KA BRGE R E  EREK
VHB AR BENEHEBTFE
HENBEZEEENFER &
7R20% (== =4 : 20%) B FT5H%
& BEMAEHNE  EENF
AP BRI R BE - WERERE
BEEARKAZEEFTFERZEXEER
FriSfifi R 10%E+RF -

FN - MR BETE B A R A E
ARE NEZE20% (T ==
F o TEI%) o
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d)

Other income or profits tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands. No provision for
Cayman Islands profits tax has been made as the Group
had no assessable profit arising in or derived from
Cayman Islands during the year (2023: nil).

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands were incorporated under the International
Business Companies Acts or the Business Companies
Acts, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands. No provision for
British Virgin Islands profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from British Virgin Islands during the year (2023: nil).

The Company's subsidiary established in Macao is
subject to an income tax rate of 12% (2023: 12%).

The Company’s subsidiary established in Uruguay is
subject to an income tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%). No
provision for Uruguay profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit arising in or derived
from Uruguay during the year (2023: nil).

The Company's subsidiaries established in Nicaragua are
subject to income tax at the rate of 30% (2023: 30%).
As approved by relevant tax bureau in Nicaragua, the
subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from profits tax
during the year (2023: exempted).

The Company's subsidiaries established in Samoa are
exempted from profits tax during the year (2023:
exempted).

The Company's subsidiary established in Turkey is
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2023: 25%).

The Company's subsidiaries established in the United
States are subject to income tax at the rate of 27.5% to
30% (2023: 27.5% to 30%).

The Company's subsidiaries established in Mexico are
subject to income tax at the rate of 30% (2023: 30%).
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HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d)

Other income or profits tax (Continued)

The Company's subsidiaries established in Honduras are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2023: 25%).

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities, as follows:

11. FrEHMAxX#@)

(d)

HaFrERMNER (&)

i N/NCIResp: v il v 13- F/NC]
EIE5% (B =4 1 25%) Y=
B ERBR

AEBERPISHANERN,(BE) 8
PR ERBEA NGRS B RSN
MEFHMEFEZERERD
Rl ZZ20F :

2024 2023
—E-mE =&
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT AR For
Profit/(loss) before income tax, after BrETERAIEF(E18)
excluding share of net losses of (A HOBR FEAG ARE 2205
investments accounted for using ARZIEEFER)
the equity method 797,693 (127,774)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REAREBRB AR
applicable to profits of the respective % | 2 & b Fi &
subsidiaries T 2 FIE 156,455 62,156
Preferential tax treatment of certain ETHBRR BB
subsidiaries frid (93,823) (45,881)
Expenses not deductible for income tax “EEAFTSEE B K9FIBRAY
purposes =] 39,090 30,023
Tax losses and temporary difference for I ZEHERIEEFT B A E
which no deferred income tax assets KT IB &8 & B A
was recognised =2 55,060 23,665
Reversal of previous recognised B0 B A RERELE TS
deferred tax assets on taxable loss BERERTEE 37,304 18,744
Utilisation of previous unrecognised EFABAERERH
taxable loss and temporary difference  FERR %% B8 & E B
=5 (21,901) (8,953)
Withholding tax relating to unremitted 7 BT B 2 5K E
earnings of subsidiaries AR H B 22,217 29,908
Others HAth (8,706) 59,532
Income tax expense PS5 2 185,696 169,194

10% withholding income tax is generally imposed on
dividends relating to any profits earned in PRC
commencing from 2008 to foreign investors, while for
some PRC entities held by companies incorporated in
certain places, including Hong Kong and Singapore,
preferential tax rate of 5% will be applied if such
companies are the beneficial owner of over 25% of
these PRC entities according to PRC tax regulations.

PR EMSHERINEEEED
KZZEZNF R ZERREF]EH
f& B — R BBI0%TBIR TSR » M
PETHE (BIEES R M)+
Mz 2 AR BRFREIEEM
T Wz E R RIRIE R B 2 B
| 75% 5 B E R iR 5% 2
Em#AB A ZH%HER
BE -

=5
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(e)

OECD Pillar Two model rules

The Group has operations mainly in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Vietnam and Americas. It is within the
scope of the OECD Pillar Two model rules. As of the
reporting date, there is no public announcement in
Mainland China and Americas. Hong Kong announced
that it plans to implement the Global Minimum Tax and
Hong Kong Domestic Minimum Top-up Tax (“HKMTT")
starting from 2025 onwards. It was released after public
consultation and indicated that the government
introduced the amendment bill for Pillar Two into the
Legislative Council in January 2025. Vietnam approved
the Global Minimum Tax and Qualified Domestic
Minimum Top-up Tax which took effect from 1 January
2024.

Since the Pillar Two legislation was not effective in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Americas at the
reporting date, the Group has no related current tax
exposure. The Group applies the exception to
recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income
taxes, as provided in the amendments to HKAS 12
issued in July 2023.

Under the legislation, the Group is liable to pay a
top-up tax for the difference between the Global
Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (‘GloBE') effective tax rate for
each jurisdiction and the 15% minimum rate. All entities
in principal area of operation within the Group have an
effective tax rate that exceeds 15%, except for
subsidiaries that operate in Vietnam.

The Group's assessment indicates that for Vietnam the
weighted average effective tax rate based on
accounting profit is 15% for the annual financial year
ended 31 December 2024. Considering the impact of
specific adjustments in the Pillar Two legislation, the
Group was not exposed to paying Pillar Two income
taxes in relation to Vietnam and did not recognise any
current income tax expense for the year in this regard.

For 2024, the average effective tax rate excluding
dividends received from subsidiaries and withholding
tax (calculated in accordance with paragraph 86 of
HKAS 12) of the entities operating in Hong Kong
exceeds 15%.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(e)

OECD Pillar Two model rules (Continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing its exposure to
the Pillar Two legislation for when it comes into effect.
This assessment indicates for Hong Kong that the
average effective tax rate excluding dividends received
from subsidiaries and withholding tax based on
accounting profit exceeds 15% for the annual reporting
period to 31 December 2024. The Group might not be
exposed to paying Pillar Two income taxes in relation to
Hong Kong.

Based on management’s assessment, the application of
the Pillar Two legislation is not expected to increase the
Group's annual effective tax rate, assuming effective in
2025.

In addition, based on the current assessment there is no
material impact from exposure to Pillar Two legislation
on the going concern assessment or on any asset
impairment.

12. EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

11. FrEHMAxX#@)

(e)

BEMABTRE_ERBRE (&)
N2 B I 75 5T (i S — SR ) AR B
REEBRNRR - ZFHBERKE
BmME HE-_ZT-_NF+_-_A=
+—HIEANFERSH  ERNSE
FBENFEEHERRE (TREaN
BARIKREZEE RTENT) B8
159% ° ZN 55 [ ok 4 5L & 75 T B 2 1
TSR o

REEEENFE  BER=_F=
REER - BRAXE EPIEHA
SRMAKRENFEERRE -

SN - RAR B BIRHE - SO OB
HRFEQLEFAREMNEEREL
BEATE -

12. BRER(BR)

(a)

E- %N
FRERERN(BER) AR DR HE
BARMEERN, (BE) BRIAFAE
BOTEBRZNETFHBETHE -

2024 2023
—E-ME —EF-=
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of  ZANA &G AL
the Company (RMB000) w A (EiE)
(AR#®FT) 553,536 (375,700)
Weighted average number of ordinary — E 217 & 38 I% A1 4&
shares in issue (thousands) (A TFE) 918,000 918,000
Basic earnings/(losses) per share BREANEFN(EE)
(RMB per share) (BRA R TT) 0.60 (0.41)
Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings/(losses) per share is the same as the
basic earnings/(losses) per share since the Company
does not have dilutive shares.

R AR A A #SEH R - W
FhEEac(BR) E8KREAR
&M,/ (ER) 18R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHILFE

13. FREEHOLD LAND 13. KAE®ELH
pLip 2 2023
—E-NF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AREFT
Freehold land KAEREL M 104,718 109,393
The movement in freehold land during the year is set out FRKAERLHNEBBEROT
below:
2024 2023
—B-NmEF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR Fr
Opening net book amount FHEREFAE 109,393 188,492
Transfer to Investment properties (Note 15) BEESEIREYZE (H7£15) — (77,887)
Disposals HE (5,043) —
Currency translation differences BEmE =5 368 (1212)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 104,718 109,393
The Group's freehold land is analysed as follows: REBZKAEELIDTWT :
2024 2023
“E-MEF —ZT_=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FiT ARKFr
Freehold land KA EEHE L3
— In Cambodia — NRIFFE 51,199 50,446
— In Turkey — RETHHE 21,495 27,085
— In Mexico — REWEE 15,477 15,557
— In Uruguay — RERE 10,998 10,837
— In Nicaragua — RJE ALK 5,549 5,468
104,718 109,393

Freehold land is the land owned for an unlimited time.
Freehold land is not amortized by the Group's entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHLEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W% BERRE

Machinery
and Furniture Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
BF HBERRE HAREE RE HEIR @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBFT ANREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARKEFT
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=f£-F-H
Cost or valuation BA A 4302575 9,387,736 71818 73,084 1315,793 15,151,006
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (894,984) (4,582918) (26,909) (39417) — (5,544,228)
Net book amount BEFE 3,407,591 4804818 44909 33,667 1315,793 9,606,778
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=%1+=8
=t-ALEFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 3,407,591 4804818 44909 33,667 1315,793 9,606,778
Additions RE 7,512 143,787 4131 4291 558,708 718429
Transfers &3 165,785 689,164 1,043 8481 (864473) —
Disposals (Note 36) HE (Hiit36) (376,914) (242,848) (2,727) (2,554) (130673) (755,716)
Depreciation charges (Note 7) WEXH (Hit7) (160,683) (834,26) (11,551) (8,262) = (1,014,758)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 75) BREREME H:#15) (58459) = = = = (58:459)
Impairment charges (Note 7) BEZ L (HE7) = (3,978) — — — (3978)
Currency translation differences EMhEEE 2532 (1,218) 2718 21 (2,601) 1452
Closing net book amount FRREZE 2,987,364 4,555,463 38523 35,644 876,754 8,493,748
At 31 December 2023 R-ZB-=f+=A
Sar=Ff
Cost or valuation BA A 3,848,580 9,342,584 47,260 76,248 876,754 14,191,426
Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges  Z&H T & RIR{ES H (861,216) (4,787,121) (8,737) (40,604) — (5697,678)
Net book amount HREHE 2,987,364 4,555,463 38523 35,644 876,754 8,493,748
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-ME+=A
=t-ALEFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 2,987,364 4,555,463 38,523 35,644 876,754 8,493,748
Additions RE 18,308 19,052 4,511 4,219 762,572 808,662
Transfers BE 51,929 427,276 233 72 (479,510) -
Disposals (Note 36) HE (Hfit36) (1,371) (40,979) (336) (1,145) (18,036) (61,867)
Depreciation charges (Note 7) TEX W (Hi7) (150,763) (748,693) (9,289) (7.811) - (916,556)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 75) BREREME (Hi#15) (34,330) - — - - (34,330)
Transfer from investment properties (Note 15) BRAREME Hz#15) 9,283 - — - - 9,283
Impairment charges (Note 7) REX M (H27) - (21,498) - - - (21,498)
Currency translation differences EnEEE 4,611 3,290 74 682 (3,852) 4,805
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,885,031 4,193,911 33,716 31,661 1,137,928 8,282,247
At 31 December 2024 R-B-mFE+=A
=-r=f
Cost or valuation B A 3,896,853 9,434,650 39,089 75,542 1,137,928 14,584,062
Accumulated depreciation and impairment charges ~ R&H T & KRB H (1,011,822)  (5,240,739) (5,373) (43,881) —  (6,301,815)
Net book amount REHE 2,885,031 4,193,911 33,716 31,661 1,137,928 8,282,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, depreciation of
RMB826,730,000 (2023: RMB904,025,000) was included in cost
of sales, RMB4,026,000 (2023: RMB5,236,000) was included in
selling and distribution costs and RMB85,800,000 (2023:
RMB105,497,000) was included in general and administrative
expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, finance cost of
RMB4,310,000 (2023: RMB6,581,000) was capitalised as part of
property, plant and equipment (Note 9).

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no property, plant and
equipment were pledged.

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Buildings are
shown at fair value, based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. The gross carrying amount is
restated to revalued amount of the asset. The accumulated
amortisation at the date of the revaluation is adjusted to
equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount of the asset after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses. The Group did not revaluate
the buildings as at 31 December 2024, because in the opinion
of the directors, the net book amount of RMB2,885,031,000 as
at 31 December 2024 for such buildings did not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair value.

The valuation performed as at 31 December 2022 was
determined using the depreciated replacement costs
approach and was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Current gross reproduction costs of the buildings are adjusted
for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimization.

The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income tax
liabilities, was regarded as other comprehensive income and
credited to revaluation reserve in equity (Note 28).

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs or
revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 15 to 40 years
— Machinery and equipment 6 to 15 years
— Furniture and fixtures 3 to 10 years
— Motor vehicles 5 to 7 years

See Note 42.7 for the other accounting policies relevant to
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

15.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved)  14. Y13 - BERRE (&)
If buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the amounts W FABE LKA ESE  €EER/W
would be as follows: ™
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR#FT AR Fr
Cost B AR 3,578,376 3,530,103
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (1,038,498) (887,467)
Net book amount IREFE 2,539,878 2,642,636
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REYE
2024 2023
—B-NMF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT ARBTFT
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_ZT_WE+=-A
=t+—HLHEE
Opening net book amount FHERHE A 382,700 268,891
Transfer from property, plant and EHEBYE - KE &
equipment (Note 74) Xt (Kat14) 34,330 58,459
Transfer from freehold land (Note 73) HEE A KAERETH
(Hfat13) — 77,887
Transfer to property, plant and EEEYE - RE MEE
equipment (Note 74) (HteE14) (9,283) —
Transfer from right-of-use assets EEREAREEE 838 3911
Transfer to right-of-use assets RSP AEEE (4,816) —
Depreciation (Note 6) & (Htite) (28,762) (27,768)
Currency translation differences HEmE = 2,484 1,320
Closing net book amount FRREFE 377,491 382,700
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_ME+=A
=t+—8
Cost DN 526,537 499,561
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (149,046) (116,861)
Net book amount SRHEFE 377,491 382,700

The Group's investment properties are stated at historical cost

at the end of each reporting period.

AEENRENENE RSB RZES

BB B
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

Other income (Note 6) E U A (ffite)
Rental income from operating leases KEHEEMNHES WA
Depreciation expenses TERXZ

15. REW=X &)

REVEREZRBANSH

2024 2023
—ENE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR T
49,257 42212
(28,762) (27,768)

The above investment properties, excluding the related
freehold land, are located in China, Vietnam and
Cambodia and are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 3 to 50 vyears. Freehold land is not subject to
depreciation.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31
December 2024 was RMB454,929,000 (2023:
RMB431,376,000). The valuation was determined using
the sale comparison approach and was within level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The
most significant input to this valuation approach is price
per square metre.

The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or
construct investment properties as investing and rental
inflows as operating cash flows.

See Note 42.6 for the other accounting policies relevant
to investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

16. LEASES 16. #HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) MRHEEEEEBRBANSE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following KEBEBABERITUTEBRRE
amounts relating to leases: B FIE -
2024 2023
—E-MmEF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT AREFT
Right-of-use assets FHAEEE
Land use rights + i fsE R 1,054,072 1,078,554
Buildings and warehouses EFEREE 138,349 178,913
Equipment and others Byl 4,890 6,607
1,197,311 1,264,074
Current lease liabilities BIERfHE & & 48,889 47,038
Non-current lease liabilities JERNEAFHE B & 131,111 162,270
Total lease liabilities HESBEAR 180,000 209,308
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2024 T NFHRFEENERE AR
financial year were RMB25,685,000 (2023: BE R AR®25685000T (= =
RMB180,572,000). =% : AR#¥180,572,0007T) °
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RESRBERBIANSHE

16. LEASES (Continued) 16. & (&)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b)
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

ek ERITATAEEEENK
I8

2024 2023
—E-mE —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Depreciation charge of FHAEEEREXH
right-of-use assets
Land use rights + M fE R 27,882 34,486
Buildings and warehouses BFEREE 43,842 66,990
Equipment and others R R H At 2,542 5,956
74,266 107,432
Interest expense MEFAX
(included in finance cost) (Note 9) (GtABIEER)
(BtaE9) 6,324 11,343
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI BHEEMNFA X
(included in selling and distribution (FFASHE kD ER X
costs and administrative expenses) LARATE )
(Note 7) (K1at7) 2,856 6,510
Expense relating to leases of low-value & BAR%IR A L5 #57E
assets that are not shown above as ENEEEEEHER
short-term leases (included in cost of B3z (5 A$HE KA K&
sales and administrative expenses) TBFER)(K15E7)
(Note 7) 40 15

The total cash outflow for leases in 2024 was
RMB44,204,000 (2023: RMB181,750,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

16. LEASES (Continued)

(c)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases buildings, warehouses and machinery
and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods and have no extension or termination
options. Rental contracts for buildings and warehouses
are typically made for 2 to 50 years. The Group leases
various machinery and equipment under both
operating and finance lease agreement. The original
lease terms are from 2 to 10 years. Under the terms of
the finance leases, the lessors will transfer ownership of
the assets to the Group by the end of the lease term.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received,

uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

16. HE (&)

(c)
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16. LEASES (Continued)

(c)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held
by the Group.

All land in the Mainland China and Vietnam is
state-owned and no individual land ownership right
exists. The Group acquired the right to use certain land.
The premiums paid for such right are treated as
prepayment for operating lease and recorded at cost as
right-of-use assets, which are depreciated over the lease
periods using the straight-line method.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

See Note 42.24 for the other accounting policies
relevant to leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BEE

Customer
relationship Goodwill Total
EFB&% GRS et
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AR¥TFor AR T T ARKTT
At 1 January 2023 R-EZ-=
—HA—H
Cost or valuation PSR 54,918 26,974 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RETE#HE (16,475) — (16,475)
Net book amount IREFE 38,443 26,974 65417
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=
+t=A=+—AH
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 38,443 26,974 65417
Amortisation charges (Note 7) B (M) (3661) — (3,661)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 34,782 26,974 61,756
At 31 December 2023 i
+t=—A=+—-8
Cost or valuation AR S E 54,918 26,974 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RETH#E 5 (20,136) — (20,136)
Net book amount REFE 34,782 26,974 61,756
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-_NF
+=-—A=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FEYERHEFAE 34,782 26,974 61,756
Amortisation charges (Note 7) B (Bt 7) (3,661) — (3,661)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 31,121 26,974 58,095
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-MEF
+t=A=+—AH
Cost or valuation AN X Mk (B 54,918 26,974 81,892
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (23,797) — (23,797)
Net book amount R FE 31,121 26,974 58,095

During the year ended 31 December 2024, amortisation of
RMB3,661,000 (2023: RMB3,661,000) was included in general

and administrative expenses.

HE_Z_NWF+_A=+—HIFE
B AR E3661,000T (ZE =4 A
R#3,661,0007T) BT A—MRITERAS ©
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Customer relationship 15 years

Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Goodwill

The Directors have performed an impairment review of
the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December
2024 and have concluded that no provision for
impairment is required. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to the
lowest level of cash-generating units identified by
business segments.

A summary of goodwill by reporting segment is
presented below:

17.

BILEE (&8

(a)

(b)

(c)

895 75 3£ % B
ARSI B GOK T IR A
1R 5 AT F 4 Y S A A
B

REBIE 154

EFR%
EXBAMHTESNEPARZE
BEMNDFERR - EFPREDN
ARFHAR - BERERAR R
B NBRERBEIIR -

5k 3

EEEHBER T _MF+=-A
= t+t—HZEAAEETRER
SR BB AN IRREEE - BLRE
RS FIREEEE SRR
EB DB 2 RIKIBSEEENM
K o

BBREDEDIZEABRBELT

2023

—E-NE —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥FT AR TFT

Garment fabrics and Garments [EREYSEi & 17,641 17,641
Yarns wWig 9,333 9,333
26,974 26,974
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HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The calculation of
goodwill on the garment fabrics and garments and
yarns segment use cash flow projections based on
financial estimates made by the Directors, with
reference to the prevailing market conditions, covering
a period of five years and assuming revenue growth
rate of 3.0% (2023: =4.3% to 10.0%) and 5.0% (2023:
5.0%) and gross profit margins ranging from 11.0% to
12.0% (2023: 11.2% to 11.6%) and 3.6% to 4.5% (2023:
4.6% to 5.6%). The long-term growth rate is 3.0% (2023:
10.0%) and 5.0% (2023: 5.0%). The cash flows are
extrapolated with reference to the production capacity
of the cash generating units acquired. The cash flow
projections are discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of
8.0% (2023: 8.0%) and 12.0% (2023: 12.0%) per annum.
Based on management’s assessment results, there was
no impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2024
and 2023 and any reasonable change to the key
assumptions would not lead to an impairment.

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 42.2.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

17. BEREEE (&)

(c)

e (E)
ReELSE um‘msz@ﬂamw
EREEFEERE - B ERE

i%?’“ﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁim%ﬁﬁ$E'&F§$i«<
?‘E%ﬁﬁmm’ﬁﬂjéﬁﬂﬁﬂéﬁmiﬁ
SREBAE m%*ﬂiﬁﬂf‘ﬁ

W BRRAEERE3.00(—E-=
&1 —43%Z%10.0%) 55.0% _7:
=4F : 5.0%) AR EFEN F11.0%

FENRIR(ZEZ=F : 112%%
11.6%) }3.6%E45% (=4
46%;.;56%) KEIE R K 53.0%

—E =4 100%) &5.0% (= F
T=F i 50%) c RERETIRERT
WHEIRSELES uE’JFad’é“’E‘
H o ISR ETERIRETFL.0%

— = :8.0%) K% 12.0% _7:5
F 1 12.0%) BB AT AL IR K EEIE o R
BEEEMNTIHEAR R_ZT=N
FR-ZF-_=F+-F=+—80"
P R R Hﬁixfﬁj“rﬂﬂfﬁ
AR TG EBRE -

7B R M T 422FT i 5T B o YR P
BRARNEEINABLEE -BE
AT EE  ESFETRERND
HEEEMHHRABENESHBRA

BE B R (B B 2 17 SRR E R
A WA ERERERE RS
R HEERN UG NEEEER
PATHEEREMNBEREE -

BEEWOIRERSELBMUIAE
TTRE HlJ“C ﬁ%ﬁ S WEEIB TS
KHBELENEBAHPERNR
TEABNIRELEGARIE
He-ReELBURREELSN
MR A EEIE R MmN ERE
BHRKERZR (ANEE D ED) HER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHILFE

18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18.

EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

are as follows:

DR ESIRNIRE

UTRERGREERBRERNESE

2024 2023
—E-lmEF —F-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FrT AR T
Associates /NS 356,675 374,448
Joint ventures BETHE 4,954 4590
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 361,629 379,038
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income T ARERGERRRERNSE
statement are as follows:
2024 2023
—ENE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ETFTT ARBTFT
Associates i A—l/NC] (23,732) (2,738)
Joint ventures & 364 324
For the year ended 31 December HE+=ZA=+—8H
IEFE (23,368) (2,414)
(a) Investments in associates (a) RELEQATNRE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ETF T AR TFT
Share of net assets of DA IEETEEE R A
unlisted associates BEFE 356,675 374,448
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18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Movements of shares of net assets of associates

attributable to the Group are as follows:

18. LUEZREIIRAVIRE (&)

(a)

REZARNRE ()
REE RS AR EE A
mT -

2024 2023

—E-MEF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB000

ARB¥TFT AREFT

Opening amount e 374,448 355,774

Additions (i) R (1) — 22,000
Share of loss based on RIR P 5 YR 25 JE 1S

equity held BB (23,732) (2,738)
Share of other comprehensive income 1R 1E AT FRE 25 B 15

based on equity held Efh 2 a 5,959 (588)

Closing amount iR &5 356,675 374,448

(i) On 28 September 2023, the Group subscribed
20% equity interest in Jiangsu Yifeng New
Materials Technology Co., Ltd. and it became an
associate of the Group. The investment has been

fully paid in 2024.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group's interests in the associates.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at
31 December 2024 which, in the opinion of the
directors, are individually immaterial to the Group. The

associates as listed below have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group.

i) RZEZ=Z=FLA=F+N
H ASEBERBE IH=ZH
MEEHEE A R A 8 #920% 8%
ECAEKAAREBEHEQ
Al ZWEBEER - -_UF
BT o

AT SR SR BB 2 A
CEET TR

UTAR-ZZE-_mF+=—A=1+—
H ZEERAENEAEELTE
AZAEEBE AT - THBZEA
AIZ A ER L EARAER - SWAA

SEEERA -
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18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18. IR ZEIERNETE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investments in associates (Continued) (a) MEBEATMNRE(HE)
The Group’s investments in associates that are RZZEZMFEF+-_A=+—H ' =&
individually immaterial to the Group as at 31 December S BN BN ER B (@ Bl I B K Y BE
2024 are: ERANKE :

Name of associate

Place and date of incorporation
and form of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars of issued
share capital

Interest held

SRR HR B AR
BENRERE EEERER TEXH BRTRAFE gy £
Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries British Virgin Islands, 2 July 2015, Manufacturing of UsD200 45%
limited liability company garments in Vietnam
BRESEERERARRANBAR HERLHE —T-1F iNEEE SR 200%7T 45%
tAZR BREEAF
Xinghong International (Hong Kong) Co,, Limited and Hong Kong, 11 June 2019, limited ~ Manufacturing of garment USD5,000,000 30%
its subsidiary liability company fabrics in Vietnam
EZER (FE)BRARRANBAR R —Z-NFRAT—A RERREEH 5,000,000% 70 30%
BREERT
Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Holdings Limited and its Hong Kong, 16 November 2018, Manufacturing of HKD20,000 45%
subsidiary limited liability company garments in Vietnam
ZrEaE(BE) ERERAAREAMB AR & “F-\F1+-A iNEET e 20,000 7T 45%
+RB BREARA
Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology Development Nantong, Mainland China, 9 March  Manufacturing and sales of RMB10,000,000 30%
Co, Ltd. and its subsidiary 2020, limited liability company textile products in
Mainland China
TIHAEBRHEERERAARANBERR hERDER 2% PR B A B RS E AR ¥100000007 30%
ZANE  BEREERRA Htm
Treasure Reap Limited and its subsidiaries British Virgin Islands, February 2017, ~ Manufacturing of garment Usb100 45%
limited liability company in Vietnam
LEERNARENRBAR RERREE —2—+F NEEEERK 1005 7T 45%
—R-BEREEAR
HLD (HK) Trading Limited Hong Kong, 24 February 2022, Trading of textile products HKD100 45%
limited liability company in Hong Kong
HLD (HK) Trading Limited BB —F--%-R REBETHER 1004 7T 45%
ZtHE - BREEAF 25
Jiangsu Yifeng New Materials Technology Co, Ltd. Changzhou, Mainland China, 28 Manufacturing and sales of RMB110,000,000 20%
September 2023, limited liability textile products in
company Mainland China
TSN RBRAA FERMEN —E=FNA RPENBRERHEE AR #110000,0007C 20%
“t+NB - BEREERRA B
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HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in a joint venture

18. LUEZREIIRAVIRE (&)

(b)

REELENRE

2024 2023

— k2 —F-=F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥EF T AREFT

Opening amount Y& 4,590 4,266
Share of profit pak: Yoyl 364 324
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,954 4,590

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interests in the joint venture.

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at
31 December 2024 which, in the opinion of the
directors, is immaterial to the Group. The joint venture
as listed below has share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also its
principal place of business.

The Group's investment in a joint venture as at
31 December 2024 is:

AEERAZE
HRBIE -

1 S0 HE 28 30 SR AE AR

ATAR T -_MFE+_-_A=+—
B §$wﬁﬁ$%@ITiﬁz
AEBERZELE - TIHAREREZ
BAEREBRRAK  YHAEH
BEERSH  AEMAZERER
NMRETBEEEME -

Place and date of incorporation

Name of the joint venture and form of legal entity

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

share capital Interest held

At B R B HA R
RELERR EEERER TEXH BRTRARE iigeY $+3
Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company Vietnam, 30 June 2016, limited Cargo transportation by VND20,000,000,000 50%
liability company land and sea; other
assistant services; cargo
landing-over, storage,
management
consulting in Vietnam
R BN RBHG R A HE —T-AEAA=ZTH REBETERENE 20,000,000,00047 /& 50%
BREARA % H AR -

BNHE FE

oy

E}Euﬁn
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18. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c) Summarised financial information for associates
and joint ventures

The tables below provide summarised financial
information for associates and joint ventures as a group.
The information disclosed reflects the amounts
presented in the financial statements of the relevant
associates and joint ventures and not the Group's share
of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity
method, including fair value adjustments.

18. LAEZREFIIRAVIRE (&)

(c)

BEATARAECENBENBE
*Sl'
TREMBEATRA B E (F
B—EAR) OB EHBER - O
8 B R REIER B AT RA B
GRS REFT LTI
WA E S EHE R - RO
{5 3T A IR 35 B A5 FR A 20K 05
HEEE  BEATERE -

2024 2023
—E-mE B =4

RMB’000 RMB000

AR#TF T ARET T

Current assets MEEE 1,383,186 1,093,130
Non-current assets IERBEE 862,608 914,135
Current liabilities mEBAE 1,356,355 1,099,269
Non-current liabilities ERBARBE 6,908 8,246

Year ended 31 December
BHE+-A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023

—E_NE —E-=4F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥T T ARKT T

Revenue WA 2,603,229 2,369,891
Cost of sales 55 A AR 2,465,014 2,214,813
Loss for the year FEEE (54,085) (3,962)
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

19. ZEFEITNEMITA

Financial
Financial Financial assets at
assets at assets at amortised
FVPL FVOCI cost Total
BAFEFTA BAFETA  REHHEK
BRM HiZEWs S BR B9
TREE MWEMEE SHEE Mt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANREFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT
31 December 2024 —E-lmE
+t=RA=+-H
Assets as per balance sheet BEEEBERMIEE
Trade and bills receivables EWE 5 Kk EFFKIE
(Note 21) (KizE21) — — 1,403,935 1,403,935
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAEMEZE
(Note 22) W& R EE
(K17F22) — 375,631 — 375,631
Financial assets at FVPL ZATEFABRRN
(Note 23) SREE (Hi23) 18,057 - - 18,057
Derivative financial instruments PTES I A (HiE31)
(Note 31) 100,652 — — 100,652
Deposits and other receivables & ] H At FE AR X
(Note 24) (Ktit24) — — 176,252 176,252
Pledged bank deposits and BEERRITETAK
cash and cash equivalents ReRRESFEY
(Note 25) (K1£25) — — 2,904,191 2,904,191
Total =t 118,709 375,631 4,484,378 4,978,718
31 December 2023 —E-=
+=—A=+—AH
Assets as per balance sheet BEESERMIEE
Trade and bills receivables BWE Sk EERIA
(Note 21) (Btat21) — — 1,571,477 1,571,477
Financial assets at FVOCI BATEFAREMER
(Note 22) W& FlEE
(K17#22) - 336,761 - 336,761
Financial assets at FVPL ZATEFABRERN
(Note 23) SRMEE (K5t23) 15,903 — — 15,903
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMT A (K aE31)
(Note 31) 84,792 — — 84,792
Deposits and other receivables ’e & H e AR R
(Note 24) (Hi5F24) = — 1,342,670 1,342,670
Pledged bank deposits and BRI EFA R
cash and cash equivalents ReRRESZFED
(Note 25) (Btat25) = — 2,228,003 2,228,003
Total wEt 100,695 336,761 5,142,150 5,579,606
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

19. REFEINEMTAE (&)

(Continued)
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
FVPL amortised cost Total
BEAFEFA R 8 A AR
B Sl B8R Y
SRAE SRAaE et
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARMTF T ARMFr ARMFr
31 December 2024 —E-EF
+=A=+-H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EXESEXRFIIAR
Supply chain financing (Note 29) 4 FESE &b & (1 7£29) — 2,111,445 2,111,445
Borrowings (Note 30) B8 (#i30) — 6,395,495 6,395,495
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMITA
(Note 31) (Bt7E31) 42,025 — 42,025
Trade and bills payables (Note 33) & E 5 K& ZE ¥ 5108
(K1a£33) — 886,393 886,393
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R HEMER
excluding statutory liabilities R (TBIEEE
(Note 34) B1&)(Hit34) — 448,425 448,425
Lease liabilities (Note 16) HEBEHT16) — 180,000 180,000
Total et 42,025 10,021,758 10,063,783
31 December 2023 —E-=fF
+t=A=t+—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EE&EBXRFFIEME
Supply chain financing (Note 29)  {fESEREE (K/2E29) — 2,495,882 2,495,882
Borrowings (Note 30) B8 (B7i30) — 7,723,204 7,723,204
Derivative financial instruments MESMIT A
(Note 31) (Bt7E31) 7,055 — 7,055
Trade and bills payables (Note 33) &N B 5 Rk EIEFHIE
(Kta£33) — 868,848 868,848
Accruals and other payables TEIRER R EMER
excluding statutory liabilities BRR(TEEEE
(Note 34) B1E) (K 7E34) = 470,560 470,560
Lease liabilities (Note 16) HEBEHFI16) — 209,308 209,308
Total #Et 7,055 11,767,802 11,774,857

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is
the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.
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20.

INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER

200 FERBRBDYE

DEVELOPMENT
(a) Inventories FE
2024 2023
—E-IF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FTT AR T
Raw materials R % 2,501,852 3,076,504
Work-in-progress T8 m 342,277 360,810
Finished goods BIRY fh 1,984,565 2,149,564
4,828,694 5,586,878
Less: provision for write-down of W MR EE R 2
inventories to net realisable HHEZ B
value (285,587) (342,295)
4,543,107 5,244,583

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB16,202,005,000 (2023: RMB17,398,540,000) (Note 7).

Reversal of write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value amounted to RMB56,708,000 (2023:
RMB262,591,000). These amounts have been included in
‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income statement
(Note 7).

FRATHEL ~ B o R B an PARK AR &
Al R ERBRIEE SRR - A
INHEFIREEE © B o MR
MRABRERMF  BEES T H
MEEXRANREBREZEEER
(REBESKLERNAE)  MTE
REEER AERFERARER
B@i s that &8 (HIER A =X
RS K SHEE PR O AT AR AR)

BRAEHAAINABERANTE
RS & 58 A A R #16,202,005,000 70
(Z=2==%F: AR#¥17,398,540,000
70) (B 5E7) o

MRFEZZEFEREAAR
#56,708000C (T E - =F: AR
#5262,591,0007T) ° ZE L FEEFTA
AW mRZEERA] R (HaE
7)°

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-MF&FHR 157



e MBWRMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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20. INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER 200 FEREBERDYEE)
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
(b) Properties under development (b) EERDYWE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E_=F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ANE#®F AR For

Properties under development expected FEHRME T HyZ&E 3 ¢
to be completed:

— Expected to be completed — TEE 218 B MTERK
within 12 months — 185,322
— Expected to be completed — TEE 218 B 12 5ERK
after more than 12 months 261,510 230,227
261,510 415,549
Properties under development ERPYEBE
comprise:
— Land use rights — T Hb{E R 205,281 225,141
— Construction cost — B 56,229 190,408
261,510 415,549

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2024, land use rights of
RMB205,281,000 (2023: RMB225,141,000) were in
Mainland China with lease terms of 40 to 70 years.

As at 31 December 2024, land use rights with net book
value of RMB11,752,000 (2023: RMB25,531,000) is under
development, and the construction cost is
RMB56,229,000 (2023: RMB190,408,000). The remaining
land use rights with net book value of RMB193,529,000
(2023: RMB199,610,000) has not been constructed.
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R-BE-_NWE+-_A=+—HB &
FE A T AEAEARE
205,281,000 (ZE =4 : AR
225,141,0007T) * FE IR A40=70
'Ejz o

NRZE-_ME+=—_B=+—8" &
EFE A A RE11,752,00070 (==
— =4 : AR#25531,0007T) B
HEAREDEERY - #EE Jﬂzzw%
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AR #190,408,0007T) ° EEE/EF@/E}
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20.

21.

INVENTORIES AND PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

(b) Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. FERBRDPYE®)

(b) BEPWE(E)
BRTORDOBER/RDEE -
FHEAMEERER ZEZEHEY
ER—REEBHZERTK -

21. EREZREENRE

2024 2023
—E_PUE —E-=%F

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥ET T ARKTT

Trade receivables JEUN & 5 5RIA 1,188,956 1,139,523
Bills receivable J& W IR SRR 302,898 460,758
1,491,854 1,600,281

Less: provision for impairment R EEE (87,919) (28,804)
1,403,935 1,571,477

As at 31 December 2024, included in the trade receivables
were amounts due from related parties of RMB32,076,000
(2023: RMB25,136,000) (Note 38).

Due to the short-term nature of the trade and bills
receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be the
same as their fair value.

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade and bills receivables are expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. Trade and bills receivables
are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional, unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and bills receivables with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Details about the Group’s
impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance
are provided in Note 3.

RZZF_WFE+—_A=+—8 " EKkES
FIEHR IR T RBLFARE
32,076,000 C(ZE - =ZF: AR
25,136,0007T ) (K1 £38) °

HREWE S RREFRAEHME - &
FREERSR SR FERR -

BWE 5 EZBEFAKERRELBE
L E R R IRE P 2 R - BN E
7 R EREFIABH AR —F3k 2 AR
(HfEMER  MEXBERZER
) RoBARDEE BREZLE
BERIBEVFEEGERESREER BRI
HBSZEARERD @ WA FEER -
AEERERKE S MREFIE - BAE
WEIEHNRERE » FIERUERAN =X
I EHANETE - BRAAKERERR
REEBEENFIERNMES -
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BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. ERESREEFIEE)

AEBRTHPIEAMETER 2 EEH—
BBOBAR METHMEREFPZER
HIZm1208 R - B E S MEEFE (B
HEREWE ST 2B IHERAH
HIZ BREE DA T

The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90 days
to its customers in Mainland China and 120 days to its
customers in other countries. The ageing analysis of the trade
and bills receivables (including amounts due from related
parties of trading in nature) based on invoice date is as
follows:

2024 2023

—E-F —T==
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFTT AR Fr
Within 30 days 30H A 792,344 953,266
31 to 90 days 31290H 506,811 439,782
91 to 180 days 91%180H 87,595 92,457
181 days to 1 year 181HZ=1F 9,619 50,451
Over 1 year 1F A E 95,485 64,325
1,491,854 1,600,281
Less: provision for impairment W BB (87,919) (28,804)

Trade and bills receivables — net JEWE 5 Rk EBEFIE

— FH 1,403,935 1,571,477

HRAEBEEAEALETSE  WEKEZ R
EBEFEEETNEERR -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and bills receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

RUE S REEFRRIZATERE :

Trade and bills receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:
2024 2023
—S-E —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T ARKT T
usb ETT 927,867 812,403
RMB AR & 290,160 670,109
VND WA 243,011 98,442
HKD BT 2,470 5811
Others =i} 28,346 13,516
1,491,854 1,600,281
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

21.

22.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and bills receivables.

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in net accrual of impairment losses on
financial assets in 2024 and 2023. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are written off when there is no
expectation of receiving additional cash.

Information about the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of trade and bills receivables.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

21.

22.

EREZREERIEE)
BERRRBO
AEBIRBEBT B REEDFEOH ML
HERTERBEEEE  AFERKE S
NMEBRZERAEBHEIEEE -

BERRERERERKRERBRER _-F
“HERZZE_ZFEIABRERE
EZRERBEFE o MR ERES
e 1B AR ANRR &Y 5RR R 1
B

FRARKEZRERRERAEEME
ER (= B R ~ HMNERR N M R R B0 FF
IBERMIES - RBERY - AREEY
MEAEERRSEREE S REENIER
BREfE -

BRAFEFAEMEZEKENE
BMEE

Current — bills receivables

BIH — BUREBERIA

2024 2023
—E-F —TE-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T AR TFT
375,631 336,761

Bills receivables held both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling of these assets are classified as financial assets at
FVOCI.

HRUEENRERERNEXTEER
BRRBRBFADSBREAFEFTA
Ht2HKRaENEREE -
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23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL

Non-current JEENER

23. RAFEFARENEHEE

2024 2023
—E-F —TE-=F

RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T ARKTFT

18,057 15,903

Equity investments for which the entity has not elected to
recognise fair value gains and losses through OCl are classified
as financial assets at FVPL.

See Note 42.9 for the remaining relevant accounting policies.

(a)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (a)
statement

During the year, the following gains were recognised in
the consolidated income statement:

Fair value gains on equity REA (BB), e — F
investments at FVPL recognised in ~ RERERAIZ A FET AR
other (losses)/gains — net HARARERN R FE

ERYREZFAHMEANEERR
FEESERBRZBRANEEDBER/ER
FEFABZNEMEE -

BRAEMARESRTECR - F2MME429 -

RESRBRBAZEH

FA - A TREENES R m R E

27 .
[T

2024 2023
—E-ME B

RMB’000 RMB'000
ANR#®FT ARBTFT

(Note 6) Wezs (ffit6) 2,154 3,454
Risk exposure and fair value measurements (b) EkHORAFEF=

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is
provided in Note 3.1. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining fair
value see Note 3.3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FENFE REREMERER

RECEIVABLES
pLip 2 2023
Sl 111 -3 —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT ARBFT
Prepayments, deposits and BERARE - RZER
other receivables H 1t FE W BR =X
Value-added tax recoverable fERIE (BT 305,614 264,480
Prepayments for purchase of raw materials 8 B JR #7169 78 (< 5118 136,555 87,974
Due from related parties (Note 38) JiE Uk B Bt 75 BRIE (a2 38) 78,310 77,524
Receivables from export tax refund R R U R R 57,725 63,139
Deposits e 50,072 60,234
Prepaid expenses TR 38,027 34,693
Rental income receivables WEYER S WA R
from investment properties AR 33,970 32,425
Prepaid income tax TR FiSH 25,269 96,474
Receivables from disposal of subsidiaries & KB A B EURBR X

(Note (a)) (et @) — 676,085
Receivables from disposal of land use rights & = 3458 F 42 K2 ) 2 -

and property, plant and equipment R 55 B =5 15 e Wi BR 3R

(Note (b)) (Btet b)) — 487,543
Receivables from sales of pollution B HE S RE PR IR SR

discharge rights — 14,559
Other receivables H i & U B 3K 35,867 30,513
761,409 1,925,643

Less: provision for expected credit loss B TR EEEERE
(Note (c)) (H15) (79,692) (99,352)

Prepayments, deposits and other AR RIE - e RH A
receivables — net FEYBR R — JF 5 681,717 1,826,291

HRRE REMBRRR ZEHTE - B
FREERR SR FERR -

Due to the short-term nature of the deposits and other
receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be the
same as their fair value.

BREREREMBYRR R A KB HRE
e 1) (= 55 B ~ 47N el B e ) =R e o O

Information about the impairment of deposits and other
receivables and the Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1. TEENMIFES c RIREBHE - AEEEY
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is &= AE R A S & E M IE KRR
the carrying amount of deposits and other receivables. BREE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Note (a):

The receivables from disposal of subsidiaries comprised:

On 4 August 2023, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
third-party company for the disposal of Fashion Time Viet Nam
Limited (“the Target”), including the entire issued share capital
and assignment of a loan payable to the Group. The gains on
the disposal of Fashion Time Viet Nam Limited were
RMB93,441,000. As at 31 December 2023, the consideration
receivables amounted to USD74,836,000, equivalent to
RMB530,085,000, were received in succession over the year.

On 13 October 2023, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company sold its entire issued share capital in Hongan Textile
(Huaian) Co., Ltd. (“the Target”) to a third-party individual for
RMB7,000,000. The transaction resulted in a disposal loss of
RMB1,352,000, with full payment received on 13 November
2023.

On 5 November 2021, the Company sold its wholly owned
subsidiary Great Triumph Investments Limited (“Target”) to a
third party for RMB810,387,000, comprising the equity transfer
(RMB130,950,000), dividend assignment (RMB68,571,000
payable within 12 months), and loan assignment
(RMB610,866,000 with four instalments due by 1 December
2024 bearing 5% annual interest). The transaction was secured
by pledged equity interests in Target subsidiaries until full
repayment. The outstanding consideration of RMB146,000,000
recorded as of 31 December 2023 was received on 15 April
2024.

The net proceeds received on disposal of subsidiaries in 2024
were RMB676,085,000 (2023: RMB170,013,000).

164 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED RIUIEIBREEAER AT

24, ENRIE - ZeRHEMERKRIRR
(&)
Bita) -

HEHE A R EEIR R EE

R-ZE-_=ZFNANHE  AARMESR
EHBAREE=ZFRATLE B W
Ho o PEREmERARTBEER
al) a%iWE%ﬁ%$&§%%H
AEENER - HERITHERFRA

2 Wz A AR #93,441,0007T ° F_;_
=F+-fA=+—8 EhRELEA
74,836,000 L (HER AR
530,085,0007T) ' B R A F E A FE & K
R o

m:%:z$+ﬁ+zav$ﬂﬁﬁ%
2B B A 7 A AR 70000007 # H
EUZHEBCELD)BRA TUEF“
TDWA%E%HWKE%% =51

o RSEXETEEEARKI352000
ﬁ'E%i%:E¢+*H+EE%%
U ER -

R-ZTE-_—&+—AFA8 AREHE
2EMBARERRERRAR ([BE
AF ) LA A R #810,387,0007C & F 5
=7 - BiEREEE (AR 130950000
7T) ~ R EE (AR¥68,571,0007T © 1
—EAARNEM REREE(ARE
610,866,0007C * A —ZF —PUF+ = A —

HRIDME S - FFEAE%) - X5
LLEZARKBARMNE S HREES
ER BEEEHEEAL -HE-ZTZ
=F+=-A=+—H%5 *EHK1
R #146,0000007TER =—Z — M40 A
+F B YE -

REZZTZNF - HEMEA B RER AT
BB FE B AR 676,085,000 (—F
—=%F: AR¥170,013,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

24,

25.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FARRIE - RERHEMEWERR
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
Note (b): Biaten) -
On 3 November 2023, an asset disposal agreement, was entered into R-ZEBE-_=ZF+—A=H ARABEIFEE
between Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co., Ltd., an ME AR IEXMBENABERAGHERE S
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the seller HRE TR XERERERAFMERES
and Shaoxing Paojiang Venture Construction Development Co,, Ltd. (TEF]) BLEELLNF BIAR A Y5 &+
(the "Purchaser”) as the purchaser for the sale and purchase of the FAEITIVEELER#E BREAARK
properties and land use rights located in Shaoxing, China at the total 975,085,0007T °
consideration of RMB975,085,000.
As at 31 December 2023, the current portion of the consideration R_BE-_=F+—_A=+—8 " *iﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁ’]
outstanding were disclosed as other receivables amounting to MBI HEBEAREMERERARE
RMB487,543,000 and there is no non-current portion of the 487,543,0007T * Iﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁlﬁﬂ,ﬁﬁ“ﬁ
consideration outstanding were disclosed as long-term receivables, BEAREWER  FRAREER TN
which was received on 6 February 2024. F = A/NHUER °
Note (c): it -
In 2024, the Group reversed an expected credit loss impairment of RZZT 4 ﬁ%@ﬁé\@ﬁ,ﬁﬁ%%)&ﬂéﬁ@
RMB19,660,000 (Note 3.1). In 2023, the Group made an expected AEMW,%P,O(;OTE(M’LE‘&Q:{?’\\f:%::
credit loss impairment of RMB47,514,000 (Note 3.1). i'$%§ﬁkﬁ%ﬁ§%%ﬁﬁAEM
47,514,0007T (F§5E3.1)
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 25. EEARITERUARRERAE
CASH EQUIVALENTS Z£EY
2024 2023
—E_-_MEF i
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFTT AR Fr
Pledged bank deposits B RITFER 23,908 66,208
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY
— Cash at bank and in hand — RITRFERS 2,880,283 2,161,795
2,904,191 2,228,003

As at 31 December 2024, bank deposits with net book
amount of RMB11,303,000 (2023: RMB53,957,000) and
RMB12,605,000 (2023: RMB1,083,000) were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings and guarantees for
operating activities, such as utilities, labor wages, etc.
respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no bank deposits
pledged as collateral for the Group's trade and bills payable
(2023: RMB11,168,000).

%_?_m¢+ A=+—8" %E@ﬁ

2RI AAR11,303,0007T (=& :
AEM%%mm@&AE%2mww
TL(ZZE == : AR¥1,083,0007T) FYR
TEREEER  HREAREBREITE
BEUARCE RS (e h KK - 4T T
BE)RBSZEAR -

RZE_WNF+_A=+—H " ~EEL
ERITEREEERERAEBENE
SREBEFEZERAR(ZTE=_=F: A
R #11,168,0007T) °
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25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 25, EEARTERUARBEERES
CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) EEW#E)
Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are EEBBRTEIUARBSRIASEEDYD
denominated in the following currencies: BIATEMETE :
2024 2023
—E_-_MME —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EF T AR TFT
usD eV 1,256,083 793,463
RMB AR 1,184,619 1,033,030
VND MEE 356,040 306,938
Turkish Lira (“TRY") TEEBEN([TEHEEHN]) 64,886 6,949
HKD BT 25,654 66,427
European Monetary Unit (‘EUR") BUME B A ([BT]) 2,447 3,275
Others Hith 14,462 17,921
2,904,191 2,228,003

Majority of the cash and cash equivalents are deposited with
banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of
the RMB denominated balances into other currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China are subject to the
rules and regulations relating to foreign exchange controls

B2 SRR RORA

promulgated by the Mainland China Government.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

26. RARKRMDEE

R RELREFEVMHERRATEA
 REFBZIRIT - ARBHEZRT R
REMEBARKGE SEHPERM - 5
AESTRENMBFEG ZBRIMNEE

Number of shares

Ordinary shares

RGEE ZER
(thousands) HKD000
(F&) FET
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each SREEIB TTER
At 31 December 2023 and 2024 RZBZ=FR-ZF-QF
+=—A=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
KRG EE EBER B 43 5 18 st
(thousand’s) RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(FR) AREFTT AREFT AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BEIRMR
Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each BREBIBIZER
At 31 December 2023 and 2024 RZZEZ=FR=ZF-NQ
F+-—A=+—8 918,000 96,958 462,059 559,017

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of

tax, from the proceeds.

BB D185 Bk

A DI ARESER
HIE) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 27. LR ABEBSR

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 7 April 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (‘the Share
Option Scheme”), which will remain in force for a period of 10
years up to April 2024. A nominal consideration of HKS$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option. The
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group from time to time
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the ordinary share of
the Company in issued from time to time.

From 23 March 2015 to 28 December 2015, the Company
issued various share options to subscribe for 6,500,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the above
options in cash.

The fair values of options granted were determined using the
Binomial Option-Pricing Model. The total fair value of these
options at grant date was RMB20,325,000, and no
administrative expenses was charged as all the options have
been vested.

The number of share options outstanding as at 1 January
2023 was 3,500,000, at the average exercise price of HK$8.27.

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai, company secretary, resigned from the Group
on 30 June 2023, and his outstanding options 3,500,000 were
lapsed. As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no
outstanding options.

BT E

BRER-_Z—NFNALtHBRBZERE
SRERZE - AN BN —IEERAETE (88
AR REBEZ_FT_IMFmA I+
TFEEE DB AR - BRE L ERER
ENREERERIET - EEREE
T 7N 62 [ A1~ B R A0 1Y F ) L i B AR R 5T
AT AR OB FTEEREETE
Feea TERITHRNEBE AT SHE
BARRA]DEE /T ERARAIZ0% ©

BE-_Z—hA=—A-_+=ZH&Z_-Z—FH
¢+ H +NAB - ARARETZHER
7 LATREE6,500,000 8 R R R E @B o K
& B 0% TF ok T E IS LAIR £ B B8 3k
e R o

BRHMEREN A FERA BN B
Eﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ ZERBRENE T BER

NF{EEEE A AR ¥203250007T ' A
R BB FE - WENBRITER
e

MRZZB-=F—FH—H ' HARTENER
M8y B A3,500,0001 © FHTTEE AE827

BT e

REMEBHFFELER= =%NA
=+ BB EAEERS - Eﬁ*ﬂﬁmﬁ
A& 43,500,000 B K3 - R=Z —POF+
—A=t+—H  AEETEHKTERNE
A% #E o
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HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

28. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 28. HitERBRRE EF

(a) Other reserves (a) Huf#E
Transactions
Share-based with non-
Capital compensation Statutory  Revaluation  Translation controlling
reserve (i) reserve  reserves (ii) reserve reserve interests Total
DR AER S RHIMN
ERGRE) RERE LR BfififE EiififeE BmZRB @it
RMBO0O RMB00O RMBOOO RMBO0O RMB00O RMBOOO RMBO0O
AREFT  AREFT AREFr AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFI

At 1 January 2023 RZF==F-A-A 162,041 12145 619785 193,042 29955 (17120 999,848

Transfer from retained earings ERERRET = = 39836 = = - 39836

Currency translation differences HHBREER = = = = 2315 = 23156

Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = - (2310) - - - (2310)

Surplus on revaluation of buildings BTEHER

— Gross —f4 - - - (7229) - - (7229
— Deferred income tax (Note 32) —BRFEH
(Writs2) = = = 837 = = 837
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F1+=R
== 162,041 12,145 657,311 186,650 531M (17,120) 1,054,138

At 1 January 2024 RZZ2-ME-A—-H 162,041 12,145 657,311 186,650 53,111 (17,120) 1,054,138

Transfer from retained earnings ERARDET - - 49,523 - - - 49,523

Currency translation differences EWREER - - - - 16,123 - 16123

Wind up of subsidiaries k) A - - (14,608) - - - (14,608)

Transaction with non-controlling interests S HIHER 2R 5 - - - - - (27) (27)

Surplus on revaluation of buildings BFEHER

— Gross — 8% - - - (7,229) - - (7,229)
— Deferred income tax (Note 32) — BRAEHR
(it32) - - - 794 - - 794
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-ME+-R
=9=1g 162,041 12,145 692,226 180,215 69,234 (17,147) 1,098,714

Notes: Kiaz -

(i) The capital reserve represents the difference between 0) EAREEREEBETRASEER
the amount of share capital issued and the net asset —ETNFEESATRENE
value of the subsidiaries acquired under a group NAEIMEEFEMNERE -
reorganisation in 2004.

(i) As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the (i) RIER B A B Z B0 - AR

BI7E R B AR L K A E 2 KB
ANRIBRESEESSHERZ
LE B $R B — 0 B R R R A
(CESHBEFEBRE) B2ETH
B MEERENSBEEERR
B8 2 B sE & AR #9509 ¢ Bl 4%
TR R

Company's subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior years' losses)
to statutory reserves, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. Such transfer is not
required when the amount of the statutory reserve
reaches 50% of the corresponding subsidiaries’
registered capital.
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28. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 28.

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Other reserves (Continued)

Statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses
of the corresponding subsidiaries, to expand the
corresponding subsidiaries’ production operations, or to
increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries.
Upon approval by resolutions of the corresponding
subsidiaries’ shareholders in general meetings, the
corresponding subsidiaries may convert their statutory
reserves into registered capital and issue bonus capital
to existing owners in proportion to their existing

ownership structure.

Retained earnings

HibRERREBER (@)

(a) EHAf#E (&)
EERBERTRARNEHEABENEA
AEE ERARMB AR EEL
LR INARKHE AR - BE
BHENBARRRNRRAS L
URZZEE - AR E AR AR
REEE FBERAERER X
IR BOR RO F5 AR L Pl 1R 12 % 35 1T
AP -

(b) REEF

2024 2023
—ZEpEF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB000
AEB¥F AR Fr
At 1 January R—HA—H 7,535,924 7,942,758
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF,(EE) 553,536 (375,700)
Transfer from revaluation reserve to HEMGREEREE
retained earnings REE &= A
— Gross — #EE 7,229 7,229
— Deferred income tax (Note 32) — BEFTS
(Kt7E32) (794) (837)
Dividend relating to 2024 ZENFERE (83,474) —
Wind up of subsidiaries A B A A 14,608 —
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR — 2310
Transfer to statutory reserves R TFE G (49,523) (39,836)
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—8H 7,977,506 7,535,924
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29. SUPPLY CHAIN FINANCING

29. HEHERE

2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T ARKTFT

Current BOHA
Guaranteed 2R 1,911,445 2,495,882
Unguaranteed EER 200,000 —
2,111,445 2,495,882

The guaranteed supply chain financing of RMB1,911,445,000
(2023: RMB2,495,882,000) as at 31 December 2024 were
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group.

The carrying amounts of the supply chain financing are
denominated in RMB, USD and EUR.

At 31 December 2024, the Group's supply chain financing
were repayable within 1 year.

(a)

Liabilities under supplier finance arrangement

Supplier finance arrangements are characterised by one
or more finance providers offering to pay amounts that
an entity owes its suppliers and the entity agreeing to
pay according to the terms and conditions of the
arrangements at the same date as, or a date later than,
when suppliers are paid. These arrangements provide
the entity with extended payment terms, or the entity’s
suppliers with early payment terms, compared to the
related invoice payment due date.

The Group entered into supplier finance arrangements.
Under the arrangements, the banks acquire the rights to
selected trade receivables from the suppliers. The terms
and conditions of the arrangements are unchanged
from the trade payables from this supplier, other than:

the due date has been extended to 31-365 days
after the invoice date from the original 0-90
days, and

the acquired payables are no longer able to be
offset against credit notes received from the
supplier.

170 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED RIUIEIBREEAER AT

R-ZE-_ME+—_FA=+—H  2EFMH
JEERE AREE1,911,445000C (—FE ==
£ AR#2,495882,0007T) EAREEE T
M A RIHELR o

A SENE PR AN R - 2572 R BK
T -

W-E-—mE+=A=+—A  KEEH
B RAER | P -

() HEFEBERHBETHEME
(B R R A 2 0 1 8 2 — AR
% ERMAIRHERHT I RBRE
BEMRE  MEERSRBZH
B 130 T 4 B8 7 3K D
A BA B X - BRRHE
B AR B A B B A (S
R AN R IER - e A e
PR3 1R B AO 1 3R 13

AEBFILTHERREZN R
BRYE - RITHHERESETRE
WE AR - 2B IR K
R B3R B L e T A AN B 5 K
HRFTE - BRIATIERS :

FHAH B R RAI0E 90K IE
REZZHHE%ZK31E365
X' &

ESHREMRR T B E
e ER KN ERREE



HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

29. SUPPLY CHAIN FINANCING (Continued)

(a)

Liabilities under supplier finance arrangement (a)

(Continued)

Range of payment due dates

Liabilities under supplier finance HEDMELHFETHNEAR
arrangement

Comparable trade payables that are not part & F M FE P RIS 2 HEEY A]

of the supplier finance arrangement LR B 5308 (R —%
(same line of business) B4R)

Carrying amount of liabilities under supplier
finance arrangement

Liabilities under supplier finance HEERELHETNEE
arrangement
— of which the supplier has received — HERCHRERES
payment from the finance provider WER T 3

29, HEHERE 2)

HEFREZHFEATNER (B)

HREHEEE
2024 2023
—E-E —E-—F

31-365 days after 31-365 days after

invoice date invoice date
BREAHE BHEHH%
318365X 3182365k
0-90 days after 0-90 days after
invoice date invoice date
BREAHE BEHH%
0£90K 0E90K

HEBMERHERTNEENKRE
=1

2024 2023
“ENE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARE T AREFT
2,111,445 2,495,882
2,111,445 2,495,882

There were no material business combinations or
foreign exchange differences that would affect the
liabilities under the supplier finance arrangement in
either period. There were non-cash transfers from trade
payables to liabilities under the supplier finance
arrangement of RMB1,911,445,000 and RMB2,666,518,000
in 2024 and 2023 respectively.

The carrying amounts of liabilities under the supplier
finance arrangement are considered to be reasonable
approximations of their fair values, due to their
short-term nature.

RMEMEAEA - ESEREL S O
SERERSTERERMELH
EHEIHNEBE RZZENFER=F
Z=F  RENESFEEEHEE
ERELHETHNAENERSE
BoRlA AR 1,911,4450007T & A
R #2,666,518,0007T °

HRHERBELHR TNRER

RHME  HEREERAREAF
BENEEELUE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

30. BORROWINGS

30. B

2024 2023
g a1 2 —E=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Current mE
Unsecured bank borrowings M MIRITEE 767,248 279,272
Secured bank borrowings (Note (a)) BHEMRITEE (Wite) 200 253,666
Other bank borrowings (Note (b)) HmRITEE (A ®) 2,431,694 3,612,713
3,199,142 4,145,651
Non-current IR E
Unsecured bank borrowings M MIRITEE 104,999 308,718
Secured bank borrowings (Note (a)) BEBIRITEE (Wit @) 199,800 —
Other bank borrowings (Note (b)) HMRITEE (M i70n) 2,891,554 3,268,835
3,196,353 3,577,553
Total borrowings BEHE 6,395,495 7,723,204
Notes: Btat -
(@  As at 31 December 2024, bank borrowing of RMB200,000,000 @ R-TE-_WNF+=—A=+—8"Ri7E

(2023: RMB200,000,000) was secured by entitled export tax
rebates to be collected with amount of approximately

RMB11,303,000 (2023: nil) (Note 25).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has no bank borrowing
secured by the pledged bank deposits (2023: RMB53,666,000
with amount of approximately RMB53,957,000) (Note 25).

(b) Other bank borrowings of RMB5,223,248,000 (2023: (b)
RMB6,881,548,000) were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of

the Group as at 31 December 2024.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in

the following currencies:

B AR#200,0000007T (CE=-=5: A
R #200,000,0007C) LA B HEWERL A AR
#11303,000C (ZE-=%: E)HE 0
R (K aE25) ©

RZZE-_NE+=-A=+—H ' £5£E
W BT EE A KRR TE s EIE IR
(ZE—=F : AR¥53,666,0007T A4
A R #53957,0007T) (i 5£25) ©

R-ZB-mME+=-A=+—8 HiR
ITEE ARE 5223248000 (Z T ==
£ AR#6,881,5480007C) FHAEEE
T Hf B A R HELR o

EENREAERATERE

2024 2023

—E-NF =
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AR TFT
RMB AR 4,091,483 3,839,683
HKD BIT 1,811,221 2,496,934
usD ETT 287,536 524,495
VND WrEE 205,255 856,156
Australian Dollar (“AUD") AR FEs T (8T ]) — 5,936
6,395,495 7,723,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

30. BORROWINGS (Continued) 30.

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum are

as follows:
2024
“E-@E
HKD VND
Br  HEE
Bank borrowings BAEE 3.5% 5.8% 3.7%

B8 #@)

IHEFHERFERN XM

2023
—T-ZF
RMB HKD VND usD AUD
AR Br HEE e BT

3.8% 3.7% 6.3% 3.9% 4.6% 0.8%

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

R-Z_MOF+-_A=+—H A&EEE
EmMERBNT

2024 2023
—2omEF —F-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR#FT AREFr

Within 1 year 1ER 3,199,142 4,145,651
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 2,399,656 2,184,860
Between 2 and 5 years 2ES5F 796,697 1,387,693
More than 5 years SEPA E — 5,000
6,395,495 7,723,204

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts as at the balance sheet date, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately
RMB1,858,913,000 (2023: RMB1,840,635,000). These facilities are
subject to review at various dates during 2024.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
bank loans during years 2024 and 2023.

Details of the Group's exposure to risks arising from current
and non-current borrowings are set out in Note 3.1.

HRTR2ZEMT BB WEER - &
B2 AV EEEREERS

[

AEBABAZEERMEABNARKE
1,858,913,000c(ZE—_=F: AR¥
1,840,635,0007T) ° ZEME BN _T =1
FR[E HHBERR] -

R-B_WNER-ZTE_=F  AKEET
HRTERM B R

FRASHE I?m@)&#um@”ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁun
) R\ B 7 15 B B R 3.1

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-JFFHR 173



e MBWRMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. fTE€mMTIA
pLip 2 2023
—E-NEF —ZE==
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AREFT
Assets: BE:
Cross currency swap contracts (Note (@) ~ KX EBREEL (K15 @) — 44,949
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHINEES D (MiE®)
(Note (b)) 99,963 39,843
Cotton option contracts (Note (c)) RICEARES X (M 72 () 689 —
100,652 84,792
Liabilities: BiE:
Cross currency swap contracts (Note (@) ~ R XEBBEE 4 (M5 @) 2,040 —
Forward foreign exchange contracts REIINEE A (FTaE®)
(Note (b)) 39,451 6,506
Cotton future contract (Note (d) BIEEBE A (M) 534 549
42,025 7,055

Non-hedging derivatives are classified as current assets or
liabilities.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0)

The cross currency swap contracts as at 31 December 2024
comprised two contracts with notional principal amounts
totaling RMB324,114,000 (2023: five contracts with notional
principal amounts totaling RMB659,327,000).

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December
2024 comprised ninety-seven contracts with notional principal
amounts totaling RMB5,360,201,000 (2023: one hundred and six
contracts with notional principal amounts totaling
RMB3,801,423,000).

The cotton option contract as at 31 December 2024 comprised
three contracts with notional principal amounts totaling
USD2,555,000 (2023: nil).

The cotton future contract as at 31 December 2024 comprised
one contract with notional principal amount of USD4,580,000
(2023: one contract with notional principal amount of
USD5,268,000).
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BiEBEOBEMNEELRSBEAA
R#324114,000c 2 68 (=T =4 :
AMEEASEREEANRKEE59,327,000
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R-ZE-mE+=-A=+—8 - =8
BEOBEREALTEHEERSBEAA
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F:—HEAMNEBELASBEAARE
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R-ZE-—mE+-—A=+—08  18tH
BEHNBR=-NEZELSEEAGHA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

32.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32. IEERBH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred BEMEHEERBEMRGEHREBEZD
income tax liabilities is as follows: T -
2024 2023
—S-E —E =%
RMB’000 RMB000
AR%For ARETFT
Deferred income tax assets; BIEMBHEE :
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — BiB12E A% KE 2
after more than 12 months EETIRE E 191,685 203,168
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — E12@ A R E 2
within 12 months EETIRE E 151,146 232,650
Deferred income tax assets — gross RIEFTISIHEE — B8 342,831 435,818
Set-off of deferred income tax assets WIHBELEFTSMEE (30,398) (38,714)
Deferred income tax assets — net BEMBIHEE — F5 312,433 397,104
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSHEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — BBNREAEIMNZ
after more than 12 months FEFIEEE (173,793) (197,903)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled — ENREARSZMNZ
within 12 months RIERRIBEE (12,050) (38,904)
Deferred income tax liabilities — gross RIEFTSITHAE — 8% (185,843) (236,807)
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities HIHBELEFSHAE 30,398 38,714
Deferred income tax liabilities — net BEMBHAE—F5E (155,445) (198,093)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32. BERBH &)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FAREMESHEERBENE S (WE
during the year, without taking into consideration the ZRBIEERNGE DEEER WA ER)
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as W
follows:
Deferred income tax assets; BEMBHEE :

Lease Temporary
Tax losses liabilities differences Total
BEFRE HEAE TKREER et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT

At 1 January 2023 R=-FB-=%—-HF—H 164,508 33,383 144,223 342,114
Credited/(charged) B/ (k)
— to the consolidated income — Rl ER
statement 143,749 9,169 (55,686) 97,232
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB A7 — (3,528) — (3,528)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+=—A=1+—H 308,257 39,024 88,537 435,818
Charged Eitls
— to the consolidated income — RERA R
statement (52,451) (8,845) (31,691) (92,987)
At 31 December 2024 RZTZMF
+-A=+—H 255,806 30,179 56,846 342,831

176 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED RIIEIBREEAR AT



HeMBERMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32. L_i_ﬁfT SH (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEMFHARE:
Fair value Withholding
adjustments on tax relating to
assets relating unremitted
to business Revaluation of Right-of-use  Full deduction earnings of
combinations buildings assets  of equipment subsidiaries Total
AREK =1
‘btz Kt 2 =)
BEZ REFBH
DNHERE BRER EREEE ERIIARE :piilks st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AEBTFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFfT  AREFT  AREFZ
At 1 January 2023 =F- 90,939 13628 31,784 5,104 131,072 272,527
Charged/(credited) ?D Il?/ 'ﬁu )
— to consolidated income — PG k&R
statement (69,306) (837) 8251 (491) 29,908 (32475)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR = = (3.245) = - (3,245)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=%
+=-A=+-8 21,633 12,791 36,790 4613 160,980 236,807
Credited g
— to consolidated income — RigglhaEx
statement (9,383) (794) (8,640) (723) (31,424) (50,964)
At 31 December 2024 RZEZME
+-A=+—"H 12,250 11,997 28,150 3,890 129,556 185,843

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets of RMB89,320,000 (2023: RMB85,841,000) in respect
of tax losses amounting to RMB673,291,000 (2023:
RMB617,612,000) as the Directors believes it is more likely than
not that such tax losses would not be utilised before they

expire.

;Ekﬁﬁ MEET S 2 BB IBRE
R MELAB AT gEE 1B B 18 2 e FR i i 1)
REBREFZAR N _FE_WF+=
A=+—RH XAEELEGRARK
673,291,0007C (= & __i AR
617,612,0007T) B 4 18 &5 18 T SR B RE B 16
EEARS9320000L (ZE=_=F : A
R¥85841,000T) - REAREEHEEH
TRIBEEERAE i RN EEmal NES A o
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HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the tax losses with no deferred tax

assets recognised carries forward are as follows:

TS8R ()
R-ZZE-_WF+-A=+—H 2HRAL
BELCHBREEZHEABRGENT :

2024 2023
—E-NE —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARMFr

Year of expiry of tax losses MIEEEEREE
2024 _?_mi — 26
2025 =S, i 3 13,153 38,879
2026 —ERF 24,245 77,642
2027 __7_:t¢i 77,742 77,750
2028 —FE-N\F 114,999 100,389
2029 —E-hEF 44,030 6,371
After 2029 —ENFE 399,122 316,555
673,291 617,612
Deferred income tax of RMB794,000 (2023: RMB837,000) was ARET794000L (ZE_=ZF : ARK

transferred from other reserves to consolidated income
statement. This represents deferred tax on the difference
between the actual depreciation on buildings and the
equivalent depreciation based on the historical cost of

buildings.

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB129,556,000 (2023:
RMB160,980,000) have been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payables on the earnings of subsidiaries
when remitted to the Company. As at 31 December 2024, the
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries is RMB2,591,120,000 (2023:
RMB3,219,600,000). There are no unremitted earnings with no

deferred tax liabilities recognised (2023: nil).
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AEBE B A FEARD AR EF
ENENHBERRELMEHREBARE
129,556,000Ic (ZE Z = F : AR ¥
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

33.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

33. ENESREEFE

2024 2023

—E_ME =

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR FT AREFr

Trade payables FETE 5 50R 792,006 779,731
Bills payable FE =B FRIE 94,387 89,117
886,393 868,848

As at 31 December 2024, included in trade payables were
amounts due to related parties of RMB36,429,000 (2023:
RMB21,802,000) (Note 38).

The fair values of trade and bills payables approximate their
carrying amounts.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables (including
amounts due to related parties of trading in nature) based on
invoice date is as follows:

W-Z-_mME+—f=+—H0 EHZ5
HEFRBRESEMNEBRINRBARE
36,429,000 C(— BB - =6 : AR
21,802,0007T ) (K1 5£38) °

BNESEREBEFAZAFEEERKE
BERE -

RN E S RERSE (RE N E RN
SHmT 2 508 REEE N BRSO
mF :

2024 2023

—E-NF —T=-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR¥Fr

Within 90 days 08B R 809,439 809,169
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 37,547 33,252
181 days to 1 year =S E:S 28,604 13,041
Over 1 year THE A £ 10,803 13,386
886,393 868,848
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BE-T-_ME+-_A=1+—RHILFE

33. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 33. BENESREERIE &)
Trade and bills payables are denominated in the following ERNESEEBRFIRZNTEBE
currencies:
2024 2023
—E-MEF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT AR Fr
RMB AR 542,012 527,034
usb ETT 240,904 254,548
VND A 79,714 80,823
Mexican Peso (“MXN") BEFHER
(T2AEFRRD 14,120 1,399
EUR BT 6,848 424
TRY THHEBN 2,682 2,822
HKD BT 113 1,798
886,393 868,848
34. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. FREARHEMEMIER
2024 2023
—B-NF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥EFT AR T
Accrued wages and salaries TEIRR T & K % 303,036 299,687
Payables for purchase of property, BEWE KEIEEZ
plant and equipment FETBR 3K 196,431 244,270
Accrual of operating expenses TEREEAYT 155,864 127,605
Tax payables other than enterprise FEA BB (R EPREH
income tax BR AN 60,012 79,707
Payables for fees generated from the ETEREEEEEAN
certain returned assets & 2 EERR 29,828 —
Loans from a minority shareholder B—&LHEBRRZER 15,624 12,624
Interest payable FET A S 13,512 15,333
Payables for investment in an associate REEE R RIRIRE 2
JE& 1~ BR R — 22,000
Other payables Hh fE S BR X 37,166 48,728
811,473 849,954

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the carrying
amounts of the Group's accruals and other payables
approximate their fair values.
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BE_ZT_WF+-_A=+—HLFE

35. DIVIDENDS

The dividend paid in 2024 were RMB83,474,000 (2023: RMBnil),
being HKDO.10 per ordinary share (2023: HKDnil per ordinary
share).

35. KB

RZZE_MFEXNHNRESBBAAR
83474000 (ZE_=F : A\REZ
TT) c BNEREBERI0OBT(ZE ==
F:gRLBBREABTT) -

2024 2023
—E-OF —T_=

RMB’000 RMB000

ARKETT ARBFT

Interim dividend for the year ended

HE_Z_mW&+_-A

31 December 2024 HKDO.10 =+ HIEFEFRHRKE

(2023: HKDnil) per ordinary share

B E B0 T
—F-=4F

83,474 —

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2024 of HKDO.10 (2023: HKDnil) per ordinary
share, amounting to a total dividend of RMB85,007,000 (2023:
RMBnil) is to be presented for approval at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 23 May 2025. These financial
statements do not reflect this as dividend payable.

EEz—_T_NE+-_A=+—H1t
FEREIRAHRE SR RBR0108T
(ZZ==F %) BREBRESEAA
R#85007,000 (ZE==F : ARKEE
7)) BRARRR_ZE_RAFAA -
“HEOZBREAF KRS LR A4
M o ANBF S 3R 2R N R A Ut S B A B 5 BR

o
15N

2024 2023
—E-F —EZ=F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR F T

Proposed final dividend for the year ended #HZE_-ZT —[OF+— A

=+ —BLEFERIRKH
I B ERE RAR010E T
(ZB==%: Th)

31 December 2024 of HKDO.10
(2023: HKDnil) per ordinary share

85,007 —
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36. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

Cash generated from operations

36. BE&REEHR
(a) EEFELENES

The reconciliation from profit/(loss) before income tax
to cash generated from operations is as follows:

BRETSBATE N (B 1R) BT

EEMRSHEWT

p{1p2] 2023
—E-ME —Zo=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BATERATER,(EE) 774,325 (130,188)
Adjustments for: KA
— Amortisation, depreciation and —HE - WERRE
impairment (Note 6 and Note 7) (HisFe R H17z7) 1,044,743 1,157,597
— Share of losses of investments — DEEAEREARZ
accounted for using equity method (Note 18) BEBIE(HF18) 23,368 2414
— Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment — HEWE « BE K
and land use rights (Note 6) R R T P A
(#is#e) (11,136) (182,841)
— Net reversal of provision for decline in the value of ~— F&RE R 2 B0 F5E
inventories (Note 7) (Bi#z7) (56,708) (262,591)
— Gains on sales of pollution discharge — WEHERE R (A ite)
rights (Note 6) — (325,055)
— Accrual of provision for impairment — BREWE S HERERE
of trade receivables (Note 217) (Bfat21) 68,044 20,704
— (Reversal)/accrual of provision for impairment of — (B m|),/TBIRFEM A -
prepayments, deposits and other receivables e K& H fth U RR T
(Note 24) RIE R (2 24) (19,660) 47,514
— Finance costs — net (Note 9) — MBER — FE(1i#9) 387,993 517,592
— Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative — TESBIARFEBE/
financial instruments (Note 6) (Yzs)(Hiite) 19,110 (120,438)
— Settlement on derivative financial —TEemMT EEE (Wite)
instruments (Note 6) (150,662) (130,977)
— Fair value gains on financial assets at — BATFE A B
FVPL (Note 6) TREEATERS
(Hizte) (2,154) (3454)
— Settlement on financial assets at FVPL (Note 6) — RAFEFABRHNESR
BEFE (Mite) (2,602) (5.996)
— Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 6) — HEMB QR M (A :76) — (92,089)
— Employee benefit obligations — EERAEE 2,572 =
— Net exchange differences — ERERFE (23,256) 2,980
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects of HEAEY(REKREZ
exchange differences on consolidation): BE 5 R R ERIN)
— Inventories —R7E 758,184 2,554,971
— Properties under development — BEERYE 154,039 (74,753)
— Trade and bills receivables — EREBE S REERHKIEA 99,498 (256,283)
— Financial assets at FVOCl — BATEFAEME2ERE
HemBEE (38,870) 43,854
— Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — BRFE - e REMEK
BRAR (84,372) 153,016
— Trade and bills payables — ENBSREEHKE 1,928,990 (1,020,631)
— Contract liabilities — GHAaE (249,087) 151,701
— Accruals and other payables — EREAREMEMERER 38,414 (26,789)
— Pledged bank deposits — BERBRITER (354) 92,685
Cash generated from operations REMEENRS 4,660,419 2,112,943
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

36. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(@) Cash generated from operations (Continued)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment and land use
rights include:

36. REREER (£)
(a) EEFELNES (E)
RiELBEe TR HEWE &
B RERER T BB RIER
¥

2024 2023
—E-MmEF —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT AREFT
Net book amount — land use rights BREFE — L A — 262,998
Net book amount — property, plant BREFE — W% -
and equipment (Note 14) W E Kk (fat14) 61,867 755,716
Less: disposal of subsidiaries W HERB A A — (426,161)
Decrease/(increase) of other receivables 5% 1 Hb{F FA#E & ¥ %
from sales of land use rights and B K 2% TR B 55 45
property, plant and equipment or TE A 3R I8 2 E Ath FE UL
return of prepayments of equipment  BREUR (3% ) 487,543 (265,543)
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BEREER
plant and equipment and land use THEREZ
rights (Note 6) Wz (ffite) 11,136 182,841
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BKERZER
plant and equipment and land use & 05 R RE AT 1S RKIR
rights 560,546 509,851
(b) Non-cash financing activities (b) FEEHMETH
2024 2023
“E-mEF T =F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TFT AR®BFT
Supply chain financing HEsRE 1,911,445 2,666,518
Additions of lease liabilities ANEHERE 25,685 83,657
1,937,130 2,750,175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT-_MOF+-_A=+—BItFE

36. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 36.
(c) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

REeEREBEER#)
(0 EBEHEFEHE
ZIK HE 75 E25FEN R EFHE

movements in net debt for each of the years PMREEFEEE -
presented.

2024 2023
—E-IEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
Net debt BEFE ANE#®F AR For
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEeEEY 2,880,283 2,161,795
Pledged bank deposits BEHEHIRITT R 23,908 66,208
Supply chain financing HEERE (2,111,445) (2,495,882)
Borrowings B8 (6,395,495) (7,723,204)
Lease liabilities HEAR (180,000) (209,308)
Net debt BEFE (5,782,749) (8,200,391)
Cash and cash equivalents B NIReEEY 2,880,283 2,161,795
Pledged bank deposits B REITER 23,908 66,208
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BER%E — BE X (4,980,039) (6,732,360)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BEREE — FEHX (3,706,901) (3,696,034)
Net debt BEFHE (5,782,749) (8,200,391)

184 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIE&EBER AR



fn & MR EE (W)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

36. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

36. REREER (£)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (0 BEFHEYUERGE)
Liabilities from financing
Other assets activities
HiugE RERMEEHZEE
Borrowings
and supply
Cash and cash Pledged bank Lease chain
equivalents deposits liabilities financing Total
BeR BEART BER
BeZEY 2 HESE HEERE @it
RMBO00 RWB000 AMBO00 RMB000 RWB000
AEEFT AREFT ARETFT AEEFT AREFT
Net debt as at 1 January 2023 RZB-=%-f-H
WaERE 2468421 111,647 (314,382) (9,092413) (6,826,727)
Cash flows Lemeg (322426) (45,439) 78037 1617953 1328125
Addition of lease liabilities REMESRE - — (83,657) = (83,657)
Disposal of leases RERE = = 100,402 = 100402
Accrued interest expenses ARFERX = = (11,343) — (11,343)
Supply chain financing fREERE - - - (2,666,518) (2,666,518)
Disposal of subsidaries HERBAR = - 21635 - 21635
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEFE 15,800 — — (78,108) (62,308)
Net debt as at R-E-=%+-A
31 December 2023 =Zt-HNEERE 2,161,795 66,208 (209308) (10,219,086) (8,200391)
Cash flows Reng 695,232 (42,300) 41,308 3,652,925 4,347,165
Addition of lease liabilities NERERRE - - (25,685) - (25,685)
Disposal of leases RERE - - 20,009 - 20,009
Accrued interest expenses BRFERY - - (6,324) - (6,324)
Supply chain financing HEERE - - - (1,911,445) (1,911,445)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE 23,256 - - (29,334) (6,078)
Net debt as at RZZZ@E+ZA
31 December 2024 =t-ENEERE 2,880,263 23,908 (180,000) (8,506,940) (5,782,749)
37. COMMITMENTS 37. &I

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date that have not

been incurred are as follows:

REEAMNEAFEX (BREE) DT :

2024 2023

—ESE-MEF T =
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥TF T AR Fr

Property, plant and equipment W - BE k&

Authorised but not contracted for EREERETL 477,036 429452
Contracted but not provided for BETA B RBE 190,787 290,191
Total capital expenditure commitments BB S A EARE 667,823 719,643
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those as defined under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 24 and include key management of the
Group. General speaking, parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group is controlled by New
Green Group Limited (incorporated in BVI), which directly and
indirectly owns 59.34% of the Company’s shares. The
remaining 40.66% of the shares are widely held. The ultimate
parent of the Group is Texhong Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman lIslands). The ultimate controlling
party of the Group is Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of the
Group.

The related parties that had business transactions with the
Group are as follows:

38.

EHEBLTHNRS

B R A A ERE4RATERSE
TABFEAKEEREEE - ABME
fER = REE R REEEN S — T =X
EPBREERENEH S —H1TESE
KRB ARG R - HREZHK
FIEH] - TRRAR SRR T o

RZZEZMFE+=-—A=+—H ' ~x5EAH
New Green Group Limited (74 58 jE 20 Bf
S = - EEZEMEEERA
RAIRRD 259.34% ° BR1D B T 2 40.66% 4%
BeHBE AEBZREEBRAR
Texhong Group Holdings Limited (R 2
HEEMMKI) AKEZ&REERTR
REBEFEFHERIELE o

HEARBETERXZNEB T

Name of related party

MBS &

Relationship with the Group
izbuy ]2 REA

Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries

Associated company

BEBEZERERARRENEQR

Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence Technology
Development Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary
IEHAESEMRERERAGARENBEAA

Xinghong International (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
and its subsidiary
EZBER (BB BRARREMEARF

HLD (HK) Trading Limited
HLD (HK) Trading Limited

Treasure Reap Limited and its subsidiaries

CEERARNEMEARR

Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) Holdings Limited
and its subsidiary

ENEYE(BE) ZRERARLENEAR

Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company
RALCET A YRR A &)

Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co., Limited

BATERRBEAERAQA

Shanghai Hongyun Engineering Construction
Co,, Ltd.
FRTETEEZRARAA

/NS
Associated company
N
Associated company
/NS

Associated company

N

Associated company

odiate
TN

Associated company
N

Joint venture
BEDE

A company controlled by the chairman of the Group

MRS E X FEATES 2 A A
A company controlled by the chairman of the Group

HAKEERMES 2 AR

186 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XIIEIE&EBER AR



fn & MR EE (W)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_T-_WFE+_A=+—HILEE

38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties

38. HEBENRS (&)
(a) HEBEBIHRS

2024 2023
g a1 2 —E=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥FT AREFT
Sales of goods HE B m
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong)  — EZBIE (FE) AR
Co., Limited and its subsidiary NaEl R EKE AT 110,146 37,634
— Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited — BEMEERER
and its subsidiaries NCIDSEL )N 11,389 24,607
— HLD (HK) Trading Limited — HLD (HK) Trading
Limited 8,334 14,823
— Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) — EREWE (EE)
Holdings Limited and its subsidiary ZIRBR AR KR
gl NG 1,843 5,405
— Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence — IERANET R
Technology Development Co.,, Ltd. ERBRARR
and its subsidiary Ht B A A — 5
131,712 82,474
Sales of utilities SHE B ) SRR
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong)  — EZBE (F8) AR
Co., Limited and its subsidiary NGIDS SN =N 26,212 9,826
— Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited — BESEERER
and its subsidiaries NAREKEB AR 3,770 3,535
— Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) — EREME (EBE)
Holdings Limited and its subsidiary ZERERARR
HIE R F 1,017 539
30,999 13,900
Providing/(repayment of) shareholder loan et ({E38) R EE %
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong)  — 27ZBIR (F8) BR
Co., Limited and its subsidiary NE REHB AR — (72,945)
— Treasure Reap Limited — EEERAAR
and its subsidiaries Hff B A& — 328
— (72,617)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties (Continued) (a)

38. HEBINRS (&)
HEBENRS (&)

2024 2023
—E-NF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ T AREFT
Purchases of goods BEEM
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong) — ERBE ()
Co,, Limited and its subsidiary BRRAIR
Hff & A A 111,951 —
— Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence — IEHRANES R
Technology Development Co., Ltd. EERBRARR
and its subsidiary Hft B A A — 183
111,951 183
Purchases of utilities BEE N RBE
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co, Limited — /&8 T 2 & [& #i 5
BRAR 209,597 212,331
Purchases of services BB R
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint — REFE RS
Stock Company A A] 43,452 40,704
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co, Limited — /&8 T & &8
BRAF] - 295
43,452 40,999
Purchases of land use rights i 8 1 b {5 F 4
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co, Limited — /&8 TEE R
BERAA] — 97,188
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WE KK
equipment
— Shanghai Hongyun Engineering — PRI ETRERER
Construction Co,, Ltd. BRAF 60,423 —
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co, Limited — /&7 T3 B [@ 5
BERAF] — 226,099
60,423 226,099
Fees generated from the certain returned # T B EREEEE£H
assets BH
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co, Limited — /&8 T 3£ & [& 5
BRAA 29,828 —

In the opinion of the Company's directors and the
Group’'s management, the above related party
transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of
business, and in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements and/or the invoices issued by

the respective parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. HEBAOINXS (&)
(b) Balance with related parties (b) EERIEES HIAEER
b1 p 2 2023
—E-F T o=
RMB’000 RMB000
ARB¥TFT AREFT
Trade receivables FEUE 5 3R
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong) — EZBIE (FE) AR
Co., Limited and its subsidiary UNGIDS BN )= NG 30,393 14,131
— Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited — — 6 i it 73 28 B A R
and its subsidiaries NElREKHE AT 1,629 9,542
— Hualida Vietnam (Quang Ninh) — EFEWE (BE
Holdings Limited and its subsidiary ERBR AT RE
g PN 54 726
— HLD (HK) Trading Limited — HLD (HK) Trading
Limited — 737
32,076 25,136
Trade payables FERE 5B
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong) — £72BI (F78) BR
Co., Limited and its subsidiary Na MEWB AT 14,651 —
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co, — /A TEE @
Limited BRAA 14,219 13,601
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint ~ — RITFEWRIRD
Stock Company NG 7,559 8,201
36,429 21,802
Prepayments, deposits and other AR KRIA - e RHAE
receivables W BR 5K
— Xinghong International (Hong Kong) — 2 ZRBEE (F8) AR
Co., Limited and its subsidiary UNGIDS@=AL )= NG] 38,777 38,294
— Jiangsu Dasheng Intelligence — IHRNEZERK
Technology Development Co., Ltd. BERABRAAR
and its subsidiary HK B AR 20,100 20,100
— Treasure Reap Limited and —Z2BEFRAAR
its subsidiaries HKt B8 A A 19,433 19,130
78,310 77,524
Accruals and other payables TEIR B A R E At FE (T BR X
— Hai Ha Industrial Park Vietnam Co., — /& T E[E#E
Limited BERRAF 33,082 50,494
— Shanghai Hongyun Engineering — EBIMETERER
Construction Co., Ltd. BIRAF] 5,803 —
38,885 50,494
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, FEURRREE 5 R IE A EER - TR R
interest-free and repayable on demand. RIBERERER -
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38. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. HEABAINXS (#)
(c) Key management compensation () FEEHEEHMH

2024 2023

—E-mE —E-=fF

RMB’000 RMB000

AR¥TFT ARBFT

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERML 11,874 14,381
Pension costs — defined contribution ~ ERE KA — FE

plan HRETE 333 580

Other benefits EH M AaF 89 232

12,296 15,193
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HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

(a)

39. ARANEERBRRHBEH
ERAANEERGER

As at 31 December

N —_ + - El
2024 2023
—E-MF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M= - BB MRS 448 508
Investments in subsidiaries NGO &= 4,125,927 4,126,252
4,126,375 4,126,760
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENHIE -~ Re REALFE
other receivables W BE 30 . 147,619 146,615
Due from subsidiaries NG S 2,998,914 3,041,937
Due from related party JRE WA 8 Bt 75 kIR 36,776 —
Derivative financial instruments TET@MTA 14,351 42,382
Cash and cash equivalents He kIR SED 278,927 154,088
3,476,587 3,385,022
Total assets BEEHAE 7,602,962 7,511,782
EQUITY iz
Equity attributable to owners of AARER AEILER
the Company
Share capital: nominal value PR EE 96,958 96,958
Share premium B 0 4 (8 462,059 462,059
Other reserves H A 7 184,464 184,464
Retained earnings 1R R F 4,199,568 3,757,105
Total equity EREE 4,943,049 4,500,586
LIABILITIES 8E
Non-current liabilities #uu.iﬁ =i+
Borrowings BE 811,819 1,204,407
811,819 1,204,407
Current liabilities REEE .
Trade and bills payable ERE S REBERIE 699 24,512
Accruals and other payables TEIEE A R H 1 FEH BR3K 19,604 17,577
Due to subsidiaries AN IENE R 646,894 691,506
Borrowings igE 1,140,971 1,072,124
Derivative financial instruments MTESHITE 39,926 1,070
1,848,094 1,806,789
Total liabilities HEE 2,659,913 3,011,196
Total equity and liabilities HEZNEE 7,602,962 7,511,782
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by ARRIBERBEREN_T-HF
the Board of Directors on 27 March 2025 and was —HA=-TtREESZH) jﬁEEI
signed on its behalf by: TIHEERREFEES
Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang HRB RIKEE
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39. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 30. AAEIMNEEEBREREEES

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(%)

(b) ARANFHEEE

Other Retained

reserves earnings

Hith & R & F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR FIT AREFT

At 1 January 2023 RZEBE—_=F—HF—H 184,464 2,316,782

Profit for the year FE A = 1,440,323
At 31 December 2023 R=_ZT=-_=Z%+—-A8

=+—H 184,464 3,757,105

At 1 January 2024 RZZEZMFE—H—H 184,464 3,757,105

Profit for the year FERT — 525,937

Dividend relating to 2024 —ENFZRE — (83,474)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_NE+=A

=+—H 184,464 4,199,568
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—BItFE

40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40. EEREFNRER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEBRTHAZME
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is the chief executive officer of the RKFERERNEEBITIHAEE -
Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the HE-_T-_NF+_A=+—1F
remuneration of every director is set out below: - BuEEsMemT

Estimated
money  Employer's
value of  contribution
Discretionary Housing other  to benefit
Name of Director 3. Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits scheme Total

AeEHz  EEEA
g #&  BETA  EERN BEEREE  HEHR a5t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000
ARBTL ARMTR AEETr ARETZ ARETT ARMTZ ARETR

Executive Directors: HITES:
Hong Tianzhu (chairman) HAR (ERK) - 1,018 781 - - 3 1,802
Zhu Yongxiang Foxe - 973 3,000 - 28 106 4,107
Ye Lixing* Vg - 581 622 - 18 77 1,298
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence HER 204 - - - - - 204
Tao Xiaoming CEL: 167 - - - - - 167
Cheng Longdi RER 139 - - - - - 139
510 2572 4,403 - 46 186 7717
S Mr. Ye Lixing, was appointed as Executive Director on * B AE “ERHA -
27 May 2024 +HHEZ E?%iﬂﬁé%
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the HE_T-_=F+-_A=+—1tF
remuneration of every director is set out below: B BuEssMenT
Estimated
money Employer's
value of  contribution
Discretionary Housing other to benefit
Name of Director 3 Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits scheme Total
EhERlz  EXER
2% ¥ WERL  EERN AHEBEE  FEEX it
RMBO0O RMBO0O AMBOOO RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O RMBO0O
NEETT AREFT AREFT ARETL ARETT AREFT AREFT
Executive Directors: HrES:
Hong Tianzhu (chairman) HAR (EFK) = 1,009 787 = = 1 1797
Zhu Yongxiang Rk = %0 2198 = 30 114 3302
Tang Daoping* b3 -Rd = 1033 1,965 = 30 129 3157
Independent Non-executive Directors: BukufES:
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence* HER* 109 - - - - - 109
Tao Xiaoming CEL 163 = = = = - 163
Cheng Longdi 2ER 136 = = = = = 136
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen® TRE 115 = = = = - 115
523 3,002 4,950 — 60 244 8779
& Mr. Tang Daoping resigned from Executive Director on * BBEEERN_ZE_=F+_H
8 December 2023. NBBENITES -
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen retired from Independent TREBRER-Z_=FRA=
Non-executive Director on 25 May 2023. THABEBLIERNITES -
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence was appointed as HERLER-_T_=FHA=
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 May 2023. THAREZERBIIFBTES -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z-MF&FH 193



e MBWRMEE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MFE+-_RA=1+—HILFE

40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2024,
emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking, are set out as above.

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

The Group did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services during
the year.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were made
available in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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41.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. TEHRBLQF
TRIWRAEBEHEHE_-_Z_ME+ A
=+—BEMEEMBAR (BAKELT)

The following is a list of the Group’s principal subsidiaries, all
of which are unlisted, as of 31 December 2024:

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
BRTRAS

WEAREE MR IBHERBAREEEREDN IEXBREEHY BARKHFHE Fis s

Directly held:

EEER:

Texhong Textile Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in British UsD100 100%
26 May 2004, Virgin Islands
limited liability company

RAGHERERAHF RERTAS REBRRABRAER 100% 7T 100%
“ZENFRA=TAAB
BREERT

Sunray International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in British UsD1 100%
21 January 2005, Virgin Islands
limited liability company

HHERERER AR RERTAS REBRRHEBREER 1% 100%
“EERE-A=+—-H"
AREERA

Renze Investment Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in British USD50,000 100%
6 September 2006, Virgin Islands
limited liability company

CEREBR AR RERTAS REBRIHBRELR 50,0005 7T 100%
ZETRFENARR
BEREFERA

Prosperous Time Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in British UsD100 100%
12 May 2015, Virgin Islands
limited liability company

HRERERAR RERTAS REBRZBEREER 100% 7T 100%
“T-n¥RA+T=H"
BREARA

Winnitex International Group Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in British UsD250 80%
8 November 2018, Virgin Islands
limited liability company

EXBREEERAA REETAHS REBRIESRELR 250% 7T 80%
“E-N\FE+—ANB-
BREERT
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41.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. FEHBLAT (&)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
BRTRAS
WEARARE SEMAIEHR AR EEERER TEEBREERY ARSI Fis s
Indirectly held:
BiEEs:
Jiangsu Century Textile Co,, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD15,000,000 100%
6 June 2000, yams, grey fabrics, dyed
limited liability company clothes and dress;
processing of cotton in
Mainland China
THELHEERRA REABARMN - RABEREEREED R - 15,000,000 7T 100%
“ZTRFEAARR T~ R0 RARE : ARIE
BREFRR nT
Nantong Century Textile Co,, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD5,500,000 100%
7 June 2002, yams, grey fabrics and dyed
limited liability company fabrics in Mainland China
HRLEHEERAR hEALEE R BIPRSSE R HEDR - 5,500,000% 70 100%
“ZE-FRAtH H T R R0
BEREERAT
Xuzhou Yinfeng Textile Co, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD7,800,000 100%
12 May 2004, yams, grey fabrics, clothes
limited liability company and dyed fabrics in Mainland
China
BMREHHERAT HEAARMN - RPBEREEER HELDR - 780000057 100%
“TEMFRAT=A T~ IR R
BEREFERA
Xuzhou Times Textile Co,, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of top- USD43,000,000 100%
29 December 2004, grade yarns, thread, grey
limited liability company fabrics, textile knitting
products, and garments in
Mainland China
BMERGEERAT HEAARMN - RPBEREGERHERRY 43,000000% 70 100%
“EEEME+-—A=TNE " B8 E - HERER
BEREARA R
Texhong (China) Investment Co,, Ltd. Shanghai, Mainland China, Investment holding and trading USD100,000,000 100%
21 June 2005, of textile products in
Limited liability company Mainland China
R (FE)REFRAR hEALLEE REERRNTERSEES 100,000,000% 70 100%
ZETREAAZT-B- BER
BEREEAR
Xuzhou Yinyu Textile Co, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing top-grade yarns, USD20,500,000 100%
30 March 2006, thread, grey fabrics, dresses,
limited liability company in Mainland China
BHNEFHEERAR BRI - RABERBEER RS 20,500,000% 7T 100%
ZZERF=A=tAH" 5 A RRE
AREERT
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. FEHBAT &)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of

issued share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
BRTRAS

WEARRE MR IGHEREAREEEREDN IEXBREEHY BARK W Fis s

Sunray International Holdings Limited and its subsidiary British Virgin Islands, Trading in Macao UsD1 100%
21 January 2005,
limited liability company

HHERERERARRENBAR RERIAS REMES ESH 100%
“ETHRE-A-+—-H-
BEREERA

Changzhou Hongwei Textile Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB53,145,000 100%
1 January 1979, textile, decoration and
limited liability company garment in Mainland China

BN RGEERAT REABEMN R B A EEE R HE SR AR #53,145,0007C 100%
—nthE-A-H" i Hi R R
AREERT

Renze Investment Limited and its subsidiary British Virgin Islands, Manufacturing of yam in USD50,000 100%
6 September 2006, Vietnam
limited liability company

CERABRARRANBAR EERAEE REERED &R 50,000% 7T 100%
“EZRENARE
BEREFERA

Weishan Hongwei Textile Technology Limited Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB58,000,000 100%
12 April 2018 yams in Mainland China
limited liability company

ML BHBMRERDT RERMLER EREARMEEREED R AR ¥58,0000007C 100%
“E-\¥WmAt=H"
EREEAT

TVN Investment Limited and its subsidiary British Virgin Islands, Manufacturing of yam in usD100 100%
14 February 2011, Vietnam
limited liability company

TVN Investment Limited & £ Kt 8 22 &) RERTES NEERED K 100% 7T 100%
=T £-Ft/mAE "
BREERTF

Shandong Hongwei Textile Co,, Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of RMB700,000,000 100%
1 May 2004, yarns in Mainland China
limited liability company

LRIBHEERRE FERMLR RPBALSERHEDR A 700,000,007 100%
“ZTMFRA-R -
BEREFERA

Yinguang Technology Holdings Limited and its subsidiary  British Virgin Islands, Manufacturing of yarns, grey UsD100 100%
16 November 2010, fabrics,garments and dyed
limited liability company fabrics in Vietnam

BRBEERERATREMBAA RERTAS NHEFESEYR « £ KK 100% 7T 100%

—E-TF+—-A+xH"

EBREERT

R
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. FEHBLAT (&)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
BRTRAS
WEARARE SEMAIEHR AR EEERER TEEBREERY ARSI Fis s
Shandong Lanyan Textiles Co,, Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yarns, grey USD3,000,000 100%
21 August 2015, fabrics, garments in
limited liability company Mainland China
LWRBESHBREERA A REANILE HhEAREEDE TR 3,000,000% 7T 100%
“E-AFA\A=+—-H" PR
BEREERT
Changzhou Grand Textile Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, Mainland China, Trading of textile products in USD19,500,000 100%
August 2016, Mainland China
limited liability company
BMEEGRERAR HEABEMN REBERLEENSER 19,500,000 70 100%
—T-RENR
AREERT
Taizhou Hongwei Textile Co,, Ltd. Taizhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD18,580,000 100%
23 April 2002, industrial-use textile
limited liability company products and top-grade
blended-spinning in
Mainland China
EMLEGHEERAR REABEMN NP ERSEEREE XA 18,580,000% 7 100%
“ZZ_FNA-F=H" HBERREREHM
AREERA
Nantong Hongwei Textile Co,, Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD13,500,000 100%
20 May 2004, garment, textile knitting
limited liability company products and yams in
Mainland China
HRIEHBERAR hEALEE N ERBEEREERK - 13,500,000% 70 100%
“ETNFERAZTE - HEEBEERRYE
BEREEAT
Shandong Lanyan Jeanswear Co, Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yams, grey USD1,000,000 100%
21 August 2015, fabrics, garments in
limited liability company Mainland China
LRMEFHFREBRAR HEAMILR RPBEAEBEN R - £ R 10000005 70 100%
“E-RENAZT-H %3
AREERT
Xuzhou Hongwei Intelligence Textile Co, Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yams in USD100,000,000 100%
25 May 2017, Mainland China
limited liability company
BNIEEENBERAR REABARMN - B A EY R 100,000,000 7T 100%

“E—+FRA-THAB -

BREFRR
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

4. FEHBAT &)

Place and date of incorporation

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital or

Name of subsidiary and form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
BRTRAS

WEARRE MR IGHEREAREEEREDN IEXBREEHY BARK W Fis s

Texhong Textile Nantong Limited and its subsidiaries British Virgin Islands, Manufacturing and sales of top- USD50,000 100%
14 March 2007, grade textile products and
limited liability company garments in Mainland China

RIGHBEBERAAREHELF ERRAES - EREPSSE R ER RS 50,0005 7T 100%
“ETtF=ATWE - BERRKR
BEREERA

Zhejiang Qing Mao Weaving, Dyeing & Printing Co,, Ltd. Shaoxing, Mainland China, Manufacturing of cotton and USD2,000,000 80%
1 October 2002 cotton blend yarns, greige,
limited liability company dyed and finished woven

fabrics in Mainland China

LB XGBRANAERAR REAGARE EREPM AR AR 2,000,000 7C 80%
“EZ-F1+A-H- YR A ABREE
BEREFERA #

Winnitex Holdings Limited and its subsidiary British Virgin Islands, Sales of woven garment fabrics UsD10,000 80%
10 February 2003, in Hong Kong
limited liability company

EXBERERAAREMBAR RERTAS ERRHERBEHN 1000057 80%
—ET=F-ATH"
BEREEAT

Precious Cypress Limited and its subsidiaries British Virgin Islands, Sales of denim fabrics and UsD10,000 65%
16 March 2018, apparel in USA
incorporated company

Precious Cypress Limited 5 £ F{ & 72 7] RERLHS EXBHEFFERRRE 10,0003 7T 65%
ZE-\FZAtAE-
BRHOBERAF

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in ERBINEERETEFELASEESE

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Texhong (China) Investment Co. Ltd. is a wholly foreign
owned investment holding company incorporated in
Mainland China.

None of above subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at
any time during year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries established in
Mainland China represent the best effort by the Group's
management to translate their Chinese names, as they do not
have official English names.

KEENAEENBAR - EERAREM
HtfBRRANENEERERBNIT
= o

R (PEREBRAASRFTEAM
AR 2 2N EREERAF] e

BE-_ZE_NE+-_A=1+—HILFE
AR BFR - B4 _E ol B8 A R A (T 1A
BERTEERA(ZZE_=F 1 £)-

TR E A S 2 KB A R I
ARNEH  HENABWOAKEEEE
BRABIHETIXABHERRX L
R
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

42.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of change in
equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method, after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive
income (“OCl") of the investee in OCl. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

42, HibBEEESTBER ()

421 MEBAREGHRESZSTEERA

(#&)
(c)

(d)

BERH
AEBEHMBEGLERHE
P& B S &R S
5 o RIBFE M KRS £ R

FNH - BELTHORE N
BORRARRERGED

¥ RIESELKEENEGY
EoMEEME AEEE
413 AETHRNEELE

/\%ﬁ%

REZEEENBRT T RER
EEERBREKRAER
% ThARERIEARR

R E

RIS HDZE REVNS
AR A HERR - HLAR A F B A
RIESEERALEE D HKKR
NI F: bRl
B YREMEERE(H
feEmkas]) RAKE R
EWRE AR E 2R
MEB - Bk EUEE D
AR EERSNEREE
IR

WASEEEEDEARKE
MEBBRSENNBAMTER
MR e (B3 (A E A R 4K
REIREIRR) - BRIFAEHE
EEREEHCREMERN
K BATEEBE—FE
1B

$E@ﬁHWM“TZﬁ
mIR A BT
Miaﬁm%m%Mﬂﬁ
REREBLTAEHE K
R PIREFIEFE %%L”
MEEHRBE:- - #= A
WREFHE ﬁﬂﬁe#ﬁ
TEREFTUFEAEER
R o

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=[FF{ 201



HeMERREE (R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Equity method (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in an associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of net losses of associates’ in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree, the equity interests
issued by the Group, fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
and fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or
a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.2

42.3

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
also required according to Note 42.8.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Committee of
Executive Directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions.

42.5 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance costs — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other

(losses)/gains — net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group's entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated
income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 42, HWBEEESBE ©)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

42,5 HNEMBRE (Z)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

42.6 Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the companies in the Group, is classified as
investment property. Investment property also includes
property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs (Note 42.18). Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An item of investment properties is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits is
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.7 Property, plant and equipment

The Group's accounting policy for buildings is explained
in Note 14. All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged to other comprehensive
income; all other decreases are charged to the
consolidated income statement. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset charged to the
consolidated income statement and depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve’ to ‘retained earnings'.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 42.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement. When revalued assets
are sold, the amounts included in revaluation reserve
are transferred to retained earnings.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.7

42.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and machinery
pending installation, is stated at cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of machinery,
interest capitalised and other direct costs capitalised during
the construction and installation period, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed and put into use. On
completion, construction-in-progress is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.9 Financial assets

42.9.1

42.9.2

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCl) or through profit or loss),
and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

210 TEXHONG INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED XULEIFR & EA R A 7

42,

HttBEE

ESTEER )

429 ERWMEE

42.9.1

42.9.2

v
AEBKESREENESR
A TErE8ER

HEgEAFE(TW#wE
A E fth 2 s (H A
2HEE) kETAEZE)
AE R

28 TETIE B

DHERTEREESCREE
REEREANFHRZER
B -

BRI AFEAENEEM
o hEEEBRERIER X
H b 2 et 51 Bk o L3 9F
FEEEMRATAKEM
FORBBARAEEES R
Y46 FE AR B 1F b T AT i E &
B SRARENZATFE
APAR M E RS AR

ARERBNEEE
BRI KR
EEBRE -

Paray
%%

SEH N

FHRBERNENESREE
ERXHHBER — XHRABA
SEARBEIHEREE
ZH-BltemEERIER
TRENENIHREE
F MAEECEEMAR
B 4B K HB 3 L B e R B
AR IFERERMEE °



fn & MR EE (W)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.9 Financial assets (Continued)

42.9.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other
(losses)/gains together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of profit or loss.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 42, HtBEEESTBE (£)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
42.9 Financial assets (Continued) 429 SRMEE (&)

4293 5H&(#&)

BETAE)

42,9.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other (losses)/gains. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other (losses)/gains and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other (losses)/gains in
the period in which it arises.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.9 Financial assets (Continued)

42.9.3

42.9.4

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCl,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other (losses)/gains in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 21 for further details.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

42.11 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of item being hedged. Derivative
instruments held by the Group do not qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of these derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement within other (losses)/gains.

42.12 Government grants/subsidies

Grants/subsidies from government authorities are
recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants/subsidies relating to assets are
presented in the balance sheet by deducting the grant
in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Government grants/subsidies relating to compensation
for relocation are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period when
the relocation takes place.
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.13 Trade and other receivables

42, HibBEEESTBER ()

42,13 B B 5 7R K H A B KR

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

42.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

42.15Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.16 Supply chain financing

Supply chain financing is referred to as reverse
factoring. It involves three parties: a supplier who
supplies goods; the Group; and a bank or financier. The
bank offers to facilitate payments of the trade payables
arising between the Group and supplier, and it might
provide finance so that the supplier can be paid earlier
(and/or the buyer can pay later) than the normal due

date of the trade payables.

The Group applies HKFRS 9's derecognition
requirements when assessing whether and when to
derecognise the trade payable. The Group derecognises
trade payables, recognises a new financial liability at fair
value, and recognises a gain or loss based on the
difference between the carrying amount of the original
financial liability and the fair value of the new financial

liability based on management assessment.

42.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at
the end of the reporting period, the Group has a right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.

Covenants that the Group is required to comply with,
on or before the end of the reporting period, are
considered in classifying loan arrangements with
covenants as current or non-current. Covenants that the
Group is required to comply with after the reporting
period do not affect the classification at the reporting

date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

42.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill and deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

42.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations (defined benefit pension
plans and defined contribution plans)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service amounts payable on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods.

The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to profit or loss so as to
spread the costs over the service lives of
employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations (defined benefit pension
plans and defined contribution plans)
(Continued)

The long service payment liabilities are
discounted to determine the present value and
reduced by entitlements by employees accrued
under the Group’s defined contribution
retirement scheme that is attributable to
contributions made by the Group as deemed
employee contributions. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or
charged to other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise, respectively. As a
result of plan amendment, a past service cost,
arising from the change in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation for employee
service in prior periods on the date of plan
amendment, is recognised as an expense.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group also operates the mandatory
provident fund scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for its
Hong Kong staff. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme
administered by independent trustees. Each of
the employer and the employee has to
contribute an amount equal to 5% of the
relevant income of the employee to the MPF
Scheme, subject to a monthly cap of HK$1,500.
Contributions from the employer are vested in
the employees as soon as they are paid to
relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived
from the mandatory contributions must be
preserved until the employee reaches the
retirement age of 65 subject to a few exceptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations (defined benefit pension
plans and defined contribution plans)
(Continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for bonuses
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

42.21 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity's share price);

excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or hold shares for a specified
period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HILEFE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.21 Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant
date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).

42.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WFE+_A=+—HIEE

42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.23 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as

part of other income. Interest income is presented as
finance income where it is earned from financial assets
that are held for cash management purposes. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

42.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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42. OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

42.25Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

42.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company's
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders
or directors, when appropriate.
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